
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Special City Council Meeting

July 9, 2024
Mark W. McBrayer, Mayor
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Mayor Pro Tem, District 1
Gordon Harris, Councilman, District 2
David Glasheen, Councilman, District 3
Brayden Rose, Councilman, District 4
Dr. Jennifer Wilson, Councilwoman, District 5
Tim Collins, Councilman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Matt Wade, City Attorney

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at (806)775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48
hours in advance of the meeting.

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order.

 

1:00 p.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers and immediately recesses into
Executive Session.
 

           
1. Executive Session   

 

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,
with legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
agreement and on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

1. 1. 1. City of Lubbock v. Trumble Steel Erectors, Inc. et. al.; Cause No. DC-2024-CV-0165   

 

1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section
551.072, to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

  

 

1. 2. 1. 19th Street and Avenue X   

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

1:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in City Council Chambers in Work Session regarding items for
presentation and discussion on such issues that may require in-depth consideration by the City
Council. No action will be taken by the City Council in Work Session.
 

http://www.mylubbock.us


 

2. Work Session - Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide
guidance to staff as appropriate.

  

 

2. 1. Presentation regarding the West Texas State Veterans Cemetery   

 

2:00 p.m. - The City Council continues in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 

3. Ceremonial Items   

 

3. 1. Invocation   

 

3. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

Call to Order
 

4. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter posted
on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 2:00 p.m. on July 9, 2024.  Citizen Comments provide an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. 

  

 

5. Minutes   

 

5. 1. May 21, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
June 11, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting

 

6. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

6. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
No. 2024-O0090, Amendment 35, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal
purposes respecting the Abandoned Vehicle Fund, Criminal Investigations Fund, and
Department of Justice Asset Sharing Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a
savings clause.

 

6. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance



6. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
No. 2024-O0091, Amendment 36, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal
purposes respecting the Parks & Recreation Fees; providing for filing; and providing for a
savings clause.

 

6. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
No. 2024-O0092, Amendment 37, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal
purposes respecting the Traffic Capital Improvement Project Fund; providing for filing;
and providing for a savings clause.

 

6. 4. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
No. 2024-O0093, Amendment 38, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal
purposes respecting the Parks & Recreation Capital Project Fund and American Rescue
Plan Act Funding; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

6. 5. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
No. 2024-O0094, Amendment 39, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal
purposes respecting the Grant Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings
clause.

 

6. 5. 1. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 4 to the Department of State Health Services (DSHS) Contract
HHS000812700012, and all related documents, for SARS-CoV-2, epidemiology,
surveillance, and enhanced laboratory activities, by and between the City of Lubbock, and
the State of Texas, acting by and through DSHS.

 

6. 6. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 40, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Civil Service Positions; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

6. 7. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 41, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Airport Capital Project Fund and Airport Operating Fund; providing for filing; and
providing for a savings clause.

 

6. 8. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading  Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 42, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Operating Budget for Market Lubbock Inc.-Visit Lubbock and Sports Authority; providing
for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

6. 9. Resolution - Finance:  Consider a resolution to suspend for forty-five (45) days, the
effective date proposed by West Texas Gas Utility, LLC, to increase rates under the Gas
Reliability Infrastructure Program.

 

6. 10. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute,



6. 10. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute,
for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Compromise Settlement Agreement and
Release of All Claims, in City of Lubbock v. Trumble Steel Erectors, Inc. et. al.; Cause No.
DC-2024-CV-0165.

 

6. 11. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Agreement Contract 17790, with Enprotec /
Hibbs & Todd, Inc., for the Northeast Sanitary Sewer Interceptor Intermediate Lift Station
Project.

 

6. 12. Resolution - Public Works Traffic Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the
Mayor to execute Contract 17627, with Kimley Horn and Associates, to develop a safety
action plan as part of the Safe Streets for All Program.

 

6. 13. Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 18045, with Lydick-Hooks, for the complete roof replacement of Pump
Station No. 14 located at 7308 Milwaukee Avenue.

 

6. 14. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
18165, with W.R. Construction, Inc., and in doing so, ratifying all acts undertaken for
Emergency Repairs to the Consolidated Rental Car Facility at Lubbock Preston Smith
International Airport.

 

6. 15. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 17942, with SRH Landscapes, LLC, for annual right-of-way maintenance
for the North Overton Public Improvement District. 

 

6. 16. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement Contract 17764, with West
Texas Services, Inc. dba Tom's Tree Place, for services related to right-of-way
improvements in the North Overton Tax Increment Financing District boundary at 9th
Street and 10th Street. 

 

6. 17. Resolution - Municipal Court: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No.1 to Contract 14522, with OpenEdge Payments, LLC, a division of Global
Payments, for the payment gateway to process credit card transactions.

 

6. 18. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to Contract 15862, with Lubbock Wrecker Services, Inc., for wrecker
and towing services for the Lubbock Police Department.

 

6. 19. Resolution - Telecommunications: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 18156, with World Wide Technology, LLC, for professional
implementation services related to the upgrade of the City-wide telephone system.

 



6. 20. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution designating the City Manager as the authorized
official, to apply for and execute an agreement with the State of Texas Office of the
Governor's Rifle-Resistant Body Armor Grant Program FY2025, to fund the purchase
of rifle resistant body armor for the Police Department.

 

6. 21. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution designating the City Manager as the authorized
official to apply for and execute an agreement with the State of Texas Office of the
Governor’s Bullet-Resistant Shield Grant Program FY2025, to fund the purchase of
ballistic shields for the Police Department.

 

6. 22. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Memorandum of Understanding, and all related documents, by and between the City of
Lubbock Police Department, the Texas Anti-Gang Center-Lubbock, and the South Plains
Auto Theft Task Force, to ensure sharing of Axon camera and image functionality, to
enhance cooperative investigative efforts in criminal investigations.

 

6. 23. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0079,
for Zone Case 3224-A, a request of Lone Star Suds, LLC for Centric Capital Partners, Inc.,
for a zone change from Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) and Auto-Urban
Commercial District (AC) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 2401 19th Street,
located south of 19th Street and west of Avenue X, Ellwood Place Addition, Block 1, the
east 140 feet of Lot 1.

 

6. 24. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0095,
for Zone Case 3310-B, a request of Seventeen Services, LLC for SPGO, LLC, for a zone
change from Office District (OF) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), generally
located north of 142nd Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 1.00 acre of unplatted land
out of Block AK, Section 5.

 

6. 25. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No.
2024-O0096, for Zone Case 3310-C, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Quaker/146
Investment Holdings, LP, for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District
(SF-2) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), generally located north of 146th Street
and west of Quaker Avenue, on 9.23 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 5.

 

6. 26. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0097,
for Zone Case 3310-D, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC, for Quaker/146 Investment
Holdings, LP, for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to
Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), generally located north of 146th Street and west
of Quaker Avenue, on 8.67 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 5.

 

6. 27. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No.
2024-O0098, for Zone Case 3303-C, a request of Seventeen Services, LLC, for SE4NS
Properties, LLC, for a zone change from Industrial Park District (IP) to Auto-Urban
Commercial District (AC), at 12001 Frankford Avenue, located east of Frankford Avenue
and south of 119th Street, Stonewood Industrial Park Addition, Tract C.



 

6. 28. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No.
2024-O0099, for Zone Case 1947-H, a request of Clovis Sign Service for Southwest
Convenience Stores, for a zone change from Medium Density Residential District (MDR)
to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 5802 34th Street, located west of Frankford
Avenue and north of 34th Street, Summer Place Addition, Lot 10.

 

7. Regular Agenda   

 

7. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the I-27 Advisory
Committee of the Ports-to-Plains Trade Corridor Coalition.

 

7. 2. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments of City Council members
to the South Plains Association of Governments (SPAG) Board.

 

7. 3. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Transportation
Policy Committee of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization.

 

7. 4. Public Hearing - Planning: Hold a public hearing in accordance with Section 43.0694(a)
of the Texas Local Government Code, regarding the City of Lubbock's intent to annex
an area of land generally described as 374.74 acres south of 146th Street and east of
Frankford Avenue, into Lubbock's corporate limits, and to execute a Municipal
Services Agreement with the Highland Oaks Homeowner's Association, for the requested
annexation.

 

7. 5. Resolution - Public Works Wastewater: Consider a resolution receiving the report and
recommendation of the Private Sewer Lateral Ad-Hoc Committee. 

 



 AI# 12657 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 5. 1. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
May 21, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
June 11, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting

Item Summary
May 21, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
June 11, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting

Fiscal Impact
None 

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

Attachments
5.21.2024 S EUB 
6.11.2024 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

May 21, 2024
11:00 A.M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 21st of May, 2024, in City
Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 11:00 a.m.

11:02 A.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Tray Payne; Council Member Tim Collins; Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia;
Council Member Brayden Rose; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary Courtney
Paz; Interim City Attorney Mitchell Satterwhite 

Absent:  Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris; Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member Dr.
Jennifer Wilson 

This was a meeting of the Electric Utility Board. A quorum of Council Members attended and
participated in discussions during the meeting in which the board considered the following topics as
shown below.

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
Board Comments 1; Public Comment 2; and 3.1-3.5.
No quorum, of City Council, was present for all other items.

1. BOARD COMMENTS

The Board may make general announcements not requiring official action.

No comments were given by the Board.

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

Public comment is an opportunity for the public to make comments and express a position on agenda
items.

2. 1. This period, of up to thirty minutes, is dedicated to public comment. Each member of the public will
have three minutes to speak. Any member of the public that requires the assistance of a translator
will have six minutes to speak. Comments must be limited to only those items posted on the Electric
Utility Board agenda. Any member of the public wishing to speak shall sign up on the public
comment sheet on the day of the Electric Utility Board Meeting, prior to the beginning of the
meeting. The Electric Utility Board shall follow the order of persons wishing to speak as listed on the



sign-up sheet. If everyone who signed up to speak has been given an opportunity to speak and the
time designated for public comment has not been exhausted, the Electric Utility Board may, at its
discretion, open the floor to anyone else wishing to address the Electric Utility Board, subject to all
the same procedures and guidelines.
 
No one appeared to speak.

 
3. REGULAR SESSION
 
3. 1. The Board will approve the minutes from the Regular Electric Utility Board Meeting on April 16,

2024.
 

Motion by Board Member Butch Davis, seconded by Board Member Eddie Schulz, to approve
the Regular Electric Utility Board Meeting minutes on April 16, 2024.
Vote: 8-0 Motion carried.

 
3. 2. Presentation and discussion of financial and capital statements, budget, financing options, audits, and

financial policies of Lubbock Power & Light relating to debt issuance issues and historical debt
matters, reserve account funding, cost allocation, revenue and expense projections, power cost
recovery factor, customer metering, tariff and billing, service and administrative issues. 
 
Kacey Sylvia, director of finance for LP&L, gave a presentation and answered questions from the
Board.

 
3. 3. Presentation and discussion of operational technology landscape including platforms, interoperability,

integrations, departments and operating budgets of Lubbock Power & Light, including the City of
Lubbock Utilities.
 
Chris Sims, chief performance officer for LP&L, gave a presentation and answered questions from
the Board.

 
3. 4. Presentation and discussion of the Customer Engagement Meeting held on May 14, 2024, and

approval of the minutes by the Board.
 
Clint Gardner, chief customer officer for LP&L, gave a presentation and answered questions from the
Board.
 

Motion by Board Member Solomon Fields, seconded by Board Member Lewis Harvill, to
approve the May 14, 2024, Customer Engagement Meeting minutes.
 
Vote: 8-0 Motion carried.

 
3. 5. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the LP&L Chief Administrative Officer or his

designee to execute a Second Amendment to the Oracle Ordering Document US-10368397, by and
between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through LP&L, and Oracle America, Inc., regarding
ongoing and outstanding move-to-market project tasks and to assist with further integration tasks.
This Amendment is to extend the term of the Agreement by one year and expand the scope of work
as described more in detail in the Amendment. This Amendment does not change the Not-to-Exceed

Special City Council Meeting 
May 21, 2024 Page 2 of 4



Original Agreement.
 
Clint Gardner, chief customer officer for LP&L, gave comments and answered questions from the
Board.
 

Motion by Board Member Craig Rhyne, seconded by Board Member Eddie Schulz, to approve
this item.
Vote: 8-0 Motion carried.

 
11:30 a.m. – Approximately - Following completion of the Regular Session item 3.5, the Electric Utility
Board and City Council will recess from open session for a lunch break and will reconvene in executive
session to discuss the items listed below. It is anticipated that the Executive session will begin at 12:00 p.m.
However, this is an approximation and the Board and City Council may begin the executive session earlier or
later depending on when the Regular Session and lunch recess is complete. During the lunch break recess, the
Electric Utility Board will recognize past Board Members who are present and possible discussions or
presentations related to the final transition to ERCOT and the historic entry into the retail market. 
Discussions may include but not be limited to updates on billing and transaction systems, transmission and
distribution work for the transition, status of generation, personnel, communications and regulatory matters.
No official action will be taken during this recess.
 
Joel Ivy, director of electric utilities for LP&L, gave a presentation related to the final transition to ERCOT
and the historic entry into the retail market, and answered questions from the Board and those in attendance.
 
4. EXECUTIVE SESSION

 
This meeting was called into a closed session at 12:42 p.m. under the provisions of Section 551,
Texas Government Code. City Council lost quorum and adjourned.

 
4. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.086 and §552.133,

to discuss and deliberate, on the following competitive matters of Lubbock Power & Light,
reasonably related to the following categories:

 
4. 1. 1. Risk management information, including but not limited to, contracts, and strategies, especially

regarding, bidding and pricing information for purchased power, generation and fuel, and
Electric Reliability Council of Texas bids, prices, offers, and related services and strategies.

 
4. 1. 2. Discuss and the Board will take possible action related to purchased power and energy and fuel

management services.
 
4. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.071, seeking the

advice of legal counsel about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement offers and hold a
consultation with the attorney on matters in which the duty of the attorney to the City Council and to
the Electric Utility Board under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State
Bar of Texas conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code:

 
4. 2. 1. Legal issues regarding contract(s), including Purchase Orders, herein listed on the agenda.
 
4. 2. 2. Legal advice and counsel regarding confidential matters pertaining to integration into retail

Special City Council Meeting 
May 21, 2024 Page 3 of 4



4. 2. 2. Legal advice and counsel regarding confidential matters pertaining to integration into retail
market competition.

 
4. 2. 3. Legal advice and counsel regarding contemplated litigation matters.
 
4. 2. 4. Legal advice and counsel regarding North American Electric Reliability Corporation Critical

Infrastructure Protection (NERC CIP) standards.
 
4. 2. 5. Application of the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light (LP&L) to

Change Rates for Wholesale Transmission Service,  proceeding before the Public Utility
Commission of Texas, PUC Docket No. 54657.

 
4. 2. 6. City of Lubbock, Texas v. Elk City Wind II, LLC, Cause No. CIV-23-232-G, proceeding in the

United States District Court for the Western District of Oklahoma.
 
4. 2. 7. City of Lubbock v. Trumble Steel Erectors, Inc., Cause No. DC-2024-CV-0165 proceeding in

237th District Court of Lubbock County, Texas.
 
4. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.074 to deliberate the

appointment, employment, evaluation, and duties of a public officer or employee (Director of
Electric Utilities/Chief Administrative Officer, and General Counsel).

 

12:42 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Payne adjourned the meeting.

 
The May 21, 2024 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 9th day of
July, 2024.

  
  ____________________________________

MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

 

Special City Council Meeting 
May 21, 2024 Page 4 of 4



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

June 11, 2024
1:00 P. M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 11th of June, 2024, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 1:00 p.m.

1:00 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Tray Payne; Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris; Council Member Tim Collins;
Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member
Brayden Rose; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City
Secretary Courtney Paz; First City Attorney Mitchell Satterwhite 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Executive Session; 2.1-2.2; Citizen Comments 3; 4.1; 5.20; 5.19; 5.29; 5.1-5.18; 5.21-5.28; 6.2;
and 6.1.
Item No. 5.20 was postponed to the July 9, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting.
Item No. 6.1 was amended.

1. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 1:01 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 2:01 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 2:05 p.m.

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with
legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and
on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

1. 1. 1. Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code

1. 1. 2. Chapter 211 of the Texas Local Government Code 

1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the
Building Board of Appeals, Canadian River Municipal Water Authority Board of Directors, and
the Permit & License Appeal Board.



2:01 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.

2. Ceremonial Items

2. 1. Invocation

Deacon of Worship & Administration Colin Lundstrom, Fellowship Church Lubbock, led the
invocation.

2. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem Shelia
Patterson Harris.

Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 2:05 p.m.

3. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 2:00 p.m. on June 11, 2024. Citizen Comments provide an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items.

Sign ups:

Colby Norris, resident and treasurer of the Highland Oaks Homeowner's
Association, appeared before City Council to speak in favor of item 6.2 (a resolution
establishing the City of Lubbock's intent to annex an area of land). 
Mary Crites; Gail Robinson; Sally Abbe, board trustee chair for St. John's United
Methodist Church; Holle Humphries; and Gretchen Scott appeared before City Council to
speak in opposition of item 6.1 (Zone Case 2016-E).
Charles Colbert, owner of three businesses at Metro Tower, appeared before City Council
to speak on item 6.1 (Zone Case 2016-E).

4. Minutes

4. 1. April 16, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
May 14, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting
May 14, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Swearing-In Ceremony

Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Tim
Collins, to approve the April 16, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility
Board minutes; the May 14, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting minutes; and the May 14,
2024 Special City Council Meeting - Swearing-In Ceremony minutes. 

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 11, 2024 Page 2 of 8



Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

5. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Tim
Collins, to approve items 5.1-5.18 and 5.21-5.28. 

Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

5. 1.

5. 2.

5. 3.

5. 4.

Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0069, 
Amendment 23, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the 
General Facilities System Improvements Capital Project Fund; providing for filing; and 
providing for a savings clause. 

Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0073, 
Amendment 31, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the 
General Fund, specifically the Health Department Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a 
savings clause. 

Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0074, 
Amendment 32, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Parks 
Capital Project Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0075, 
Amendment 33, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant 
Fund, specifically the Health Department Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings 
clause. 

5. 4. 1. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0278 authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 7 to the Department of State Health Services Contract No.
HHS000077800035, and all related documents, under the HIV Prevention Services Grant, by
and between the City of Lubbock, and the State of Texas Department of State Health Services,
for services related to HIV prevention and treatment. 

5. 5. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0089,
Amendment 34, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant
Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

5. 6. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2024-R0279 authorizing the Mayor to enter into a
professional services agreement with JP Morgan Securities, for investment management
services. 

5. 7. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2024-R0280 designating authorized representatives on

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 11, 2024 Page 3 of 8



5. 7. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2024-R0280 designating authorized representatives on
the City's accounts with the Texas Local Government Investment Pool. 

  

 
5. 8. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0281 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for

and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) street, public use, and right-of-way deed, and all
related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 38, Block AK, of
the GC R.R. Co. Survey, Lubbock County, Texas, on the east side of Upland Avenue, near 45th
Street, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue Project. 

  

 
5. 9. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0282 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for

and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) street, public use, and right-of-way deed, and all
related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 38, Block AK, of
the GC R.R. Co. Survey, Lubbock County, Texas, at the northeast corner of Upland Avenue and
50th Street, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue Project. 

  

 
5. 10. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0283 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for

and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) street, public use, and right-of-way deed, and all
related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 35, Block AK, of
the GC R.R. Co. Survey, Lubbock County, Texas, at the southeast corner of Upland Avenue and
50th Street, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue Project. 

  

 
5. 11. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2024-R0284 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement Contract 17130, with Kimley-Horn and
Associates, Inc., for engineering services for the reconstruction of 34th Street from Upland
Avenue to Milwaukee Avenue. 

  

 
5. 12. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2024-R0285 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Professional Services Agreement Contract 18087, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for engineering
services for water reclamation electrical replacement and monitoring. 

  

 
5. 13. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Public Works Water: Ordinance No. 2024-O0076, amending

Article 22.08 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, in response to the regulatory
requirement to update the Water Use Management Plan every five years. 

  

 
5. 14. Resolution - Public Works Water Utilities: Resolution No. 2024-R0286 authorizing the

Mayor to execute Contract 17642, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for professional engineering
services related to the Wastewater Collection System Master Plan Update.  

  

 
5. 15. Resolution - Public Works Solid Waste: Resolution No. 2024-R0287 authorizing the Mayor

to execute a Letter of Engagement, and related documents, with Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle &
Townsend P.C., for professional services related to the permitting or registration for the future
City of Lubbock Transfer Station Facility. 

  

 
5. 16. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0288 authorizing the Mayor to   

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 11, 2024 Page 4 of 8



5. 16. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0288 authorizing the Mayor to
execute, Amendment No. 1 to the Department of State Health Services Contract No.
HHS001310400001, and all related documents, under the Center for Health Emergency
Preparedness & Response (CHEPR) Grant Program, by and between the City of Lubbock, and
the State of Texas Department of State Health Services (DSHS), for training the public health
workforce and strengthening public health infrastructure and systems. 

  

 
5. 17. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0289 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Amendment No. 1 to the Department of State Health Services Contract No.
HHS001324900033, and all related documents, under the Centers for Disease Control
Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant, by and between the City of Lubbock, and
the State of Texas Department of State Health Services, to support core public health services
and to fund a portion of the salary of the Public Health Director. 

  

 
5. 18. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0290 authorizing the Mayor to

execute an interlocal agreement entitled "Lubbock County Medical Indigent Program Provider
Agreement", and any associated documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the
Lubbock County Hospital District, d/b/a University Medical Center Health Systems, to
cooperate to provide certain public health services for indigent residents of Lubbock County. 

  

 
5. 19. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0276 authorizing a Downtown

Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to J & W
Plumbing Heating & A/C, located at 1012 17th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council. Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from
City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Tim Collins, seconded by Council Member Brayden Rose, to

approve Resolution No. 2024-R0276. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member David Glasheen 

 
5. 20. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0079, for

Zone Case 3224-A, a request of Lone Star Suds, LLC for Centric Capital Partners, Inc., for a
zone change from Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) and Auto-Urban Commercial
District (AC) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 2401 19th Street, located south of
19th Street and west of Avenue X, Ellwood Place Addition, Block 1, the east 140 feet of Lot 1.
 
This item was postponed. 
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 11, 2024 Page 5 of 8



  Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.
Jennifer Wilson, to postpone this item to the July 9, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
5. 21. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Ordinance No. 2024-O0080, for Zone Case

3503, a request of Westar Commercial Realty for Steven F. Burleson, for a zone change from
Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 4505 North
Interstate 27, located west of North Interstate 27, and north of Regis Street, Teal Addition, Lot
2. 

  

 
5. 22. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Ordinance No. 2024-O0081, for Zone Case

3504, a request of R Rios Enterprises 806, LLC for 5 Berg Holdings, LLC, for a zone change
from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 2416,
2406, 2402 Erskine Street and 2407 Grinnell Street, located east of North University Avenue
and north of Erskine Street, the north 480 feet of Tull Addition, Block 1, and approximately 3.3
acres of unplatted land out of Block A, Section 16. 

  

 
5. 23. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 3): Ordinance No. 2024-O0082, for Zone Case

1112-F, a request of Clovis Sign Service for Southwest Convenience Stores, for a zone change
from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at
5002 Quaker Avenue, located south of 50th Street and west of Quaker Avenue, Sylvan Dell
Heights Addition, Block 1, Lot 1-A. 

  

 
5. 24. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2024-O0083, for Zone Case

2925-A, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Diocese of Lubbock, for a zone change from
High Density Residential District (HDR) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), generally
located north of 111th Street and east of Indiana Avenue, on 4.22 acres of land out of John the
Baptist Addition, Tract A. 

  

 
5. 25. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2024-O0084, for Zone Case

3502, a request of Hub City Main Street Investments, LLC, for a zone change from Low Density
Single-Family (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 6708 66th Street, located west of
Norwich Avenue and north of 66th Street, Zephyr Addition, Tract A, and approximately 0.56
acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 35. 

  

 
5. 26. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2024-O0085, for Zone Case

2933-I, a request of Steen Realty Group at Keller Williams Realty for Terra Firma Acquisitions,
LLC, for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and High Density
Residential District (HDR) to Office District (OF) and Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at
9102 and 9602 Milwaukee Avenue, located south of 94th Street, west of Milwaukee Avenue,
and north of 98th Street on 26.6 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 27. 

  

 
5. 27. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Ordinance No. 2024-O0086, for Zone Case   

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 11, 2024 Page 6 of 8



5. 27. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Ordinance No. 2024-O0086, for Zone Case
1893-FF, a request of Delta Land Surveying for Wag 2.0, LLC, for a zone change from Medium
Density Residential District (MDR) to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2), generally
located west of Homestead Avenue and north and south of 3rd Street on approximately 2.07
acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 2. 

  

 
5. 28. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Ordinance No. 2024-O0087, a request for

Zone Case 2538-LL, a request of OJD Engineering, LLC for YATESIIBY LC, for a zone
change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at
7502 and 7446 19th Street, located north of 19th Street and west of Wausau Avenue, Furgeson
Tracts Addition, Lot 1 and approximately 2.545 acres of unplatted land out of Block D6,
Section 1. 

  

 
5. 29. Resolution - City Council: Resolution No. 2024-R0277 authorizing and directing the City

Manager to take the appropriate and necessary action to implement this policy, ensuring that all
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding not previously allocated, and to be expended after
December 31, 2024, be allocated to the West Lubbock Water System Expansion Project.
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Council Member David Glasheen,

to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0277. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
6. Regular Agenda
 
6. 1. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Ordinance No. 2024-O0088, for Zone Case

2016-E, a request of Parkhill for Thomas Kenneth Abraham, for a zone change from Medium
Density Residential District (MDR) to High Density Residential District (HDR), at 2401 through
2413 14th Street and 2402 through 2416 15th Street, located east of University Avenue and
south of 14th Street, Overton Addition, Block 102, Lots 1 through 7, Lots 17 through 24, the
portion of alley between Lots 1 through 7, and Lots 18 through 24.
 
This item was amended.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Tim

Collins, to approve the following amendment: to approve a substitute ordinance that
includes the following language in the recitals: 

"WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lubbock further finds that the proposed
zoning change is not arbitrary or capricious or unreasonable; that the nature of the
proposed zoning change is substantially consistent with neighboring properties;
including Texas Tech University, abundant nearby rental properties, and even new
construction; that the proposed zoning change is suitable for the surrounding area;
that, considering the general welfare of the entire City of Lubbock, the proposed zone
change is beneficial for the community; and that the proposed zoning change would
allow the construction of property that would increase the tax base for the Lubbock
Independent School District and the City of Lubbock, thus benefiting the education of

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 11, 2024 Page 7 of 8



local residents and City services to the surrounding area, respectively; and".

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Brayden

Rose, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0088, as substituted. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris 

 
6. 2. Resolution - Planning: Resolution No. 2024-R0291 establishing the City of Lubbock's intent to

annex an area of land generally described as 374.74 acres south of 146th Street and east of
Frankford Avenue, into Lubbock's corporate limits, and execute a Municipal
Services Agreement with the Highland Oaks Homeowner's Association, for the requested
annexation.
 
Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Tim

Collins, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0291. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 

2:51 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Payne adjourned the meeting.

 
The June 11, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 9th day
of July, 2024.

  
  ____________________________________

MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 11, 2024 Page 8 of 8



 AI# 12616 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 1. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2024-O0090, Amendment 35, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Abandoned Vehicle Fund, Criminal Investigations Fund, and Department of Justice Asset Sharing Fund;
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On June 25, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

I. Amend the FY 2023-24 Abandoned Vehicle Fund by increasing the appropriation by $200,000, from
$1,878,000 to $2,078,000 for training, certification, and additional equipment for Police personnel.  The
additional funding will be for: 

SWAT equipment: rifle team optics, rifle lights, kinetic breaching equipment, night vision, rifle
team thermal scopes
Training and Certification: Cellebrite Certified Operator (CCO), Cellebrite Certified Physical
Analyst (CCPA)
Polygraph operator equipment and certification
Mentalix – digital fingerprint equipment
Forenscope – Investigative tool for Forensic Investigations Unit
Thermal Pole Camera
Partition extensions for Investigations Bureau (cubicles)
Burgers & Badges Event expenses
Wellness Committee – Family Picnic

II. Amend the FY 2023-24 Criminal Investigation Fund by increasing the appropriation by $100,000,
from $199,000 to $299,000 for criminal investigation supplies and equipment.  The additional funding
will be for: 

Tablets for use in Special Operations
CSI Pix – Software used by Forensic Investigations Unit
Pole Cameras for use in Special Operations
Berla – Traffic Investigations tool
Computer system for Forensic Investigations Unit
Scanner – Forensic Investigations Unit
Pole Cameras – Special Operations
Fire suppression system maintenance – Property & Evidence facility

 III. Amend the FY 2023-24 Department of Justice (DOJ) Asset Sharing Fund by increasing the
appropriation by $37,705, from $2,000 to $39,705 for firing range maintenance and repairs.

Fiscal Impact
The additional $200,000 funding for the Abandoned Vehicle Fund will be from excess reserves available



The additional $200,000 funding for the Abandoned Vehicle Fund will be from excess reserves available
in the Abandoned Vehicle Fund.  The additional $100,000 funding for Criminal Investigation will be
from excess reserves available in the Criminal Investigation Fund.  The additional $37,705 funding for
the DOJ Asset Sharing Fund will be from excess reserves in the DOJ Asset Sharing Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 35 







 AI# 12636 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 2. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2024-O0091, Amendment 36, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Parks & Recreation Fees; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On June 25, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

I. Amend the list of Parks and Recreation Fees to add the Soccer League Fee of $250 per team.

Due to demand, the Parks and Recreation staff added a soccer league to the list of recreation
opportunities offered to the citizens of Lubbock.  The majority of new fees and changes to fees are
approved through the annual budget process.  

Fiscal Impact
This is a new fee to the General Fund, therefore the General Fund will receive this additional revenue. 
The actual amount is unknown as this is the first year of this fee.  There will be no change made to the
General Fund Budget since the amount to be received is uncertain.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 36 







 AI# 12637 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 3. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2024-O0092, Amendment 37, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Traffic Capital Improvement Project Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On June 25, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

I. Establish Capital Improvement Project 8700, SL88/FM1585 (130th Street) @ US87, and appropriate
$87,050 for traffic signals. The project will be funded by the Texas Department of Transportation
(TxDOT).

II. Establish Capital Improvement Project 8701, 114th Street and Memphis Avenue, and appropriate
$56,650 for traffic signals. The project will be funded by TxDOT.

Each of the above referenced new Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) are also agreements between the
City of Lubbock and TxDOT. TxDOT will fund both of these CIPs. 

Each CIP will provide funding for: Compensation for City personnel working on the project, equipment
and materials used during installation of the traffic signal controllers, cabinets, video detection as well as
battery backups at the following two intersections: 

SL88/FM1585 (130th Street) and US87 1.
114th Street and Memphis Avenue 2.

Fiscal Impact
The additional $87,050 funding for CIP 8700, SL88/FM 1585(130th Street) @ US87 will be from
TxDOT.
The additional $56,650 funding for CIP 8701, 114th Street & Memphis Avenue will be from TxDOT.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 37 







 AI# 12638 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 4. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2024-O0093, Amendment 38, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Parks & Recreation Capital Project Fund and American Rescue Plan Act Funding; providing for filing;
and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On June 25, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

I. Amend Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 92761, American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Parks –
Walking Trails, by reducing the funding and appropriation by $100,000 and increasing the funding and
appropriation of Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 92768, American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Parks –
Restroom Replacement/Renovation by $100,000. Funding will be ARPA funds.

Capital Improvement Project 92761, ARPA Parks - Walking Trails was first appropriated in FY
2021-22.  This project is to install twelve new walking trails throughout the park system (two trails per
City Council district).
Locations for the Walking Trails include: Aztlan Park, Butler Park, Elmore Park, Hinojosa Park,
Kastman Park, Maedgen Park, Mahon Park, Ratliff Park, Remington Park, Preston Smith Park, Stevens
Park, and Washington Park.

Capital Improvement Project 92768, ARPA Parks - Restroom Replacement/Renovation was first
appropriated in FY2021-22.  This project is to renovate or replace 12 stand-alone restrooms throughout
the City's park system.
Replacements include Aztlan Park, Higinbotham Park, Clapp Park, Mackenzie Park (North), and Maxey
Park.
Renovations include Mackenzie Park (West), Clapp Park (Trinity Ball Field), Mae Simmons Park,
McAlister Park, McCullough Park, Buddy Holly Recreation Area, and Hodges Park.

This $100,000 is needed in CIP 92768 to fund a restroom renovation in Maxey Park.  This transfer of
funds will not impede the construction of the remaining walking trails.

Fiscal Impact
The additional $100,000 funding for CIP 92768, ARPA Parks - Restroom Replacement/Renovation will
be from ARPA Funding, moved from CIP 92761, ARPA Parks - Walking Trails.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments



Attachments
Budget Amendment 38 







 AI# 12639 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 5. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2024-O0094, Amendment 39, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Grant Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On June 25, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.  However, a slight
change has been made to the original budget amendment ordinance.
The amount included on the original budget ordinance was $145,226.  The appropriated grant award
amount to be received from the Texas Department of State Health Services is $145,226. The ordinance
included for 2nd reading has been corrected and is attached.

I. Accept and appropriate $145,226 from the Texas Department of State Health Services for the
Infectious Disease Prevention and Control Unit (IDCU) COVID-19 Grant.

This is an existing grant. The Department of State Health Services (DSHS) was initially awarded to the
Public Health Department in 2020 to support public health with Covid-19 activities for case
investigations, testing, vaccine resources and other follow-up services. Amendment No. 4 will now
include other respiratory pathogens and syndromes. The grant funds a portion of the research analyst and
epidemiologist position. Amendment No. 4 will add $145,226.00 to the contract for the period beginning
with the effective date of this amendment. A budget amendment has been heard for this additional
funding. Amendment No. 4 also revises the Statement of Work, Supplemental Statement of Work,
Revised Budget, which are all outlined in the contract. Amendment No. 4 extends the contract to July
31, 2026.

Fiscal Impact
The additional $145,226 funding for the Infectious Disease Prevention and Control Unit (IDCU) Grant
will be from the Texas Department of State Health Services.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment #39 







 AI# 12651 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 5. 1. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 4 to the Department of State Health Services (DSHS) Contract HHS000812700012,
and all related documents, for SARS-CoV-2, epidemiology, surveillance, and enhanced laboratory
activities, by and between the City of Lubbock, and the State of Texas, acting by and through DSHS.

Item Summary
This is an existing grant initially awarded by the Texas Department of State Health Services (DSHS) to
the City of Lubbock Public Health Department in 2020, to support public health with Covid-19 activities
for case investigations, testing, vaccine resources and other follow-up services.

Amendment No. 4 will add $145,226 to the contract for the period beginning with the effective date of
this amendment. The previous item on this agenda is a budget amendment for this additional funding.

Amendment No. 4 will now include other respiratory pathogens and syndromes. The grant funds a
portion of the research analyst and epidemiologist position. This amendment also revises the Statement
of Work, the Supplemental Statement of Work, and the Revised Budget, which are all outlined in the
contract. Amendment No. 4 extends the contract to July 31, 2026. 

This document requires an electronic signature.

Fiscal Impact
Amendment No. 4 will add $145,226 to the existing contract. The total amount of this contract will not
exceed $493,769.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 

































 AI# 12648 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 6. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 40,
amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Civil Service Positions;
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
This Budget Amendment is a request to take two vacant Police Officer positions and create a new Police
Deputy Chief / Police Captain position and a new Police Sergeant position.  Any changes to civil service
positions must be made by a budget ordinance.

Currently, there are 285 Police Officer positions at pay grade PCS1.  If approved, the number of Police
Officers would be 283.
There are currently 68 Police Sergeant positions at pay grade PCS3.  If approved, the number of Police
Sergeants would be 69.
There are currently 7 Deputy Police Chief / Police Captain positions at pay grade PCS5.  If approved, the
number of Deputy Police Chief / Police Captains would be 8.

The budget ordinance references Exhibit A in making this change.  Exhibit A of the FY 2023-24
Adopted Budget, was passed by the City Council on September 12, 2023 and is page 195 of the Adopted
Budget book.  Page 195 is entitled "Police – Job Grade Summary," and will be amended as it relates to
the civil service positions. In accordance with Section 2.06.109 of the City of Lubbock Code of
Ordinances, the civil service positions, as set forth in the Amendment, are hereby established by
ordinance.
 

Fiscal Impact
The annual fiscal impact to this change is an additional $168,924 to the General Fund.

The entry-level costs for salary and benefits for each position are found below:
Deputy Police Chief / Captain - $176,784
Police Sergeant - $136,587
Police Officer - ($72,224) x 2 = ($144,447)

The fiscal impact for the remaining of this fiscal year (August and September 2024) would be $28,154.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments



Budget Amendment 40 
Exhibit A 







Police ‐ Job Grade Summary Exhibit A

Actual Actual Budget Budget Amended Change 

CLASSIFIED/SWORN JOB GRADE SUMMARY GRADE FY 2020‐21 FY 2021‐22 FY 2022‐23 FY 2023‐24 FY 2023‐24 Budget

Police Chief 143 1                         1                         1                         1                         1                         ‐             

Assistant Police Chief PCS6 3                         3                         3                         3                         3                         ‐             

Deputy Police Chief/Police Captain PCS5 7                         7                         7                         7                         8                         1             

Police Lieutenant PCS4 19                       19                      19                      19                      19                      ‐             

Police Sergeant PCS3 66                       68                      68                      68                      69                      1             

Police Detective/Corporal PCS2 79                       69                      69                      68                      68                      ‐             

Patrol Officer PCS1 277                     265                    278                    285                    283                    (2)           

Police Entry Level II PNCE2 ‐                          ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐             

Police Entry Level 1‐B PNCE1B 13                       13                      ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐             

TOTAL CLASSIFIED SWORN JOB GRADE SUMMARY 465                     445                    445                    451                    451                    ‐             

Actual Actual Budget Budget Amended Change 

NON‐CLASSIFIED NON‐SWORN JOB GRADE SUMMARY GRADE FY 2020‐21 FY 2021‐22 FY 2022‐23 FY 2023‐24 FY 2023‐24 Budget

Administrative Assistant 112 8                         7                         7                         4                         4                         ‐             

Communications Center Manager 126 1                         1                         1                         1                         1                         ‐             

Communications Shift Supervisor 123 6                         6                         6                         6                         6                         ‐             

Crime Analyst 119 2                         4                         4                         4                         4                         ‐             

Fleet Services Unit Supervisor 119 ‐                          1                         1                         1                         1                         ‐             

Fleet Services Unit Attendant 116 ‐                          2                         2                         2                         2                         ‐             

Forensic Laboratory Manager 127 ‐                          1                         1                         1                         1                         ‐             

Forensic Specialist I 123 2                         7                         7                         6                         6                         ‐             

Forensic Specialist II 124 ‐                          ‐                         ‐                         1                         1                         ‐             

Juvenile Services Coordinator 121 1                         1                         1                         1                         1                         ‐             

Laborer 108 1                         1                         1                         1                         1                         ‐             

Lead Administrative Assistant 115 2                         3                         3                         6                         6                         ‐             

Management Assistant 122 2                         2                         2                         2                         2                         ‐             

Parking Control Officer 108 6                         6                         6                         6                         6                         ‐             

Property and Evidence Unit Supervisor 121 ‐                          1                         1                         1                         1                         ‐             

Property Room Attendant 113 4                         4                         7                         7                         7                         ‐             

Public Information Officer 123 1                         5                         2                         2                         2                         ‐             

Public Information Specialist 119 1                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐             

Public Safety Dispatcher I 114 28                       28                      28                      28                      28                      ‐             

Public Safety Dispatcher II 116 15                       15                      15                      15                      15                      ‐             

Public Service Officer 110 13                       13                      13                      13                      13                      ‐             

Records System Manager 126 1                         1                         1                         1                         1                         ‐             

Records System Operator 115 15                       15                      15                      15                      15                      ‐             

Records System Shift Supervisor 118 3                         3                         3                         3                         3                         ‐             

Sex Offender Registration Coordinator 117 1                         1                         1                         1                         1                         ‐             

TOTAL NON‐CLASSIFIED NON‐SWORN JOB GRADE SUMMARY 113                     128                    128                    128                    128                    ‐             

TOTAL JOB GRADE SUMMARY 578                     573                    573                    579                    579                    ‐             



 AI# 12649 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 7. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 41,
amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Airport Capital Project Fund
and Airport Operating Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
I. Amend Capital Improvement Project 92839, Terminal Building Mechanical Systems Improvements,
by increasing the appropriation by $6,279,746, from $497,267 to $6,777,013. Funding changes included
are from the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law Airport Terminal Program (BIL ATP) Grant for $5,294,746,
moving $460,000 from Capital Improvement Project 92361, Terminal Building Remodel, and $525,000
will be from Airport Excess Reserves.

Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 92839 was first appropriated FY 2023-24 to maintain and replace
mechanical systems for the Airport Terminal Building to ensure the comfort and safety of airport patrons.

Replacements are as follows: 
Replace existing Greenheck exhaust fan and curb that serves the boiler flue stack with an exhaust
system specifically designed for boiler flue systems, such as Exhausto. 
Replace all three primary chilled water pumps 
Replace all three condenser water pumps 
Replace HydroChloroFluoroCarbon (HCFC)-123 chillers 
Install refrigerant leak detection system and ASHRAE 15 accessories 
Remove sand filter from chilled water loop 
Replace Cooling Towers 
Replace condenser water sand filter with basin sweep system 
Integrate chilled water and condenser water controls system into the Automated Logic Building
Management System 
Replace all three hot water secondary pumps 
Replace Air Handling Unit (AHU)-025 
Replace AHU-026 
Replace AHU-031 
Replace AHU-032 
Replace AHU-027 
Install dust mitigation items in cooling tower pump rooms 
Replace AHU’s-013 thru -017, & -020 
Boiler Repairs/Replacement 

II. Amend Capital Improvement Project 92361, Terminal Building Remodel by decreasing the
appropriation by $460,000, from $43,775,719 to $43,315,719. The decrease is from Airport Cash.

Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 92361 was first appropriated in FY 2018-19 to remodel the Airport
Terminal Building. This CIP is considered complete and will close at the end of FY 2023-24.



Fiscal Impact
The additional funding for Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 92839, Terminal Building Mechanical
Systems is as follows: 

$5,294,746 will be from the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law Airport Terminal Program (BIL ATP)
Grant
$460,000 will be from Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 92361, Terminal Building Remodel
$525,000 will be from Airport Excess Reserves

Additional funding total is $6,279,746; with new CIP 92839 funding total at $6,777,013.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 41 







 AI# 12671 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 8. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading  Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 42,
amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Operating Budget for Market
Lubbock Inc.-Visit Lubbock and Sports Authority; providing for filing; and providing for a savings
clause.

Item Summary

Amend the FY 2023-24 MLI – Visit Lubbock and Sports Authority Operating Budget as shown in
Exhibit A.

I.

Budget Amendment 42 includes a revision to the operating budget for Market Lubbock, Inc. (MLI) -
Visit Lubbock and Lubbock Sports Authority. This essential procedure is conducted each year.  This is
in an effort to ensure the effective allocation of resources and to support the growth and development of
the City. Individual reasoning for operating budget revisions are included in Exhibit A.

Fiscal Impact
Funding for Visit Lubbock and Lubbock Sports Authority comes from hotel occupancy tax based on
the annual allocation percent for each.  Every year these entities receive only budgeted hotel/motel tax
revenue.  Revenue received over these budgeted amounts are revised annually as part of a budget
amendment and are known as true-up funds.  The budget is changing to account for this additional
revenue as well as changes to expenses.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 42 
BA 42 - Exhibit A 







Visit Lubbock

(Convention and Visitors Bureau and Lubbock Sports)
Proposed Revised Budget

Fiscal Year 2023-24

Approved Approved Approved Proposed Proposed Proposed

 Budget CVB Sports Revised Budget Revised CVB Revised Sports

2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24

REVENUES

Hotel/Motel Tax Revenue 4,902,779 3,697,485 1,205,294 4,902,779            3,697,485 1,205,294            

HOT True-Up - CVB/LSA - 584,522 1   440,824 143,698 

Investment Income 173,000 129,750 43,250 173,000 129,750 43,250 

Sale of Promotional Items 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 

Advertising Income - - 

Events Trust Fund Reimbursement 229,000 229,000 229,000 229,000 

Event Revenue 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 

Rent Income 6,000 4,500 1,500 6,000 4,500 1,500 

Total Revenue Sources 5,337,779             3,833,735             1,504,044             5,922,301            4,274,559 1,647,742            

Utilization of Net Assets 5,480,271 4,110,203 1,370,068 5,480,271            4,110,203 1,370,068            

Grant from CVB - (4,038,748) 4,038,748 - (4,085,050) 4,085,050            

TOTAL REVENUES 10,818,050$          3,905,190$            6,912,860$            11,402,572$        4,299,712$            7,102,860$          

EXPENSES

PERSONNEL

Compensation 1,255,200$            959,200 296,000 1,255,200            959,200 296,000 

Employee Benefits 290,700$              235,900 54,800 290,700 235,900 54,800 

PERSONNEL SUBTOTAL 1,545,900             1,195,100             350,800 1,545,900            1,195,100 350,800 

ADMINISTRATIVE

Bank Charges 1,500 1,130 370 1,500 1,130 370 

Automobile 8,000 6,000 2,000 8,000 6,000 2,000 

Pre-Employment 1,000 750 250 1,000 750 250 

Member Dues/Subscriptions 78,700 59,025 19,675 78,700 59,025 19,675 

Miscellaneous Expense 5,000 3,750 1,250 5,000 3,750 1,250 

Professional Services 198,000 148,500 49,500 258,000 2   193,500 64,500 

Staff Development 10,000 7,500 2,500 10,000 7,500 2,500 

Insurance/Workers Comp. 11,600 8,700 2,900 11,600 8,700 2,900 

Repairs and Maintenance 3,000 2,250 750 3,000 2,250 750 

Capital Asset Purchase 32,000 24,000 8,000 32,000 24,000 8,000 

Business Meetings 4,300 3,230 1,070 4,300 3,230 1,070 

ADMINISTRATIVE SUBTOTAL 353,100 264,835 88,265 413,100 309,835 103,265 

OFFICE

Postage and Shipping 5,000 3,750 1,250 5,000 3,750 1,250 

Rent 108,700 81,525 27,175 108,700 81,525 27,175 

Storage Fees 3,000 2,250 750 3,000 2,250 750 

Supplies 25,000 18,750 6,250 25,000 18,750 6,250 

Telephone 26,000 19,500 6,500 26,000 19,500 6,500 

OFFICE SUBTOTAL 167,700 125,775 41,925 167,700 125,775 41,925 

MARKETING/SALES

Industry Conventions 121,500 91,130 30,370 121,500 91,130 30,370 

Incentives 115,000 115,000 - 115,000 115,000 - 

Convention and Sports Sales 998,300 540,800 457,500 1,122,800            3   665,300 457,500 

Servicing Items 90,000 67,500 22,500 90,000 67,500 22,500 

Site Tours 180,500 170,500 10,000 180,500 170,500 10,000 

Marketing 1,501,100             1,125,850 375,250 1,601,100            4   1,200,850 400,250 

Public Relations 98,100 83,100 15,000 98,100 83,100 15,000 

Sports Servicing 521,250 - 521,250 671,250 5   - 671,250 

MARKETING/SALES SUBTOTAL 3,625,750 2,193,880 1,431,870 4,000,250            2,393,380 1,606,870            

TOURISM CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

Tourism Capital Projects 5,125,600             125,600 5,000,000 5,275,622            6   275,622 5,000,000            

TOURISM CAP IMPR SUBTOTAL 5,125,600             125,600 5,000,000 5,275,622            275,622 5,000,000            

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE 10,818,050$          3,905,190$            6,912,860$            11,402,572$        4,299,712$            7,102,860$          

0$  -$  -$  -$  -$  (0)$  

Exhibit A



Visit Lubbock
Schedule of Explanation for Selected Accounts

Proposed Revised Budget
Fiscal Year 2023-24

Proposed
Approved Revised
2023-24 2023-24 Difference Explanation

REVENUES
1 HOT True-Up - CVB/LSA -              584,522      584,522 City estimated HOT collections allocated to Visit Lubbock for

FY2023-24, which remains flat.

EXPENSES
2 Professional Services 198,000      258,000      60,000 Increase for consultant fees related to new projects.

3 Convention and Sports Sales 998,300      1,122,800   124,500 New data service contract and FAM event sponsorships

4 Marketing 1,501,100   1,601,100   100,000 New marketing opportunities for travel promotion.

5 Sports Servicing 521,250      671,250      150,000 Rotating events potentially may need initial contracts & incentive
payments prior to fiscal year end.

6 Tourism Capital Projects 5,125,600   5,275,622   150,022 True-up available to assist with expenses related to ball fields as
allowed by TX Statute 351.101(a)(7) and visitor center as allowed 
by TX Statute 351.101(a)(1)



 AI# 12675 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 9. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance:  Consider a resolution to suspend for forty-five (45) days, the effective date
proposed by West Texas Gas Utility, LLC, to increase rates under the Gas Reliability Infrastructure
Program.

Item Summary
Under section 104.301 of the Gas Utility Regulatory Act (GURA), a gas utility is allowed to request
increases in its rates to recover a return on investments it makes between general rate cases.  This section
of GURA is commonly referred to as the "GRIP" statute, that is, the "Gas Reliability Infrastructure
Program".

Under a decision by the Supreme Court of Texas, the Court concluded that a filing made under the GRIP
statute permitted gas utilities the opportunity to recover return on capital expenditures made during the
interim period between general rate cases, by applying for an interim rate adjustment, and that
proceedings under the GRIP statute did not contemplate either adjudicative hearings or substantive
review of utilities' filings for interim rate adjustments.  Instead, the Court concluded, the GRIP statute
provides for a ministerial reveiw of the utility's filings to ensure compliance with the GRIP statute and
the Railroad Commission's rules, and that is within the Railroad Commission's authority to preclude
cities from intervening and obtaining a hearing before the Railroad Commission.

On or about May 17, 2024, West Texas Gas Utility, LLC ("WTG") filed for an increase in gas utility
rates under the GRIP, resulting in a requested increase in the monthly customer charge (without gas cost)
from $20.62 to $21.90 for residential customers, and from $37.69 to $40.28 for non-residential
customers (Commercial, Public Authority, and Non-Profit).

In light of the Texas Supreme Court's opinion, the City's ability to review and effectuate a change in
WTG's requested increase is limited at best.  Nonetheless, to allow for a limited review of WTG's GRIP
application, it is recommended that the City suspend WTG's proposed effective date from July 16, 2024,
for forty-five (45) days, to August 30, 2024, as allowed by state law, so that the City may evaluate
whether the data and calculations in WTG's rate application are correctly done.  A copy of the full GRIP
filing may be requested from the City Secretary's Office.

Fiscal Impact
Fiscal impact will be based on customer class, as stated in WTG's requested increase.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments



Resolution 









 AI# 12672 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 10. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute, for and on
behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Compromise Settlement Agreement and Release of All Claims, in City
of Lubbock v. Trumble Steel Erectors, Inc. et. al.; Cause No. DC-2024-CV-0165.

Item Summary
The settlement agreement arises out of an October 19, 2021 incident in which the Massengale Unit #8
was damaged during conveyance of the unit for transport to a repair facility.

Fiscal Impact
Recovery of $1,100,000 to the FY 2023-24 Electric Utility Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution 
Agreement 





 

 

CAUSE NO. DC-2024-CV-0165 

CITY OF LUBBOCK, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

TRUMBLE STEEL ERECTORS, INC. 
D/B/A TRUMBLE CRANE AND 
RIGGING, 

Defendant. 

§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF
 
 

 
 

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS

237TH DISTRICT COURT

 
CONFIDENTIAL SETTLEMENT, RELEASE AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT  

 

THIS CONFIDENTIAL SETTLEMENT, RELEASE, and INDEMNITY AGREEMENT 

is entered into on its date of execution by and between Plaintiff CITY OF LUBBOCK and Defendant 

TRUMBLE STEEL ERECTORS, INC. D/B/A TRUMBLE CRANE AND RIGGING for good and valuable 

considerations, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties (as defined below) agree 

as follows: 

I. DEFINITIONS 

a. “City” or “Plaintiff” shall refer to City of Lubbock. 

b. “Trumble” or “Defendant” shall refer to Trumble Steel Erectors, Inc. d/b/a Trumble 

Crane and Rigging. 

c. The “Drop Event” shall refer to the incident made the basis of this lawsuit in which 

the gas-powered turbine generator was dropped. 

d. The “Turbine” refers to the gas-powered turbine generator made the basis of this 

lawsuit.  

e. The “Contract” refers to the alleged oral contract made the basis of Plaintiff’s 

breach of contract claim. 



 

 

f. The “Lawsuit” shall mean the lawsuit bearing Cause No. DC-2024-CV-0165 which 

is styled City of Lubbock v. Trumble Steel Erectors, Inc. d/b/a Trumble Crane and Rigging, which 

is pending in the 237th Judicial District Court of Lubbock County, Texas. 

g. The “Agreement” shall mean this Confidential Settlement Release and Indemnity 

Agreement. 

h. “All Claims” means all existing and future claims, demands, complaints, actions 

and causes of action, known or unknown, asserted or unasserted, whether owned or obtained 

through assignment, for all existing and future damages and remedies that arise out of or are related 

to the Contract the Drop Event or could have been brought in any court, tribunal, or forum, in this 

or any other jurisdiction, in the United States of America or anywhere else, related directly or 

indirectly to the transactions and occurrences set forth in the Lawsuit. Under this definition, “All 

Claims” includes but is not limited to all claims, counterclaims, demands, lawsuits, obligations, 

losses, costs, expenses, remedies, and causes of action of any nature, whether in tort, contract, 

intentional act, or arising under or by virtue of any judicial decision, statute, regulation, ordinance, 

or rule, for past, present, and future injuries, property or economic damage, business interruption 

damages, and for all other losses and damages of any kind, including but not limited to, all actual 

damages, exemplary and punitive damages (if any), penalties of any kind and prejudgment and 

post-judgment interest, costs, and attorney’s fees. “All Claims” further includes but is not limited 

to all elements of damages, remedies, and claims, demands, and causes of action that are now 

recognized by law or that may be created or recognized in the future, including without limitation, 

creation or recognition by statute, regulation, ordinance, rule, or judicial decision. “All Claims” 

further includes but is not limited to any claims for subrogation, attorney’s fees, liens, workers’ 

compensation of any and all kind, subrogation interests, punitive damages, negligence, gross 



 

 

negligence (if any), negligent hiring, negligent entrustment, strict liability, products liability, 

breach of warranty, property damage, knowing conduct, intentional conduct, and any other 

possible claims or causes of action, as well as any and all liability for damages, penalties, loss of 

benefits of any kind, punitive or exemplary damages of any kind (if any), attorney’s fees, court 

costs, and maintenance, prejudgment interest of any kind, post-judgment interest of any kind, or 

any other possible claims for damages, past, present, or future, known or unknown, fixed or 

contingent, and whether or not asserted against any of the Parties herein, arising out of or resulting 

from any claims or causes of action asserted in the Lawsuit or which arise under the Contract. 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the term “All Claims” shall not be construed so 

as to encompass or include claims or damages held by or sustained by the City of Lubbock other 

than those occasioned by the Drop Event as described in the lawsuit. 

II. SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE 

The Parties agree as follows: 

A. MUTUAL RELEASES AND DISCHARGE 

1. Release by City of Lubbock 

In consideration of this Agreement (as well as the releases contained therein), the Plaintiff 

hereby completely releases, forever discharges and holds harmless Trumble from All Claims as 

defined herein, any and all past, present, or future claims, demands, obligations, actions, suits, 

causes of action, rights, damages, whether based in tort, contract, statutory action, or other theory 

of recovery, known or unknown, fixed or contingent, liquidated or unliquidated whether or not 

asserted, arising from or related to the Drop Event or which would arise from the Contract 

including all damages, whether for compensatory or punitive damages (if any) which City of 

Lubbock now has or which may hereafter accrue or otherwise be acquired. Notwithstanding 



 

 

anything herein to the contrary, this release shall not be construed so as to encompass or include 

claims or damages held by or sustained by the City of Lubbock other than those occasioned by the 

Drop Event as described in the lawsuit. 

 2. Release by Trumble 

In consideration of this Agreement (as well as the releases contained therein), Trumble 

hereby completely releases, forever discharges and holds harmless City of Lubbock from All 

Claims as defined herein, any and all past, present, or future claims, demands, obligations, actions, 

suits, causes of action, rights, damages, whether based in tort, contract statutory action, or other 

theory of recovery, known or unknown, fixed or contingent, liquidated or unliquidated whether or 

not asserted, arising from or related to the Drop Event or which arise from the Contract including 

all damages, whether for compensatory or punitive (if any) which Trumble now has or which may 

hereafter accrue or otherwise be acquired and all claims asserted by Trumble against City of 

Lubbock in the Lawsuit. This Release does not extend to other projects between Trumble and City 

of Lubbock. 

 3. No release for Breach of this Agreement 

Notwithstanding the releases contained in Section II of the Agreement, the Parties do not 

release each other for claims arising out of one Party’s breach of this Agreement. In the event 

Defendant breach this Agreement by failing to perform its payment obligations set forth in II(B) 

of this Agreement, Trumble shall pay to the City any legal fees incurred in the enforcement of this 

Agreement. 

 4. Releases Given Voluntarily 

It is understood and agreed that these releases are being given voluntarily by the Parties 

and are not based upon any representations or statements of any kind made by any other Party, 



 

 

their attorneys, agents, representatives, or employees as to the merits, legal liability, or value of 

the claims in the Lawsuit. The provision of any state, federal, local or territorial law or statute 

providing in substance that releases shall not extend to claims, demands, injuries, or damages 

which are unknown or unsuspected to exist at the time to the person executing such release are 

hereby expressly waived, after full consultation with counsel to the extent permissible by law. 

B. PAYMENTS 

For and in consideration of Plaintiff entering into this Agreement, and for the release, 

discharge and the other agreements contained herein, Defendant agrees to pay the Plaintiff the total 

sum of ONE MILLION AND ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS AND ZERO CENTS 

($1,100,000) (the “Settlement Amount”). The payment of the Settlement Amount is due on or 

before July 12, 2024. It is acknowledged by the Parties that no portion of the proceeds paid under 

this agreement represent exemplary or punitive damages or statutory damages, not pre-judgment 

or post-judgment interest. 

C. DISMISSAL WITH PREJUDICE 

Plaintiff, for the consideration specified in this Agreement, agrees to dismiss the Lawsuit 

with prejudice thereby releasing any claims which Plaintiff may have or could have at any time in 

the future against Defendant in any case arising out of the Contract or the Drop Event made the 

basis of this lawsuit. All costs shall be borne by the party incurring the same. 

D. DISPUTED CASE 

All Parties agree that the liability of the Defendant is expressly denied, and that the 

payment of the consideration recited herein for this Agreement is not to be considered an admission 



 

 

of liability on the part of the Defendant. Rather, such consideration is paid to compromise disputed 

claims, avoid the expense and uncertainties of litigation and to buy peace. All liability is expressly 

denied.  

The Parties further represent and warrant that no other person or entity has any interest in 

the claims referred to in this Settlement Agreement, and that they have not sold, assigned, 

transferred, conveyed, or otherwise disposed of any of the claims, demands, obligations, or causes 

of action referred to in this Agreement and the Parties further agree that they will not seek 

contribution, subrogation, or indemnification from any of the Parties or the Parties’ insurers as a 

result of the Contract or the Drop Event. 

E. EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Settlement, Release, and Indemnity Agreement shall become effective on July 12, 

2024. 

F. LACK OF PROVIDING TAX CONSEQUENCES 

The Defendant has not made any representations regarding any tax consequences related 

to this settlement. 

G. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Parties with regard to the 

matters set forth herein and shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the executors, 

administrators, personal representatives, heirs, successors, and assigns of each. 



 

 

This Agreement shall be interpreted, governed by, and construed in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Texas, without giving effect to conflicts of laws. 

This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, oral or written, made with respect to the 

subject matter hereof, and it contains the entire agreement of the parties. 

The Parties agree that the legal doctrines of mutual and unilateral mistake shall not apply 

to the interpretation of this Agreement. 

Notwithstanding the provisions set forth in Section II(A)(4) of this Agreement, each party 

hereto shall bear all attorney’s fees, expert fees, court costs, and any other expenses arising from 

or relating to the actions of its own counsel, the Lawsuit, the Agreement or any matter or document 

referred to herein. 

This Agreement may be executed in multiple original counterparts, each of which may be 

treated as an original. 

 
  



Executed this ______ day of ______________ , 2024. 

Representative of City of Lubbock. 

Executed this _______ day of _______________ , 2024. 

Representative of Trumble Crane and Rigging

DocuSign Envelope ID: 394AB826-A8BA-4D78-88C4-4FE412479623

July1.00

martin.tonya
Text Box
1st



 AI# 12628 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 11. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 1 to
the Professional Services Agreement Contract 17790, with Enprotec / Hibbs & Todd, Inc., for the
Northeast Sanitary Sewer Interceptor Intermediate Lift Station Project.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock 2020 Wastewater Collection System Master Plan has determined that surcharging
conditions exist at the confluence where the Canyon Lakes Sanitary Sewer Interceptor and the Northeast
Sanitary Sewer Interceptor combine.

As these sewer sheds continue to experience growth, the existing capacity limitations within the
combined Canyon Lakes Interceptor line will be worsened. In order to alleviate these surcharge
conditions, Enprotec/ Hibbs & Todd, Inc. will perform final design services for a new intermediate
sanitary sewer lift station to intercept and convey a portion of the excess flows to an alternative
interceptor line within the Northeast Sewer Shed that does not utilize the Canyon Lakes Interceptor line.

Staff recommends the award of Amendment No. 1 to Contract 17790, with Enprotec / Hibbs & Todd,
Inc. with a 12-month extension to the contract for additional professional services for lift station design.

Fiscal Impact
Amendment No. 1 to Contract 17790, for $195,000, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92844,
Lift Station Rehabilitation.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering 

Attachments
Resolution 
Amendment No. 1 
Contract 17790 
Location Exhibit 
CIP Detail 
Budget Detail 























































E F M 40-E C R 6600

E F M 2641-E C R 6300

A
V

E
 Q

MARSHA SHARP FWY

N
 A

V
E 

Q
 D

R

ID
ALOU R

D

PARKWAY DR

E
 L

O
O

P
 2

8
9

IN
T

E
R

ST
A

TE
27

NE
LOOP

289

N
IN

T
E

R
ST

A
T

E
27

N LOOP 289

3
0
"

30
"

30
"

24"

30"

30"

24"

2
4
"

30"

24"

24
"

2
4
"

3
0
"

20"

18
"

12
"

30"

3
0
"

24"

24"

24"

24"

21"

24"

2
7
"

2nd & Hartford

25th & Knoxville

30th & Nashville

23rd & Quaker

Garrison

Loop 289

Children's Home

Windmill Center

Texas Tech Police

Mackenzie Park Amphitheater

Southeast Water Reclamation Plant

Burl Huffman

±

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the
Government Code, this product is for informational purposes and may
not have be prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or
surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Amendment 1 for
Contract 17790

0 1 2
Miles

Proposed Lift Station
and Force Main

NE Loop 289
Interceptor Line

Northwest Interceptor
Line

Canyon Lakes
Interceptor Line

Proposed Alternative
Interceptor Line

Proposed Lift
Station

Lift Station

Reclamation Plant

Interceptors for
Contract 17790

Interceptor

Force Mains

Streams

Railroads

Streets

Lubbock City Limits

34th Sewer Shed

50th Sewer Shed

Downtown Sewer
Shed

Northeast Sewer
Shed

Northwest Sewer
Shed



City of Lubbock
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
July 9, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92844
Capital Project Name: Lift Station Rehabilitation

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Contract 17790 with eHT for LS design  $                    49,500
Staff time                          6,504

Agenda Item July 9, 2024
Amendment No. 1 to Contract 17790                      195,000

Encumbered/Expended To Date                      251,004

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Construction, lift station rehabilitation                   1,198,996

Remaining Appropriation                                  -

Total Appropriation  $               1,450,000



Project Scope

This project includes the  design,  purchase ,  installat ion,  and replacement of the  e lectrical and mechanical equipment at  L ift
Stat ions.  This project also includes the  installat ion of new infrastructure  as needed for the  sanitary  sewer collect ion
system. 

Project Justi�cation

Lift Station equipment in many areas of Lubbock is aged and replacement parts are increasingly hard to
obtain. The equipment needs to be updated with newer equipment and also is able to handle continued
growth in the Lubbock area. This project includes the design and construction of the northeast
intermediate lift station and force main. 

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Growth and Development
Fiscal Discipline
Community Improvement
Redeveloment

FY 2023-24 $1,450,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2023-O0108

Project Dates Project Location

Northeast Intermediate Lift Station:
Feasibility Study: 04/2024
Design Start: 06/2024
Design Completion: 12/2024
Bid for Construction: 01/2025
Award Bid: 03/2025
Construction Start: 04/2025
Construction Completion: 12/2025

City-wide

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Design $200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Construction $1,250,000 $1,300,000 $350,000 $400,000 $450,000 $500,000 $500,000

TOTAL $1,450,000 $1,300,000 $350,000 $400,000 $450,000 $500,000 $500,000

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Water/Wastewater Fund Cash $1,450,000 $1,300,000 $350,000 $400,000 $450,000 $500,000 $0

TOTAL $1,450,000 $1,300,000 $350,000 $400,000 $450,000 $500,000 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Facilities Maint & Custodial $0 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500

Consumable Supplies $0 $2,400 $2,400 $2,400 $2,400 $2,400

CIP 92844CIP 92844 Lift Station Rehabilitation Lift Station Rehabilitation
Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: Mary Gonzales - WastewaterProject Manager: Mary Gonzales - Wastewater

TOTAL $0 $4,900 $4,900 $4,900 $4,900 $4,900



 AI# 12646 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 12. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Traffic Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 17627, with Kimley Horn and Associates, to develop a safety action plan as part of the
Safe Streets for All Program.

Item Summary
The purpose of the Safe Streets for All Grant Program is to improve roadway safety by significantly
reducing or eliminating roadway fatalities and serious injuries. The program is handled in two parts; the
development of a comprehensive safety action plan and the implementation of that plan.

The City issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for services related to the development of a safety action
plan. The consultant will collect crash data from locations throughout the City, and develop a set of
deliverables including a crash heat map, a high crash intersections map, and a bicycle and pedestrian
crash heat map.  Utilizing this data, the consultant will identify roadways throughout the City that should
be a priority for short and long-range projects to improve safety throughout the City for all roadway
users.

Once the safety action plan is created, the City will be eligible to apply for federal funding to implement
countermeasures identified in the safety projects developed by the consultant.

In response to RFP-24-17627-YB, proposals were received and opened on April 4, 2024, and were
evaluated using the following criteria:

• 20 points for the consultant's related experience;
• 20 points for qualifications of the project's manager and key staff;
•15 points for the consultant's understanding of the project's scope and knowledge of local/regional
issues;
•15 points for the consultant's understanding of the project;
•15 points for the consultant's current workload and ability availability for this project; and
•15 points for price.

After the proposals were evaluated, the following ranking was obtained. 
  

Consultant Points/100
Kimley Horn and Associates, Inc., Richardson, Texas 97.23
The Goodman Corporation, Houston, Texas 93.25
Toole Design Group, LLC, Austin, Texas 89.26
TJKM, Inc., Pleasanton, California 86.33
QHSE Energy Services, LLC, Katy, Texas 42.60



Staff recommends awarding the contract to the highest ranked proposer, Kimley Horn and Associates,
Inc. of Richardson, Texas.  After negotiations, staff reached an agreement for an amount not to exceed
$160,128.

Fiscal Impact
The total of the agreement is estimated to be $160,128.00.
$160,000.00 is available in Special Grant Account 85018.8801.
Up to $160,000.00 will be reimbursed to the City by the Federal Highway Administration, as part of the
Safe Streets for All Program.  

This grant requires a 20% local match.  The local match may include both cash, as well as in-kind
contributions. It is anticipated that the majority of the local match will be in-kind contributions
through work completed by the Traffic Management Department.  All other funds will come from the
Traffic Management Operations Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 
Project Summary 





Contract 17627 
City of Lubbock 

Consulting Services to Develop City of Lubbock Safety Action Plan 

Agreement 

This Service Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of the          day 

of ___________ 2024 (“Effective Date”) by and between  Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.  

(the Contractor), and the City of Lubbock (the “City”).     

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City has issued a Request for Proposals 24-17627-YB, Consulting 

Services to Develop City of Lubbock Safety Action Plan and 

WHEREAS, the proposal submitted by the Contractor has been selected as the proposal 

which best meets the needs of the City for this service; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor desires to perform as an independent contractor to provide 

Consulting Services to Develop City of Lubbock Safety Action Plan, upon terms and conditions 

maintained in this Agreement; and 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the 

City and Contractor agree as follows:  

City and Contractor acknowledge the Agreement consists of the following exhibits which 

are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, listed in their order of priority in the 

event of inconsistent or contradictory provisions: 

1. This Agreement

2. Exhibit A – Scope of Services
3. Exhibit B – Fee Breakdown
4. Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements

Scope of Work 

Contractor shall provide the services that are specified in Exhibit A. The Contractor shall comply 

with all the applicable requirements set forth in Exhibit B and Exhibit C attached hereto. 

Article 1 

1.1 The term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and continues without 

interruption for a term of seven (7) months. If the Firm determines that additional time is 

required to complete the Services, the Director of Traffic Management, may, but is not 

obligated to, in his or her discretion, execute an agreement to grant up to an additional two 

(2) months of time so long as the amount of the consideration does not increase.

1.2 The Contractor must maintain the insurance coverage required during the term of this 

contract including any extensions. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that 

valid insurance is on file with the Purchasing and Contract Management Department as 

required by contract or contract may be terminated for non-compliance.  



 

Article 2 Miscellaneous. 

2.1 This Agreement is made in the State of Texas and shall for all purposes be construed 

in accordance with the laws of said State, without reference to choice of law 

provisions. 

2.2 This Agreement is performable in, and venue of any action related or pertaining to 

this Agreement shall lie in, Lubbock, Texas. 

2.3 This Agreement and its Exhibits contains the entire agreement between the City 

and Contractor and supersedes any and all previous agreements, written or oral, 

between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof.  No amendment or 

modification of the terms of this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties unless 

reduced to writing and signed by both parties. 

2.4       This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed 

an original. 

2.5 In the event any provision of this Agreement is held illegal or invalid, the remaining 

provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. 

2.6 The waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by any parties or the 

failure of any parties otherwise to insist upon strict performance of any provision 

hereof shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or of any subsequent 

failure to perform. 

2.7       This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and 

their respective heirs, representatives and successors and may be assigned by 

Contractor or the City to any successor only on the written approval of the other 

party. 

2.8 All claims, disputes, and other matters in question between the Parties arising out 

of or relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof, shall be formally discussed 

and negotiated between the Parties for resolution.  In the event that the Parties are 

unable to resolve the claims, disputes, or other matters in question within 30 days 

of written notification from the aggrieved Party to the other Party, the aggrieved 

Party shall be free to pursue all remedies available at law or in equity. 

2.9 At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly 

authorized audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and 

at reasonable times, reserves the right to audit Contractor's records and books 

relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract.  In the event such 

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor 

shall refund the City the full amount of such overpayments within 30 days of such 

audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to deduct such amounts 

owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

    2.10 The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, 

equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all 

forms of relief in a court of competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be 

subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted right to seek 



 

judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, 

and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this 

provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, this provision shall 

control. 

     2.11    The contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, 

without written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management.  

Should consent be given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall 

provide proof of insurance from the Subcontractor that complies with all contract 

insurance requirements document, this provision shall control.  

2.12 Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor 

has read, fully understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and 

conditions and the descriptive material contained herein and any additional 

associated documents and Amendments. The City disclaims any terms and 

conditions provided by the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties. 

In the event of conflict between these terms and conditions and any terms and 

conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein 

shall prevail. The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed 

upon by the parties, and any prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

2.13 Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign 

Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas 

Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a vendor 

that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with 

or provide supplies or service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization. 

2.14 Texas Public Information Act.  The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, 

Government Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees 

that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or vendor knowingly or 

intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. To the extent 

Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor 

agrees to:  (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contract as 

provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body 

for the duration of the contract; (2) promptly provide to the governmental body any 

contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession 

of the entity on request of the governmental body; and (3) on completion of the 

contract, either: (A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting 

information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity; 

or (B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract as provided by 

the records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body. 

2.15 No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, 

a) This section applies only to a contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity 

and a company with 10 or more full-time employees; and (2) has a value of 

$100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public funds of the 

governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract with 

a company for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification 



 

from the company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel 

during the term of the contract. 

 

2.16 Texas Government Code 2274. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor 

verifies that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration  of  the  contract,  have  a  

practice,  policy,  guidance,  or  directive  that  discriminates against a firearm entity 

or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of 

the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract.  If Contractor is a 

company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of 

at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government 

Code Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that 

discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will not 

discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade 

association. 

 

2.17 Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration 

of the contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 

2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract.  If 

Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement 

has a value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas 

Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will 

not boycott energy companies during the term of the Agreement. This verification 

is not required for an agreement where a governmental entity determines that these 

requirements are inconsistent with the governmental entity’s constitutional or 

statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt 

obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of 

funds. 

 

2.18 Confidentiality. The Contractor shall retain all information received from or 

concerning the City and the City's business in strictest confidence and shall not 

reveal such information to third parties without prior written consent of the City, 

unless otherwise required by law. 
 

2.19 Indemnify. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the city of Lubbock 

and its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, 

losses, damages, claims, or liability of any kind, character, type, or description, 

including without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all expenses of litigation, 

court costs, and attorney's fees, for injury or death to any person, or injury to any 

property, received or sustained by any person or persons or property, to the extent 

arising out of, related to or occasioned by, the negligent acts of the Contractor, its 

agents, employees, and/or subcontractors, related to the performance, operations or 

omissions under this agreement and/or the use or occupation of city owned 

property. The indemnity obligation provided herein shall survive the expiration or 

termination of this agreement. 

 

 

 





Kimley-Horn Page 1 of 9 6/18/2024 

EXHIBIT “A” 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Agreement between the City of Lubbock, Texas (City) 
and Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. (Consultant) 

For the following project: 

Development of a  
Comprehensive Safety Action Plan (CSAP) for the City of Lubbock 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The Consultant will conduct a targeted safety analysis to identify a high-injury network (HIN) and 
develop a Comprehensive Safety Action Plan (CSAP) for the high crash density roads in the City 
of Lubbock. The CSAP’s development will integrate public engagement and an internal City of 
Lubbock Vision Zero Task Force to provide direction throughout the process. The final CSAP will 
identify projects, programs, and policies for the City to implement all aimed at adopting a Vision 
Zero type policy and a commitment to reducing roadway fatalities through better roadway and 
intersection design. 

The Consultant shall perform the following Professional Services: 

TASK SUMMARY 

Task 1: Project Management and Meetings 

This task is intended to run concurrently through the planning process. Task 1 covers the time 
intended for initial set-up and coordination over the duration of the project. Within this task are 3 
anticipated deliverables that are split into subtasks. 

1.1 Project Workplan 

The Consultant will kick off the project by creating a workplan that serves as a document for both 
the internal project team and the City’s team and sets expectations for communication guidelines, 
upcoming tasks, and overall project progress. The workplan will be used as a guide during 
progress meetings to illustrate how our progress compares with the initial schedule. 

1.2 Request for Data 

The Consultant will create a request for data list with technical data and applicable documents 
needed from the City, including items identified in the scope of work. This will allow our team to 
begin the Needs Assessment, with all the City’s data organized into one central database. The 
Consultant will create and provide a ShareFile link to host all appropriate project data. The data 
to be requested from the City includes but is not limited to the following: 

• City Limits

• ETJ

• County Parcel data with building (living area) square footage and state land use code

• Building Footprints

• Existing Public Facilities (parks, schools, municipal sites, etc.)

• Existing Land Use

• Existing Zoning Map



Kimley-Horn Page 2 of 9 6/18/2024 

• Master Thoroughfare Plan 

• Existing Roadway Inventory (centerlines with number of lanes, presence of medians, 

and other cross section information) 

• Existing Trails, Sidewalks, or other Pedestrian Infrastructure 

• Existing Bicycle Facilities 

• Roadway Projects Currently in Development or Planned for Future Development 

• Floodplain Data or Other Natural Barriers 

• Railroads 

• Freight Routes 

• Existing Traffic Counts 

Using the data collected from the City and other sources such as TxDOT and the 
Census/American Community Survey, The Consultant will create the following maps to 
understand existing conditions for the CSAP: 
 

• Existing Roadway Network 

• Existing Bicycle & Pedestrian Network 

• Existing Rail & Freight Network 

• Current Roadway Projects 

• Existing Congestion (Volume-to-Capacity Ratio) 

• Transportation & Economic Disadvantaged Census Tracts 

 

1.3 Vision Zero Task Force Meetings 
  
It is anticipated that the City will create an internal working group (Vision Zero Task Force) to act 
as the primary stakeholders throughout the CSAP’s development, meeting with the Consultant’s 
project team as needed virtually.  
 
To establish an ongoing safety effort in the City of Lubbock, a Vision Zero Task Force will be 
created to oversee the CSAP’s development at key touchpoints in the process. The City will 
identify the members to serve on the Task Force. It is recommended that Task Force members 
represent a variety of professionals relevant to the commitment and improvement of roadway 
safety such as police department, fire department, planning, engineering (operations), Lubbock 
MPO, West Texas Cycling Association, and CitiBus. In total, The Consultant will send up to two 
(2) team members for the “In-Person” meetings mentioned below. The Task Force meetings that 
will follow the below format:   
 

• Meeting 1: Kick-Off & Goal Setting (Virtual) 

• Meeting 2: High-Injury Network Results (In-Person) 

• Meeting 3: Policy Review/Action Plan (In-Person) 

• Meeting 4: Final CSAP Review (Virtual) 

 

Task 1 Deliverables: Project Workplan, Data Needs Request, Existing Conditions Maps, Vision 
Zero Task Force Meetings (4) 
 
 
 
 



Kimley-Horn Page 3 of 9 6/18/2024 

 
Task 2: Public Engagement 
 
2.1 Community Engagement Plan 
  
The project team will develop a plan for community and stakeholder (public) outreach and a 
strategy for communication. This Community Engagement Plan (CEP) will incorporate outreach 
and engagement methods that foster meaningful participation and provide needed input for the 
successful development and implementation of the CSAP. The CEP will also identify a list of key 
stakeholders to make sure the project team is involving and addressing various interest groups’ 
concerns. The strategy will leverage existing communication channels and identify any 
supplemental strategies needed to educate and engage the community on the project. 
 
2.2 Public Meetings 
  
Engaging with the public is important for maintaining transparency and encouraging strong 
communication channels with the public. The city will host two public meetings as “pop-up” style 
events that utilize the City’s already existing public events. The Consultant will send one (1) local 
team member to be in attendance and help assist the city as needed.  
 
We anticipate the first pop-up meeting to take place after the needs assessment is completed but 
will be presented as a “blank canvas” opportunity to give feedback without recommendations to 
respond to. Our intent is to incorporate public ideas with other technical analysis to present as 
recommendations, maps, cross sections, and policy recommendations at the second pop-up 
meeting for confirmation of draft results, which will also be hosted by the city. The Consultant will 
send one (1) local team member to be in attendance and help assist the city as needed. 
 
Task 2 Deliverables: Pop-Up Meetings (2) 
 
 
 
Task 3: Equity and Underserved Community Evaluation 
 
The Consultant will conduct an equity analysis with the goal of making the CSAP responsive to 
the needs and priorities of all communities and promoting equitable outcomes across the region. 
The following equity activities will be conducted. 
 
3.1 Equity Analysis 
  
The Consultant will prepare an equity analysis to support a SS4A CSAP that is responsive to the 
needs and priorities of all communities in the study area. The Consultant will complete the 
following equity analysis activities: 
 

• The Consultant will develop a map and corresponding database that includes the 

geographic location and physical characteristics of areas of underserved population 

as it relates to equity and safety factors in the SS4A CSAP. The Consultant will use 

the SS4A Underserved Community Mapping Tool to identify underserved areas which 

utilizes Census tracts identified in the USDOT Equitable Transportation Community 

Explorer Tool and Census tracts identified in the Climate and Economic Justice 

Screening Tool. 

• The Consultant will analyze safety outputs from the safety analysis against regional 

underserved census tracts, minority community populations, household income, and 



Kimley-Horn Page 4 of 9 6/18/2024 

other available census shapefile data to determine specific locations for targeted 

roadway safety improvements that will impact underserved communities. 

• The Consultant will identify specific underserved community Census tracts that are 

most affected by crashes, and this data will be presented by transportation mode. 

• The Consultant will assess the demographic characteristics of these communities, 

including race, ethnicity, income, and other relevant factors, to understand whether 

certain groups are disproportionately impacted by safety risks. 

• The Consultant will evaluate the effectiveness of current safety measures, or lack of, 

in addressing the needs of these communities and identify any gaps in safety 

measures or strategies for infrastructure improvements.  

• The Consultant will consider the potential unintended consequences of proposed 

safety actions and develop strategies to mitigate these risks. 

 
Task 3 Deliverables: Equity analysis map and outcomes summary 
 
 
Task 4: High-Injury Network 
 
4.1 Crash History Analysis 
  
The Consultant will collect crash data from the last five years using the TxDOT Crash Records 
Information System (CRIS) Database. Using this data, the project team will create the following 
maps to better understand existing crash hotspots citywide: 
 

• Crash Heat Map 

• High Crash Intersections Map 

• Bicycle & Pedestrian Crash Heat Map 

4.2 High-Injury Network Model 
  
Using traffic volume data provided by the City and/or TxDOT along with crash data from the CRIS 
Database, the Consultant will use ArcGIS Pro to identify the roads which have the highest crash 
rates for fatal or injury-related crashes (KABs). Based on the results of these calculations, a 
subset of the roadways in the City will be identified as the High-Injury Network (HIN). This HIN is 
created to identify which roads should be the City’s priority for short- or long-range safety projects. 
 
Task 4 Deliverables: Citywide Crash Heat Map, High Crash Intersections Map, Bicycle & 
Pedestrian Crash Heat Map, ArcGIS HIN Model, HIN Map & Shapefile, HIN Facilities List 
 
 
Task 5: Countermeasure Analysis 
 
5.1 Field Observations 
  
Using the High Injury Network created by the Consultant, the City will identify up to three (3) 
corridors to study further through countermeasure analysis (study corridors could be up to one 
mile in length). The project team will spend up to one day conducting field observations along the 
corridors to understand the following conditions: 
 

• Poor sight distance at intersections or driveways 



Kimley-Horn Page 5 of 9 6/18/2024 

• Overgrown vegetation or other obstacles in the travel way 

• Speeding or traffic control compliance issues 

• Any substandard or out of date roadway design 

• ADA accessibility compliance issues  

• Existing interaction between mode users 

A summary of the field observations will be included in the final CSAP document along with any 
relevant photographs. 
 
5.2 Countermeasure Identification 
  
Using police crash reports provided by the City, the Consultant will examine the trends in fatal 
and severe crashes (KABs) along the study corridors to identify appropriate safety 
countermeasures for implementation. Analysis of crash locations, severity, along with contributing 
factors and crash types will also be evaluated. If needed, the Consultant may also require traffic 
signal timing sheets to better understand operations at high-injury traffic signals. The identified 
countermeasures will be visualized graphically on existing aerial imagery of the study corridors to 
aid in visualizing the proposed improvements. This evaluation will also make recommendations 
to improve racial equity and reduce barriers to opportunity.  
 
5.3 CMF Application 
  
This process includes applying countermeasure crash modification factors (CMFs) to the existing 
crash data to project the anticipated safety benefits from the applied improvements. The results 
of these calculations will be provided in an Excel spreadsheet. For implementation purposes, 
these safety countermeasure projects will also be incorporated in Task 6.2. Action Plan Matrix. 
 
Task 5 Deliverables: Field Observations Summary, Study Corridor Recommendations Exhibits, 
CMF Calculations Worksheet 
 
 
Task 6: Action Plan 
 
6.1 Policy Review 
  
The Consultant team will assess up to three (3) current policies, plans, guidelines, and/or 
standards (e.g., manuals) chosen by the City to identify opportunities to improve how processes 
prioritize transportation safety. The resulting policy review will be recorded in an excel worksheet 
with a “keep,” “revise,” or “remove” based on recommended improvements to the policies. The 
following are examples of policies that could be reviewed: 
 

• Arterial Master Plan 

• Lubbock Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan 

• ADA Gap Analysis  
 
 
6.2 Action Plan Matrix 
  
The Action Plan discusses implementation through the adoption of revised or new policies, 
guidelines, and/or standards, as appropriate. Once identified, the list of projects and strategies is 
prioritized in a list that provides time ranges for when the strategies and countermeasures will be 
deployed (e.g., short-, mid-, and long-term timeframes). The list will include specific projects and 



Kimley-Horn Page 6 of 9 6/18/2024 

strategies, or descriptions of programs of projects and strategies, time ranges when projects will 
be deployed, and explains prioritization criteria used. It will also include a description of how 
progress will be measured over time with outcome data.  
 
Task 6 Deliverables: Policy Review, Action Plan Matrix 
 
 
Task 7: Documentation and Adoption 
 
7.1 SS4A CSAP Document Preparation 
 
The Consultant will prepare three deliverables of the SS4A CSAP document and will submit each 
of these document editions for a single round of review from the SS4A Vision Zero Task Force 
and City of Lubbock staff.  
 

• 90% Submittal: The Consultant will prepare and submit an electronic copy of the report 

for Task Force review.  

• 100% DRAFT Submittal: The Consultant will address one round of Task Force comments 

and submit and electronic copy of the report to the Task Force for review.  

• 100% FINAL Submittal: The Consultant will address one round of Task Force review 

comments and provide an electronic copy of the final report.  

 
Prior to the 90% submittal, the Consultant will prepare a document outline and proposed 
document template style for review and approval by City. 
 
7.2 Documentation and Adoption 
  
The Consultant will provide the 100% Final document for adoption by City Council. The Consultant 
will provide two opportunities for review before presenting the report to the public. The final 
document must be adopted and posted publicly, to receive reimbursement funds from USDOT.  
 
The Consultant will make one trip to attend up to one (1) meeting outside of the Task Force to 
present on the CSAP final report before its adoption. The materials for these meetings are 
anticipated to be pulled from the report or previous meetings as the project will be in its final 
phase. 
 
Task 7 Deliverables: CSAP Report Draft, Final CSAP Report (2), Adoption Presentation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Kimley-Horn Page 7 of 9 6/18/2024 

 
Notes and Assumptions 
 
Our Scope and Fee are based on the following: 
 

1. Fees are to perform each task one time.  Revisions to address Jurisdictional or Client 
review comments will be made on an hourly basis under the appropriate Submittals 
Task.  

2. Our services will be performed in general accordance with current published FHWA 
guidelines. 

3. Effort resulting from changes to the project direction after commencement of our 
work will be additional services.   

4. It is expected that the City provide all requested documents, crash data, counts, signal 
timing, and GIS shapefiles as needed. Any recreation of data will be considered an 
additional service. The Service Provider will not be liable for errors or omissions in the 
provided material. 

5. No survey will be acquired as part of this project. Any exhibits or concepts produced 
are not intended for construction purposes and will be preliminary in nature.  

6. Completion of the CSAP is the first step towards application to USDOT for 

Implementation Grants and does not guarantee acceptance for Implementation Grant. 

Application to that program will be an additional service.  

7. The Consultant will not submit any in-kind time tracking verification documents to 

USDOT to waive the cash contribution requirements.  

8. It is expected that the City of Lubbock will coordinate and correspond with Task Force 
members, scheduling of times, dates, and venues for in-person and virtual meetings. 
Review of draft documents and presentations in a timely manner to adhere to the 
project schedule. 

9. Services that are not specified under Scope of Services, including any additional 
meetings requested by the Client, will be provided as additional services when 
requested and authorized in writing by the Client.  Compensation for additional 
services will be on a time and materials basis in accordance with our Standard 
Hourly Rate Schedule. 

 
 
Additional Services 
 
City and Consultant agree that the following services are beyond the Scope of Services described 
in the tasks above.  However, Consultant can provide these services, if needed, upon the City’s 
written request.  Any additional amounts paid to the Consultant as a result of any material change 
to the Scope of the Project shall be agreed upon in writing by both parties before the services are 
performed.  These Additional Services include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

• Social Media Content/Management 

• Additional Reports or Documents 

• Creation of new datasets such as roadway inventory, traffic volumes, etc. 

• Additional Meetings 

• Traffic counts, traffic projections, traffic signal timing 

• PS&E Design Services 

• Preparation for and attendance at meetings besides meetings identified above 

• Assist the City as an expert witness in litigation in connection with the project or in 

hearings before approving and regulatory agencies 



Kimley-Horn Page 8 of 9 6/18/2024 

• Application to USDOT for Implementation Grants 

• Coordination with outside agencies, other than City of Lubbock 

• Any services not listed in the Scope of Services 

 
Schedule 

 
The Consultant will work with the City to develop a mutually acceptable project schedule. Every 
effort will be made to complete the CSAP prior to the 2025 SS4A Implementation plan 
application deadline.  
 
 

 
- End of Scope of Services – 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Kimley-Horn Page 9 of 9 6/18/2024 

EXHIBIT “B” 
FEE BREAKDOWN 

The Consultant will perform the services in Tasks 1 - 7 for the total lump sum fee below. 
Individual task amounts are informational only.  All permitting, application, and similar project 
fees will be paid directly by the Client. 

Task and Fee Summary Table 

Task 1 Project Management and Meetings $ 19,800 
Task 2 Public Engagement $   6,900 
Task 3 Equity and Underserved Community Evaluation $ 15,900 
Task 4 High-Injury Network  $ 38,100 
Task 5 Countermeasure Analysis $ 37,900 
Task 6 Action Plan $ 29,428 
Task 7 Documentation and Adoption $ 12,100 

Lump Sum (LS) Subtotal:  $160,128 

Lump sum fees will be invoiced monthly based upon the overall percentage of services performed. 
Payment will be due within 25 days of your receipt of the invoice and should include the invoice 
number and Kimley-Horn project number. 



 

VENDOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
In compliance with this procurement, the undersigned offeror having examined the request for 
proposal, instructions to offerors, documents associated with the request for proposals, and being 
familiar with the conditions to be met, has reviewed the information regarding: 

 Insurance Requirements 

 Suspension and Debarment Certification  

 Texas Government Code Section 2252.152 

 Texas Government Code Section 2271.002 

 Texas Government Code 2274 

 

An individual authorized to bind the company must sign the following section. Failure to execute this 

portion may result in proposal rejection. 

 

 

 

 

               

Authorized Signature    Title 

 

              

Print/Type Name     Date 
 

 

               

Company Name     Address 

 

               

City, State Zip Code 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact for questions, clarifications, etc. 

Name and Title:  

Mailing Address:  

City, State, Zip:  

Telephone No:  

Fax No:  

E-Mail:  

Aaron K. Rader, P.E.

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

Vice President and Authorized Signer

13455 Noel Road, Suite 700

Dallas, TX 75240

Hiron Fernando, P.E. | Project Manager

Richardson, TX 75080

2600 N Central Expressway, Suite 400

972.770.3023

N/A

hiron.fernando@kimley-horn.com

4/4/2024



INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

Prior to the approval of this contract by the City, the Contractor shall furnish a 

completed Insurance Certificate to the City, which shall be completed by an agent 

authorized to bind the named underwriter(s) to the coverages, limits, and 

termination provisions shown thereon, and which shall furnish and contain all 

required information referenced or indicated thereon. THE CITY SHALL HAVE 

NO DUTY TO PAY OR PERFORM UNDER THIS CONTRACT UNTIL SUCH 

CERTIFICATE SHALL HAVE BEEN DELIVERED TO THE CITY. 
 

The City reserves the right to review the insurance requirements of this section 

during the effective period of the contract and to require adjustment of insurance 

coverages and their limits when deemed necessary and prudent by the City based 

upon changes in statutory law, court decisions, or the claims history of the industry 

as well as the Contractor. 
 

Subject to the Contractor's right to maintain reasonable deductibles in such amounts 

as are approved by the City, the Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force 

and effect for the duration of this contract, and any extension hereof, at 

Contractor's sole expense, insurance coverage written by companies approved by 

the State of Texas and acceptable to the City, in the following type(s) and 

amount(s): 
 

Auto Liability Requirements: $1M/occurrence is needed. 
 

Commercial General Liability Requirements: $1 M occurrence/ $2M aggregate 

(can be combined with an Excess Liability to meet requirement). Commercial 

General Liability to include Products - Completion/OP, Personal and Advertising 

Injury, Contractual Liability, Fire Damage (any one fire), and Medical Expenses 

(any one person). 

 

Professional Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence/ $2M aggregate. 
 

Workers Compensation Requirements: Statutory. If the vendor is an 

independent contractor with no employees and are exempt from providing 

Workers' Compensation coverage, they must sign a waiver (obtained from COL 

Purchasing) and include a copy of their driver's license. 

Employer Liability ($1M) is required with Workers Compensation. 

 

* The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) 

shall be afforded additional insured status on a primary and non-

contributory basis on all liability policies except professional liabilities and 

workers' comp. 

 

* Waivers of Subrogation are required for CGL, AL, and WC. 

 

* To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. 

 



* Carrier will provide a 30-day written notice of cancellation, 10-day 

written notice for non-payment. 

 

 *          Carriers must meet a A.M. Best rating of A-or better. 

 

* Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above. 

 

IMPORTANT: POLICY ENDORSEMENTS 

The Contractor will provide copies of the policies without expense, to the City and all 

endorsements thereto and may make any reasonable request for deletion, revision, or 

modification of particular policy terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions (except where 

policy provisions are established by law or regulation binding upon either of the parties hereto 

or the underwriter of any of such policies). Upon such request by the City, the Contractor 

shall exercise reasonable efforts to accomplish such changes in policy coverages, and shall 

pay the cost thereof. Any costs will be paid by the Contractor. 

REQUIRED PROVISIONS 

The Contractor agrees that with respect to the above required insurance, all insurance 

contracts and certificate(s) of insurance will contain and state, in writing, on the certificate 

or its attachment, the following required provisions: 

a. Name the City of Lubbock and its officers, employees, and elected 

representatives as additional insureds, (as the interest of each insured may 

appear) as to all applicable coverage; 

b. Provide for 30 days notice to the City for cancellation, nonrenewal, or material 

change; 

c. Provide for notice to the City at the address shown below by registered mail; 

d. The Contractor agrees to waive subrogation against the City of Lubbock, its 

officers, employees, and elected representatives for injuries, including death, 

property damage, or any other loss to the extent same may be covered by the 

proceeds of insurance; 

e. Provide that all provisions of this contract concerning liability, duty, and 

standard of care together with the indemnification provision, shall be 

underwritten by contractual liability coverage sufficient to include such 

obligations within applicable policies. 

NOTICES 

The Contractor shall notify the City in the event of any change in coverage and shall give 

such notices not less than 30 days prior the change, which notice must be accompanied by a 

replacement CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE. 

 

 

 



All notices shall be given to the City at the following address: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & 

Contract Management City of Lubbock 

1314 Avenue K, 9th Floor 

Lubbock, Texas 79401 

Approval, disapproval, or failure to act by the City regarding any insurance supplied by the 

Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor of full responsibility or liability for damages and 

accidents as set forth in the contract documents. Neither shall the bankruptcy, insolvency, or 

denial of liability by the insurance company exonerate the Contractor from liability. 
 



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
RFP 24-17627-YB 

Consulting Services to Develop City of Lubbock 

Safety Action Plan 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on March 17 & March 24, 2024.       

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from March 15 to April 02, 2024. 

14 individuals attended the pre-proposal meeting. 

31 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

5 vendors submitted proposals. 

 



 AI# 12667 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 13. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
18045, with Lydick-Hooks, for the complete roof replacement of Pump Station No. 14 located at 7308
Milwaukee Avenue.

Item Summary
The City issued an Invitation to Bid (ITB) for roof replacement of Pump Station No. 14, as detailed and
specified with a water-tight system, per current building and energy codes.  The scope of work consists
of 5,608 square feet of roofing, flashings, copings, skylights and any other materials required for a
complete roofing system.

In response to ITB 24-18045-DRH, the following bids were received and opened on May 29, 2024.
  

Contractor Amount
Lydick-Hooks, Lubbock, Texas $89,560
Alto Vista Roofing, DeSoto, Texas $100,000
ABF Roofing and Foam, Lubbock, Texas $117,634

Staff recommends awarding the contract to the lowest bidder, Lydick-Hooks of Lubbock, Texas, for
$89,560.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18045 in the amount of $89,560.00 is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92858, Pump
Station No. 14 Roof Replacement.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Mark Zavicar, Director of Facilities Management 

Attachments
Resolution - Contract 18045 
Contract 18045 
Project Cost Detail 
Project Summary 



RESOLUTION 

BE IT RESOLVED BY Tl IE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY Of LUBBOCK: 

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute 
for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Contract No. 18045 for roof replacement at the North 
Water Treatment Plant Pump Station No. 14, per 1TB 24-18045-DRII, by and between the City 
of Lubbock and Lydick-Hooks Roofing Co. of Lubbock, Inc., and related documents. Said 
Contract is attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein and 
shall be included in the minutes of the City Council. 

Passed by the City Council on ______________ _ 

ATTEST: 

Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

Eri�Managcr 

ccdocs I I/RES.Contract I 8045-Lydick I looks 

June 13, 2024 

Mark McBrayer, MAYOR 









City of Lubbock
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
July 9, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92858
Capital Project Name: Pump Station 14 Roof Replace

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Agenda Item July 9, 2024

Amendment No. 1 to Contract 18045                        89,560
Encumbered/Expended To Date                        89,560

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Construction, lift station rehabilitation                        20,440

Remaining Appropriation                                  -

Total Appropriation  $                  110,000



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
ITB 24-18045-DRH 

NWTP Pump Station No. 14 Re-roof 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on May 12 & May 19, 2024. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from May 13 to May 29, 2024. 

7 individuals attended the pre-bid meeting. 

33 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

35 vendors were notified separately.  

3 vendors submitted bids. 

 



 AI# 12650 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 14. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 18165, with
W.R. Construction, Inc., and in doing so, ratifying all acts undertaken for Emergency Repairs to the
Consolidated Rental Car Facility at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

Item Summary
Water is infiltrating the Consolidated Rental Car Facility (CONRAC) during rain events. Previous
experiences have resulted in numerous repairs needed for damages, including the presence of black
mold. In order to eliminate failures and repeated damages, immediate action was taken by way of and in
accordance with Texas Government Code Sec. 2155.086, which states that procedures for awarding
certain contracts do not apply to an emergency purchase or other contract award for which delay would
create a hazard to life, health, safety, welfare, or property, or would cause an undue additional cost to the
state.
 
Work performed per the terms and conditions of Sourcewell EZIQC Contract TX-PH-GC-101619-WRC
(W.R. Construction, Inc.) includes:  

Removing old joint sealants and installing new sealants;
Applying Elastomeric Coating (vapor barrier) on all exterior brick; and
Replacing 80 feet of black cove base (interior repairs).

Funds are available in Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 92838 – Airport Property Improvements Phase
II. A budget amendment transferring funds from the Customer Facility Charge Fund to the Capital
Improvement Project will be required following contract completion. The Customer Facility Charge is a
fee assessed on rental car contracts at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport. The fee is collected
and reserved exclusively for rental car facility repairs and/or improvements.

Airport Staff and the Airport Advisory Board recommend approval of the contract for $113,878.23, with
W.R. Construction, Inc., for the Consolidated Rental Car Facility Repairs.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18165 with W. R. Construction, Inc. for $113,878.23 is funded in Capital Improvement Project
92838 - Airport Property Improvements Phase II. A budget amendment transferring the 252 - Customer
Facility Charge Fund to the Capital Improvement Project will be requested following contract
completion.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board



Attachments
Resolution WR Construction, Inc. 
Contract Emergency Purchase - WR Construction, Inc. 
Capital Project 92838 Cost Detail 
CIP 92838 Project Detail 













City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
July 9, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92838
Capital Project Name: Airport Property Improvements Phase II

Budget
Encumbered/Expended

Carpet Tech                      21,186
WR Construction                      24,664
WR Construction                      35,401
WR Construction                      27,255
KWA Engineers                        3,775
WR Construction                      48,913

Agenda Item July 9, 2024
WR Construction                    100,000

  Encumbered/Expended To Date                    261,195

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
                       1,086

  Remaining Appropriation

Total Appropriation  $                262,281

WR Construction, Agenda Item total is $113,878.23.  $13,878.23 is funded from the Airport Operating Budget 4611.8302.



Project Scope

Repair,  replace ,  maintain,  and rehabilitate  various airport  assets.  Effor ts include improvements to the  airport  terminal
building and other airport  facilit ies.

Potential improvements include parking garage and remote parking lot  repairs,  paint ing,  encapsulat ing or removing
asbestos,  resealing or reconstructing airport  roads,  roof repairs or replacement on airport  owned buildings,  improvements
to overflow parking,  HVAC improvements,  and other unanticipated mechanical or technical failures that could occur.
Addit ionally,  the  project encompasses enhancements to the  airport 's infrastructure  and technology  systems to improve
operational efficiency,  safety,  and the  passenger experience.

Project Justi�cation

Many airport assets are reaching end of life capacity. Investment in repairs will reduce potential for
more costly replacement or loss of assets.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed: Growth and
Development

FY 2023-24 $150,000 was appropriated by
Ord.2023-O0108

Project Dates Project Location

Lubbock International Airport - Multiple locations

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Design $262,281 $200,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000

TOTAL $262,281 $200,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Airport Fund Cash $150,000 $200,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000

CFC Fund Cash $85,026 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

C.A.R.E.S. Act Funding $27,255 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $262,281 $200,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

CIP 92838CIP 92838 Airport Property Improvements Airport Property Improvements
Phase IIPhase II

Upgrade/Major MaintenanceUpgrade/Major Maintenance

Project Manager: Kelly CampbellProject Manager: Kelly Campbell  - Aviation Maintenance- Aviation Maintenance

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 12665 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 15. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 17942, with SRH Landscapes, LLC, for annual right-of-way maintenance for the North
Overton Public Improvement District. 

Item Summary
Staff issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for annual right-of-way maintenance services for the North
Overton Public Improvement District (PID). 

In response to RFP 24-17942-KM, five proposals were received. Proposals were evaluated using the
following criteria: Experience (50 points), Project Approach (20 points), and Price (30 points). The
maximum point value was 100 points. Following the initial evaluation of proposals, the top three firms
were invited to make in-person presentations to staff. After the proposals were evaluated and in-person
interviews were conducted, the following rankings were obtained: 
  

Vendor Points
SRH Landscapes LLC, Dallas, Texas 78.81
West Texas Services, Inc. dba Tom's Tree Place, Lubbock, Texas 74.98
Reeder Landscape, Amarillo, Texas 72.21
Incircle Management Inc., Colleyville, Texas 63.33
Turf Raider Lawn & Landscape, Lubbock, Texas 32.80

Staff recommends awarding the contract to SRH Landscapes LLC of Dallas, Texas. The contract term is
for one year, with the option of 4, one-year renewals, for an annual amount of $678,790. 

Fiscal Impact
Contract 17942 for $678,790 is funded through the North Overton PID's Annual Service and Assessment
Plan, as approved by the City Council. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 
Project Summary 



Project Summary 















 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

RFP 24-17942-KM 

North Overton Public Improvement District (PID) Right-of-Way Landscape Maintenance  

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on April 14 and April 21, 2024. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from April 14 to May 14, 2024. 

3 individuals attended the pre-proposal/pre-bid meeting. 

40 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

10 vendors were notified separately.  

5 vendors submitted proposals. 

 



 AI# 12666 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 16. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement Contract 17764, with West Texas Services, Inc.
dba Tom's Tree Place, for services related to right-of-way improvements in the North Overton Tax
Increment Financing District boundary at 9th Street and 10th Street. 

Item Summary
On January 23, 2024, City Council approved Contract 17764 with Tom's Tree Place. This contract is for
improvements in the public right-of-way between Avenue S and Avenue U on 9th and 10th Streets.
Improvements will include removal of existing ground material, irrigation repair, and installation of new
ground material. All improvements will be completed in accordance with the Overton Park Public
Improvement Guidelines, as adopted by the City Council in January 2004. 

The original contract did not include improvements in the sections of right-of-way on Avenue S and
Avenue U. Amendment No.1 will allow those sections of right-of-way to be improved at the same time
as 9th Street and 10th Street, completing the project.  The $44,910.50 cost of Amendment No. 1 is
funded in the North Overton Tax Increment Financing District Fund. 

Fiscal Impact
Contract 17764 for Amendment No. 1, in the amount of $44,910.50, is funded in Capital Improvement
Project 95524, North Overton TIF Capital Improvement Projects. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director 

Attachments
Resolution 
Amendment 1 to 17764 - West Texas Services (002) 
Original Contract_17764__With_West_Texas_Services_Inc_Dba_Toms_Tree_Place_ (3) 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 













































Resolution No. 2024- R0032

Item No. 6. 8

January 23, 2024

RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute fo
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Professional Services Agreement Contract No. 17764 fo
services related to the Tax Increment Finance District 9`h and 10` h Street Right- Of-Wa
Improvements, by and between the City of Lubbock and West Texas Services, Inc. dba Tom' 
Tree Place, and related documents. Said Contract is attached hereto and incorporated in thi

resolution as if fully set forth herein and shall be included in the minutes of the City Council. 

Passed by the City Council on January 23, 2024

TRAY PAYN MAYOR

ATTEST: 

Co ney Paz, City Secret

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

D. Kost ich, Chief Financial Officer

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

e li Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

ccdocs/ RES.PSA-No. 17764 Street Right-Of-Way Improvements
1. I 0. 24



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

Chipotle's Mexican Grill Development Agreement - Tract 1C-1 23,572$                 

McCanton Wood Water Loop Agreement - Tract 1C-1 22,000                   

LKM Matador Development Agreement - Tract 1B-2 161,765                 

Gold Properties, LLC Development Agreement - Tract 1C-3A 53,717                   

ACC OP (Tract 6) Contract 93,000                   

Racer Classic Car Wash 9,351                     

2401 9th Street LLC (Potbelly) 51,878                   

Jackie Moon Properties, LLC 78,547                   

MH Civic Constructors - GGB 292,572                 

Public improvements Reimbursement (55,719)                 

Landscaping in the Parkway 26,723                   

Haven Campus Communities - Lubbock, LLC 322,155                 

City of Lubbock Staff Time 4,079                     

ACC OP (Tracts 32 and 33) LLC 583,287                 

Haven Campus Communities 340,549                 

West Texas Services, Inc - GGB 514,856                 

West Texas Services, Inc - Ramirez 450,000                 

West Texas Services, Inc - 9th and 10th Street 192,210                 

West Texas Services, Inc - GGB Medians 606,209                 

West Texas Services, Inc. Mac Davis Roundabout $425,040

Agenda Item July 9, 2024

West Texas Services, Inc. Contract 17764 Amendment No.1 44,911                   

Encumbered/Expended to Date 4,240,702              

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Public Improvements 1,406,649              

Remaining Appropriation 1,406,649              

Total Appropriation To Date 5,647,351$            

92254

North Overton TIF Public Improvements

City of Lubbock, TX

July 9, 2024

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail



Project Scope

Construction of public improvements in the  right-of-way  for the  remaining undeveloped tracts.  Also included in the  project
is the  repair or replacement of public improvements in the  right of way  for already  developed areas,  such as the  re location
and replacement of bollards on Glenna Goodacre  Boulevard and any  other replacement of the  original construction that is
needed.

Project Justi�cation

The project is part of the ongoing redevelopment in the North Overton TIF to replace 70-year old
infrastructure.

Completed projects:

GGB Completion - $87,458.21

Chipotles Development Agreement - $23,571.60

LKM Matador Development Agreement (92254B) - $161,765

Golden Properties Agreement (92254C)- 53,716.92

Tract 6 Development Agreement (92254D) - 93,000

Racer Classic Car Wash Development Agreement (92254E) - $8,640

2402 9th Street Development Agreement (92254F) - $51,878

Jackie Moon Development Agreement (92254G) - 78,547

ACC OPP Development Agreement (92254H) - $583,287

Haven Campus Communities - 18Nineteen (92254I) - $322,155

Removal of Pedestrian Lights - $1800.96

Irrigation Water Line Relocate Tract 3 - $19,625

McCantonwood Agreement - $22,105

Haven II Development Agreement - $340,549

Completion of the landscaping in the parkway on the last two blocks of GGB - $514,855

2022-23: Completed a project to install public improvements on Glenna Goodacre Blvd. between Avenue U and Avenue T.

2023-24: Completed a landscaping project in the public right-of-way on 9th and 10th Streets between Avenue U and Avenue S. 

2023-24: Completed a landscaping project in the Glenna Goodacre medians. 

2023-24: Started a repair project in the roundabout and adjacent right-of-way at Mac Davis and Avenue X. 

CIP 92254CIP 92254 North Overton TIF Public North Overton TIF Public
ImprovementsImprovements

Installation and Repair of Public ImprovementsInstallation and Repair of Public Improvements

Project Manager: Brianna Brown - Business DevelopmentProject Manager: Brianna Brown - Business Development



Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Community Improvement, Economic Development

Prior to FY 2016-17 $2,247,032 had been
appropriated
FY 2016-17 $150,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2016-O0135
FY 2017-18 $1,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2017-O0111
FY 2021-22 $249,680 was reassigned by BCR
2022-26
FY 2022-23 $1,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0136
FY 2023-24 $750,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2023-O0108
FY 2023-24 $750,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2023-O0151

Project Dates Project Location

FY 2024-25: Complete a public improvement
project on the South side of Glenna Goodacre
Boulevard between Avenue Q and Avenue R;
Complete an irrigation optimization project
through the North Overton TIF District. 

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $5,647,351 $1,000,000 $750,000 $750,000 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,647,351 $1,000,000 $750,000 $750,000 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Fund CO Bonds $1,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

North Overton TIF Fund Cash $3,400,320 $1,000,000 $750,000 $750,000 $0 $0 $0

North Overton TIF Fund Bonds $747,031 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,647,351 $1,000,000 $750,000 $750,000 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 12664 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 17. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Municipal Court: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment
No.1 to Contract 14522, with OpenEdge Payments, LLC, a division of Global Payments, for the
payment gateway to process credit card transactions.

Item Summary
The Lubbock Municipal Court utilizes OpenEdge Payments, LLC as a payment gateway to authenticate
and securely transmit payment data between the Municipal Court software company and the credit card
processor.  This amendment will add 36 months to the current term and provide a lower credit card rate.

Fiscal Impact
There will be no fiscal impact to the General Revenue Fund.
Costs related to credit card transactions are appropriated in the Municipal Court Budget under the court's
Special Revenue Fund in the amount of $75,000.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jorge Hernandez, Municipal Court Judge
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - OpenEdge Payments 
Amendment 1 to OpenEdge Payment Agmt 









 AI# 12656 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 18. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 1
to Contract 15862, with Lubbock Wrecker Services, Inc., for wrecker and towing services for the
Lubbock Police Department.

Item Summary
On December 7, 2021, the City Council awarded Contract 15862 to Lubbock Wreckers Services, Inc.,
for wrecker and towing services used by the Lubbock Police Department (LPD) for abandoned,
wrecked, seized, and auctioned vehicles.
 
The Contractor pays the City $425,000 annually for the life of the contract. The term of the contract is
for one year with up to four (4) additional one-year extensions.
 
Amendment No. 1 to Section 15 of the contract will amend the scope of work to include the Contractor
adding a remote-controlled, mechanical gate to its storage facility that will allow LPD and its auction
customers access to auctioned vehicles.
 
Amendment No. 1 to Section 20 of the contract will also amend the charge time for the Contractor to 15
minutes after arrival at the scene of a tow. The Contractor may also charge for additional time in
15-minute intervals.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
Dominic Esperat, Director of Fleet Operations

Attachments
Resolution 
Amendment 
Original Contract 

































 AI# 12609 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 19. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Telecommunications: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
18156, with World Wide Technology, LLC, for professional implementation services related to the
upgrade of the City-wide telephone system.

Item Summary
The professional services contract with World Wide Technology, LLC is to provide implementation
services to upgrade the City-wide telephone system hardware and software. The project will replace
hardware and software that has reached the end of service and support life. The project will bring the
phone systems up to the current versions and is expected to take approximately 10 weeks.

The purchase is made available through the State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR)
Contract DIR-TSO-4167. Texas Local Government Code Chapter 271.083 authorizes local governments
to acquire hardware, software, and other Information Technology products through the DIR program.
Pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 791.025, purchases from DIR contracts meet competitive
bid requirements.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18156 with World Wide Technology, LLC, for the Telephone System Upgrade, in the amount
of $124,662 is appropriated in Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget, Equipment Capital Outlay -
Communications Equipment Account, and the Equipment Maintenance - Telephone Maintenance
Account.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
James C. Brown, Chief Information Officer

Attachments
Resolution - Contract 18156 
Contract 18156 





City of Lubbock 
Cisco UC Upgrade 

April 19, 2024 

PRESENTED BY 
Claire Noel 
Account Manager 
World Wide Technology, LLC 
claire.hulcer@wwt.com 
www.wwt.com

Contract 18156



City of Lubbock 
 Cisco UC Upgrade | April 2024 

PROPRIETARY NOTICE The information contained in this statement of work is the confidential information of World Wide Technology, 
LLC. This statement of work and the information contained herein shall not be disclosed outside the company named above, and shall not 
be duplicated, used, or disclosed in whole or in part for any purpose other than to evaluate this statement of work. 

Table of Contents 
1 Project Scope .........................................................................................................................3

1.1 Project Description ................................................................................................................. 3

1.2 Deliverables ............................................................................................................................ 3

1.3 Project Sites ............................................................................................................................ 3

1.4 Project Management .............................................................................................................. 3

1.4.1 Project Initiation ......................................................................................................... 3

1.4.2 Project Schedule ......................................................................................................... 4

1.4.3 Status Meeting ........................................................................................................... 4

1.4.4 Status Report .............................................................................................................. 4

1.5 Project Tasks ........................................................................................................................... 4

1.5.1 Professional Services Project Tasks ............................................................................ 4

1.5.2 Testing ........................................................................................................................ 7

1.5.3 Cutover Procedures .................................................................................................... 8

1.5.4 Documentation ........................................................................................................... 8

1.6 Out of Scope ........................................................................................................................... 8

2 Customer Responsibilities ......................................................................................................8

3 Assumptions ........................................................................................................................ 10

4 Pricing Summary .................................................................................................................. 12

4.1 Project Change Control......................................................................................................... 12



City of Lubbock 
 Cisco UC Upgrade | April 2024 

Internal Request # R-00817322 
Page | 3 

1 Project Scope 

World Wide Technology, LLC (WWT) will provide services for City of Lubbock (Lubbock or Customer). 
Each of the parties’ responsibilities is defined to provide a clear understanding of the scope of Cisco 
UC Upgrade services. This SOW is governed by the DIR-TSO-4167 awarded 7/4/2018 (“Contract”)

Any terms capitalized that do not have a definition herein shall have the meaning set out in the 
Contract. 

The pricing submitted with this SOW reflects the services and responsibilities described herein.  
WWT will strive to meet Lubbock’s schedule requirements; however, actual project dates will be 
subject to availability of materials and resources and Lubbock’s attention to its responsibilities. 

1.1 Project Description 

WWT will upgrade Call Manager, Unity Connections from 11.5 to version 14, and UCCX from 11.5 to 
12.5 for the City of Lubbock. 

1.2 Deliverables 

Activities related to scheduled tasks will support Deliverables necessary for a successful project. 

▪ External Kickoff Deck
▪ High-Level Design (HLD)
▪ Optional Migration Plan
▪ Pre-Deployment Guide (PDG)
▪ Acceptance Testing Procedures (ATP)
▪ As-Built Documentation
▪ Up to one (1) cutover(s) or migration window(s) through the duration of this project

Customer has full ownership rights to the Deliverables listed above. Notwithstanding any contrary or 
contradictory terms in any other contract, agreement or otherwise, no other intellectual property is 
transferred hereunder. For purposes of clarity, WWT retains all rights to its intellectual property 
including, but not limited to, its skill sets, tools, know-how, methodologies, processes, and any 
improvements, enhancements, and other modifications thereto. 

1.3 Project Sites 

The below site(s) are in scope for this service offering. Modifications to sites, scope or level of effort 
will be managed through the Change Control process. 

▪ Multiple locations within the city of Lubbock

1.4 Project Management 

1.4.1 Project Initiation 



City of Lubbock 
 Cisco UC Upgrade | April 2024 

Internal Request # R-00817322 
Page | 4 

WWT follows a project initiation process that begins with planning the project with the key 
stakeholders. The process begins with planning a project initiation with Lubbock during which all 
requirements, dependencies, success criteria, as well as challenges and risks to the project will be 
identified and planned for. 

The project initiation will consist of the following tasks: 

▪ Define roles and responsibilities of the project core team
▪ Articulate project objectives, priorities, technologies being deployed, and key Deliverables
▪ Identify the work required to achieve the project goals
▪ Establish a high-level schedule for the project
▪ Develop strategies for mitigating major project risks
▪ Plan the project success criteria
▪ Understand project dependencies
▪ WWT and Lubbock will jointly define the due dates for Lubbock owned prerequisites.

Lubbock understands these dates are required to achieve the project outcome and may
trigger changes to the project scope

1.4.2 Project Schedule 

WWT Project Manager will produce a project schedule to support the scoped items within this SOW. 
WWT Project Manager will work with Customer’s project sponsor or project manager to assist in the 
incorporation of the schedule into a master schedule. 

1.4.3 Status Meeting 

WWT Project Manager will conduct a Customer facing status meeting at a cadence agreed upon 
during the project initiation phase. The meeting agenda will include overview of project health and 
status, review and discussion of RAID (risk, action items, issues, and decisions needed), discussion of 
timeline and upcoming next steps. The meeting will include a predefined list of stakeholders, and 
meeting minutes. 

1.4.4 Status Report 

WWT Project Manager will produce a standard Customer facing report that will display the health 
and status of the project, risk/issues, and upcoming next steps. WWT Project Manager will use the 
standard WWT status report format unless otherwise discussed during the project initiation phase. 
This can be populated and stored in Customer repository or sent to a defined distribution list. 

1.5 Project Tasks 

1.5.1 Professional Services Project Tasks 

WWT will perform the following tasks: 

▪ Project Kickoff



City of Lubbock 
 Cisco UC Upgrade | April 2024 

Internal Request # R-00817322 
Page | 5 

− WWT and Customer Kickoff Meeting with key stakeholders to review the project scope,
approach, deliverable and responsibilities of all parties

− Share schedule information, contact information, and procedural information with
Customer

▪ Assessment Workshop to understand the existing environment, business requirements
regarding features, migration, risks, overall expectations, and key success criteria.  Review
and discuss the following:
− Review HLD and use the WBS with PMO to develop project plan
− Project configuration parameters
− Virtualization and virtual machine (VM) placement
− Licensing and user integration
− Cisco Unified Border Element (CUBE), Public Switched Telephone Network (PSTN), and

Internet Telephony Service Provider (ITSP) requirements
▪ Review and discuss existing Session Initiation Protocol (SIP) environment
▪ Review and discuss existing SIP Service Provider
▪ Review and discuss existing SIP security
▪ Review and discuss SIP dial plan

− Voice Gateway (VG) and Analog Telephone Adapter (ATA) requirements
− Collaboration network and security requirements
− Components that are End of Life/End of Sale (EOL/EOS) or Deprecated
− Validate versions of the devices and applications in use are supported by CUCM version

14 and report findings
− Validate all applicable Cisco Smart Software Licensing requirements
− Validate SFTP Server requirements and compatibility
− Validate phone firmware that corresponds to version 14 release of CUCM

▪ Detailed design development and documentation based on data collected during the
planning stage
− Develop implementation strategy, migration and back-out plan
− Update HLD
− Develop PDG and MOP
− Develop ATP

▪ New Hardware - Customer-Responsible Installation
▪ Configure Qty (2) BE7000-M6 servers to replace EOS/EOL UCS Servers (4 per server)

− Ensure connectivity and proper operation of Cisco BE7000s before installation
− Configure Redundant Array of Independent Disks (RAID)
− Configure Cisco Integrated Management Controller (CIMC) network settings
− Install ESXi and configure network settings
− Perform ATP

▪ Configure Qty (1) Cisco 8300-1N1S-6T router
− Verify CUBE TLS licenses
− Configure inbound and outbound dial-peers
− Update global CUBE settings
− Perform Certificate Tasks:

▪ Create SBC trustpoint
▪ Generate certificate signing request (CSR)
▪ Import CA signed host certificate
▪ Specify the default trust point and TLS version

− Connect SIP trunks to demarcation points



City of Lubbock 
 Cisco UC Upgrade | April 2024 

Internal Request # R-00817322 
Page | 6 

− Add tenant configuration
− Perform ATP
− Perform Day-1 Cutover Support

▪ Configure Qty (11) VG400-2FXS/2FXO
− Consolidate analog stations and configuration from (11) existing VG202s
− Connect power supply and network cable
− Upgrade IOS release
− Configure MGCP
− Configure CUCM
− Perform ATP

▪ Configure Qty (11) VG400-4FXS/4FXO
− Consolidate analog stations and configuration from (11) existing VG204s
− Connect power supply and network cable
− Upgrade IOS release
− Configure MGCP
− Configure CUCM
− Perform ATP

▪ Configure Qty (5) ATA192s
− Connect power supply and network cable
− Complete ATA network setup
− Configure CUCM
− Perform ATP

▪ Configure and Deploy Cisco Prime Collaboration Deployment (PCD)
− Download and deploy PCD
− Verify VMWare Application Program Interface (API) access
− Add CUCM
− Add ESXi Hosts to PCD inventory
− Add CUCM & IM&P version 14 ISOs to PCD SFTP Server
− Send 14 ISO files to PCD server /fresh_install directory
− Install upgrade readiness COP files
− Map physical nodes to Virtual Machines (VMs) and schedule migration tasks

▪ Perform pre-migration testing (engineer test plan)
− Document pre-upgrade versions for CUCM, IM&P, CUC, & UCCX
− Document current hardware and VMware versions
− Document endpoint registration and replication status
− Update IP addresses or hostnames of destination nodes  in DNS
− Ensure all VG and analog gateways are registered and collaborate on testing to ensure

that application reachability and functionality is not impacted by the upgrade
− Validate all existing Session Initiation Protocol (SIP) Trunks are functioning normally to

the existing Cisco Unified Border Element (CUBE) routers, and collaborate on testing to
ensure that application reachability and functionality is not impacted by the upgrade

▪ Perform DRS backup of all existing data and confirm status of all systems and perform v14
migration with PCD (V2V)
− CUCM and IM&P
− CUC
− Run pre-upgrade-check COP file
− Perform migration of existing cluster nodes to the new cluster nodes
− Perform bulk certificate management if hostnames changed



City of Lubbock 
 Cisco UC Upgrade | April 2024 

Internal Request # R-00817322 
Page | 7 

− Migrate/Install licensing to Smart License Manager
▪ Cutover - CUCM and IM&P Cluster Upgrade

− Check and perform the switch version on all nodes
− Verify cluster database replication
− Verify phone registration and certificates
− Perform ATP

▪ Cutover - CUC Cluster Upgrade
− Check and perform switch version on both nodes
− Verify cluster database replication
− Perform ATP

▪ Cutover - UCCX Cluster Upgrade
− Upgrade UCCX from 11.5 to 12.5
− Confirm if using Cisco WFO
− Configure domain name and DNS server IPs
− Verify the backup of all the existing data
− Verify cluster database replication
− Perform ATP

▪ Cutover - Informacast Cluster Upgrade
− Obtain a System Backup
− Make a VMware clone of the InformaCast VM.
− Download all required upgrade files (package and ISO file)
− Run the "UpgradeValidatorRestricted" download and mitigate any found items (rerun

this tool in between each .deb)
− Connect the ISO file to the virtual appliance (using vSphere or Virtual Machine Remote

Control (VMRC))
− Run pre-flight checks and mitigate any found items
− Verify and update the system settings
− Perform ATP

▪ Perform Day-1 Cutover Support
− The cutover of all systems will occur during a single weekend maintenance window.  In

the event that all systems are not upgraded during a single weekend maintenance
window, a change order will be required.

− The Engineer will support the cutover window during normal business hours, 8:00 a.m.
to 5:00 p.m., Monday-Friday local time zone.

▪ Collect As-Built Data and provide As-Built documentation and conduct informal knowledge
transfer
− The actual As-Built deliverables and format will be determined during the planning

phase
▪ 2-ITB Technical Solution Leadership (2hrs per week)

1.5.2 Testing 

Utilizing the data obtained in the project initiation meeting, WWT will develop an ATP 
documentation package. The ATP package will include a document detailing test resource 
requirements, procedures, and expected results. The test plan document package will be reviewed 
by Lubbock to confirm both parties agree to the test plan criteria and methodologies. After reaching 
agreement, major changes to the ATP package as a result of a feature, application, or design change 



City of Lubbock 
 Cisco UC Upgrade | April 2024 

Internal Request # R-00817322 
Page | 8 

will go through a change control process to ensure no changes are implemented without having an 
agreed upon ATP. 

1.5.3 Cutover Procedures 

WWT will formally turn the site over to Lubbock for daily operational support after the successful 
testing of the solution. As-Built documentation will be provided for each installation as it is turned 
over, including e.g., design documents, configuration files, and diagrams. The actual As-Built 
deliverables and format will be determined during the planning phase.  

1.5.4 Documentation 

WWT employs a formal documentation development process, which utilizes a document change 
management tool to protect and control content production and editing. All documentation will be 
considered confidential and available for official use only, and with contributing staff unable to 
share data outside the project’s Information Technology (IT) domain. 

1.6 Out of Scope 

The following items have been determined to be out of scope relative to this SOW and are identified 
in order to avoid any confusion. 

▪ In the normal course of business, WWT does not require receipt of any personally
identifiable information, protected health information, or other structured personal or
sensitive information as defined by applicable data protection laws (“Protected Data”) in its
performance of the Services hereunder. Access to or receipt of any Protected Data is
expressly out of scope for WWT Services under this SOW. In order to perform the Services
set forth in an applicable SOW (or this SOW), however, out herein, WWT may access
Customer Confidential Information. All such access shall be within the Customer’s network
and pursuant to the Customer’s security processes and protocols

▪ Any work not specifically listed as a task in this document is considered out of scope
▪ No formal training will be provided
▪ No On-site work.  All work will be performed remotely.

2 Customer Responsibilities 

All services performed by WWT will be based on the following assumptions and Customer 
responsibilities. Changes to these assumptions or Customer failure to meet its responsibilities may 
affect scope and cost. 

▪ Lubbock will designate a single point of contact to whom all WWT communications may be
addressed and who has the authority to act on all aspects of the services throughout the
duration of the project; such contact shall be available during normal hours of business
(Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. local time, excluding holidays)

▪ Lubbock will have suitable technical staff as mutually agreed upon by both parties available
for the duration of the engagement as defined by the project schedule. The Lubbock staff
will need to participate in and support the various tasks of the project as required as defined



City of Lubbock 
 Cisco UC Upgrade | April 2024 

Internal Request # R-00817322 
Page | 9 

by the project schedule or other tasks not directly stated, but have a direct impact on 
completion of this project 

▪ Lubbock is responsible for the identification and interpretation of, and ensuring compliance
with, all laws, statutes, rules, regulations and standards applicable to its or its affiliates’
business or operations

▪ Lubbock will provide reasonable access to all Lubbock sites and facilities, including where
applicable, computer equipment, telecom equipment, facilities, workspace and telephone
for WWT’s use during the project
− Lubbock will on-board WWT employees based on identified need, including remote

access, as mutually agreed by both parties during the course of the project
▪ Lubbock and WWT will jointly define standard configuration templates by the mutually

agreed upon date defined during the project initiation and documented in the project plan
of record

▪ Lubbock and WWT will jointly define the required physical and logical site information by
the mutually agreed upon date defined during the project initiation and documented in the
project plan of record

▪ Each Task and Deliverable set out herein shall be deemed accepted unless Lubbock provides
written notice of non-conformance or rejection within five (5) business days of delivery or
notice of completion. If possible, WWT will continue work pending acceptance

▪ Lubbock will supply access information and credentials to the engineer(s) for any Lubbock
tools and all existing equipment that needs to be configured or may need to be modified
within five (5) business days of WWT’s written request for access

▪ Lubbock will confirm site readiness including circuits, cabling, power, cooling, and rack space
in accordance with the agreed upon project schedule

▪ Lubbock will specify physical and logical network topology for existing network
infrastructure and identify connectivity requirements for other network-attached devices

▪ Lubbock will install and verify the operation of all equipment not provided by WWT; this
equipment will be installed, tested, and operational in accordance with the agreed upon
project schedule

▪ Lubbock will provide all cabling (i.e. infrastructure, patch, and workstation) required to
complete the installation that is not included with the project equipment or listed on WWT
quote; cabling will be delivered and/or installed

▪ Lubbock will ensure that all circuits have been labeled in a manner that clearly identifies
each component

▪ Lubbock will ensure adequate power to terminate the equipment
▪ Lubbock is responsible for all server and network security definitions and it is assumed that

the WWT technical resources will have appropriate configuration requirements prior to the
design and implementation commencing

▪ Lubbock will provide all security lockdowns required for any deployed systems prior to
scheduling resources to arrive on-site. Lubbock will provide timely technical assistance in
the event a lockdown prevents a deployed solution from functioning properly. In the event
that a solution cannot be found without impacting the schedule, Lubbock and WWT will
document the solution and determine to extend the timeline or back-out the lockdown until
the solution works. Lockdowns will not be required or implemented for virtual appliances

▪ Lubbock will provide Virtual Private Network (VPN) or other remote access and appropriate
credentials in order to complete this project

▪ Provide documentation of existing environment as necessary
▪ Provide device naming standards



City of Lubbock 
 Cisco UC Upgrade | April 2024 

Internal Request # R-00817322 
Page | 10 

▪ Provide any service accounts that are required
▪ Customer is responsible for all supporting network infrastructure and systems required. This

includes, but is not limited to application of trusted Differentiated Services Code Point
(“DSCP") for Quality of Service (“QoS”), Voice Virtual Local Area Network (VLAN) definition,
Dynamic Host Configuration Protocol (“DHCP”) configuration 150, Accounts within
Exchange, Lightweight Directory Access Protocol (“LDAP”), signing of Certificate Signing
Request (“CSR”) generated from environment, etc.

▪ Customer is responsible for SFTP server and network share of sufficient size to store and
maintain system backups

▪ Provide sufficient access to common and core services such as DNS, DHCP, NTP, LDAP or
Active Directory, and databases that are necessary

▪ There will be no jabber or IPC client deployment
▪ Customer will establish and/or migrate existing SIP and PRI/POTS functionality during and

after migration
▪ Customer is responsible for placement of new endpoints and migrated site testing
▪ Customer is responsible for IOS version upgrades of the voice and analog gateway(s) to

latest compatible version (where applicable), and integrated with the upgraded CUCM
system

▪ Customer will coordinate with Windows AD, security, exchange and network teams to work
with the WWT engineer in a timely fashion as to not create delay in the implementation.
Should tasks not be assigned as expected this may cause a slip of the schedule, Customer
must contact the WWT PM and give a status of all tasks assigned to Customer so the
engineer’s schedule can be created to allow for most effective use while onsite.  Failure to
alert the WWT PM may result in wasted engineering hours and may require a change order
to account for these hours. These tasks include but are not limited to:
− Network readiness (all sites)
− Active Directory readiness
− Configuration of network security devices including firewalls and IDS as recommended

by the WWT engineer to allow the proper use of the Cisco UC Suite in accordance with
the UCR and ESC APL certification

− Installation of the new hardware to include rack and stack and connection to the
network.  The customer is responsible for making new equipment available to the WWT
engineer remotely.

Note: Success of the project is dependent on the responsibilities above. Lubbock shall complete all 
required tasks in this section without delay to allow continuous work effort by WWT personnel. If 
responsibilities indicated above are not completed prior to the deployment date, the project 
timelines may need to be rescheduled based on WWT engineering availability. 

3 Assumptions 

In preparing this SOW, WWT made certain assumptions for items not expressly documented during 
discussions with Lubbock. Changes to these assumptions may affect scope and cost. 

▪ WWT will not be responsible for any project delays or costs caused by failure to deliver or by
delayed provision of information, systems, or feedback from Lubbock or third party vendors



City of Lubbock 
 Cisco UC Upgrade | April 2024 

Internal Request # R-00817322 
Page | 11 

▪ Tasks will be completed during normal business hours between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.
project site local time, Monday through Friday, excluding WWT-observed holidays, unless
otherwise negotiated and noted in this SOW

▪ WWT will assign all staff resources as to best-fit total requirements and no individual
employee is being specifically promised or quoted for this project

▪ WWT shall rely upon any standard operating procedures or practices of Lubbock and any
direction, or regulatory or other guidance provided by Lubbock as agreed to during the
project initiation

▪ Any configuration or modification made by WWT to any third party software or materials
provided by Lubbock or work incorporating such items will be subject to the ownership and
other rights agreed to by Lubbock with the applicable third party. Lubbock understands any
such configuration or modification may negate the third party warranty and/or support, and
WWT will hold no liability for any configuration or modification performed at Lubbock’s
direction

▪ WWT is not providing any warranty regarding, and is not liable for, any third party or
Lubbock software, documentation, equipment, tools or other products or materials, even if
recommended by WWT

▪ Time estimates for the implementation of the solution do not include time required for
Customer change control processes. Any change control process delays that impact the time
and level of effort to deliver the solution will incur a change order for the time difference

▪ WWT may deliver the Services through a combination of employees, contractors, and
subcontractors working under WWT’s direction, at WWT’s discretion

▪ The services may include advice and recommendations, but all decisions in connection with
the implementation of such advice and recommendations will be the responsibility of, and
made by, Lubbock

▪ All business days worked as part of this project will be consecutive unless agreed to in
advance by both Lubbock and WWT

▪ Notwithstanding any conflicting or contrary terms in the Agreement, including any
applicable order of precedence, Lubbock understands that WWT personnel located globally
may perform the Services herein and, by its authorized signature, Lubbock expressly
acknowledges and approves

▪ Upon completion of installation and configuration of the solution, WWT will present
Lubbock with an ATP. Both parties will complete the ATP with identified representatives
signing off on each portion of testing, validating the successful certification of each task
documented in the ATP document

▪ Knowledge transfer will not include any courseware or formal lab manuals. It will be hands-
on knowledge transfer on the deployed solution within the Lubbock environment. This is an
informal sharing of information between technical peers and is intended to supplement but
not replace any manufacturer’s formal system implementation or administration classes.
Formal classroom offerings may be offered and scheduled through WWT

▪ The pricing and effort represented in this SOW is based upon one (1) cutover weekend, and
eight (8) hour(s) per change window as confirmed during the project initiation. Any changes
to this will be managed through the Change Control process

▪ If at any time, the United States Government or its duly appointed representatives issues a
safety, terrorism, tariff, or other legally binding statement(s) that impacts WWT’s ability to
transact business in the affected country, WWT reserves the right to defer or exclude scope
obligations for the countries impacted. WWT will reduce the cost commensurate with the
reduced scope



City of Lubbock 
 Cisco UC Upgrade | April 2024 

Internal Request # R-00817322 
Page | 12 

▪ If WWT Personnel are required to be onsite during this engagement, the parties are
proceeding under the assumption that there are no onsite safety hazards. Lubbock is not
required to complete a WWT Customer Safety Assessment Questionnaire (“Safety
Questionnaire”). Upon arrival at each site, WWT Personnel will perform a brief visual
inspection for onsite safety hazards. If WWT Personnel identify any onsite safety hazard(s),
then Lubbock will complete a Safety Questionnaire, available at https://wwt.com/csq, for
each site or for each group of sites with reasonably similar risks. A Change Order will
address the onsite hazards, personnel safety measures, and any additional requirements

Note:  When applicable (projects implementing Communications Manager or Communications 
Manager Express). As a standard implementation practice, WWT will route all Emergency Services 
calls (Police/Fire/Rescue) to the municipal Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) via the Public 
Switched Telephone Network (PSTN) Voice Gateway router in each physical location. As a general 
rule, Emergency Services calls are defined as calls to either 911 or X911 (where X = local PSTN 
trunk access code, for example 9911). All telephone instruments equipped with a handset, 
headset, speakerphone or TDD/TTY device will be permitted access to both route patterns at all 
times, regardless of other dialing restrictions in place on the Unified Communications system. 

4 Pricing Summary 

This is a Firm Fixed price project as described above. Costs for hardware and software are not 
included in WWT’s fees.  

Work will be performed at City of Lubbock facilities in the location(s) listed in the Project Sites 
section and/or remotely. The duration of this project is estimated at ten (10) weeks. The project 
schedule will support the overall duration of the project and will include events from the project 
initiation through confirmation of project closure. Fees setout below are contingent upon 
performance of the services continuously and without delay. 

The firm fixed labor budget for this work is as follows: 

Professional Services 

Project Name Price 

Cisco UC Upgrade $124,662.00 

Total Professional Services $124,662.00 

Note: 
▪ Pricing shown in U.S. dollars. Pricing is valid for ninety (90) days from the date of the SOW
▪ Taxes are not included in the above pricing
▪ An invoice will be generated upon completion of the project as described above and

following acceptance by City of Lubbock
▪ Payment Terms are net-30 days from WWT invoice date

4.1 Project Change Control 

▪ If either party requests a change to this SOW or in the performance of Services for any
reason including:



City of Lubbock 
 Cisco UC Upgrade | April 2024 

Internal Request # R-00817322 
Page | 13 

▪ A change to the agreed upon project timeline, schedule, or duration, or
▪ An absence of or delay in approvals or access to facilities, equipment, or materials necessary

to perform the Services, or
▪ Change in the performance of work onsite or remotely, or
▪ Identification of onsite hazards and related safety and risk mitigation measures, or
▪ Non-compliance or delayed compliance with a condition, responsibility, or assumption set

out herein, or
▪ A deficiency in fulfillment or delayed fulfillment in Product delivery, or
▪ Any other circumstances outside of WWT’s control

Then the requesting party will promptly notify the other party, and WWT will prepare and submit to 
Lubbock a proposed Change Order (CO). The CO will describe the proposed change(s) and the 
impact on schedule and cost. Lubbock will promptly review and either approve or reject a proposed 
CO in writing within five (5) business days. WWT reserves the right to stop performing the Services 
pending the resolution of a proposed CO without liability for subsequent delays. A proposed change 
is not binding on either party until a CO is signed by both WWT and Lubbock and accompanied by a 
Purchase Order (if applicable). 

▪ If a proposed change results from a cancellation, delay, or change to an agreed upon project
schedule and less than fourteen (14) days’ notice has been provided, the CO will include up
to two (2) weeks’ charges for the scheduled personnel and non-refundable travel expenses
(if any)

▪ If the project is delayed for more than fourteen (14) calendar days, then the project will be
rescheduled. WWT will staff the rescheduled project with qualified personnel available at
that time

▪ If the project is delayed for thirty (30) calendar days or more for reasons outside of WWT’s
direct control, WWT may invoice Lubbock for work performed, and Lubbock shall pay such
invoice per the payment terms



World Wide
Technology

Appendix 1: Approval to Proceed with Project

City of Lubbock
Cisco 1K Upgrade I April 2024

The undersigned parties each understand and agree that this SOW accurately sets forth the services
that WWT will provide City of Lubbock

Following receipt of signed SOW and City of Lubbock’s Purchase Order’, a WWT Project Manager
will be in contact to discuss next steps. WWT requires a minimum of four (4) weeks’ notice to begin
project implementation from date of receipt of signed SOW and City of Lubbock’s Purchase Order’.
WWT price quote is valid for ninety (90) days from date of this SOW.

(Signature) Mark McBrayer, Mayor
City of Lubbock

?7b
rçzQ Gregory Brush

(Signatu (Print Name)

World Wide Technology, LLC

ATTEST:

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Customer Contact Name

Customer Contact Title

Customer Phone Number

Customer Email Address

Project Site Address

‘if this form is not accompanied by a Purchase Order, please complete the information below:

Date

June 21, 2024

Date

PPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

City Attorney

Please return I pages of this signed SOW and Purchase Order’ to your WINY Account Manager.

Customet Bill to Address

Customer A/P Representative Name

Customer A/P Representative Email

Reference N (for invoicing) if not
Purchase Order

rnteroal Request 11P00817322
P4e I 14



City of Lubbock 
 Cisco UC Upgrade | April 2024 

Internal Request # R-00817322 v1.0 
Page | 15 

Appendix 2: Project Completion 

The project contracted to WWT has been successfully completed. <Customer Short Name> has 
inspected the work of WWT and has determined that all assigned tasks, tests, and deliverables have 
been completed in a professional and quality manner. 

WWT Project #: 

Project # TBD 

Site: Customer Contact: 

Project Overview: 

City UC Upgrade 

Please return this form to your WWT Project Manager 

Please sign this document at the completion of the project if properly completed in accordance with 
the SOW, thereby releasing WWT from any responsibility (outside any other existing contract 
coverage or warranties) of the project. 



 AI# 12641 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 20. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution designating the City Manager as the authorized official, to
apply for and execute an agreement with the State of Texas Office of the Governor's Rifle-Resistant
Body Armor Grant Program FY2025, to fund the purchase of rifle resistant body armor for the Police
Department.

Item Summary
The application for the Office of the Governor's Rifle-Resistant Body Armor Grant Program FY2025
requires the authorized official to be granted permission to apply, accept, reject, alter, or terminate the
grant on behalf of the applicant agency. This resolution designates the City Manager, W. Jarrett
Atkinson, as the authorized official to apply for grant funding up to $93,306.50 from the State of Texas
Office of the Governor. The City of Lubbock Police Department (LPD) has been approved to apply for
these funds, and LPD will manage this grant.

If awarded, the grant funding of up to $93,306.50 will allow LPD to purchase Rifle Resistant Body
Armor, National Institute of Justice (NIJ) Standard: 0101.06 compliant, to equip 50 of LPD's patrol
officers, including ancillary units who actively support patrol functions and responsibilities.

This grant will not require a local match. Shipping costs of approximately $2,000 or less may need to be
covered outside the grant funds (Approximately $2,000 or less).

Fiscal Impact
If the application is approved, the grant funding program could provide the Lubbock Police Department
up to $93,306.50 to fund the purchase of rifle-resistant body armor. This grant will not require a local
match.

Staff/Board Recommending
Seth Herman, Chief of Police

Attachments
Resolution-Rifle Resistant Body Armor 
Application - Rifle Resistant Body Armor 
Narrative-Rifle Resistant Body Armor 







      
Agency Name: Lubbock, City of   
Grant/App: 4525502  Start Date: 10/1/2024  End Date: 9/30/2025   
Fund Source: BG-Rifle-Resistant Body Armor Grant Program (BAGP)   
Project Title: Rifle Resistant Body Armor   
Status: Application - Release Review to Applicant  Fund Block: 2025 
 
Eligibility Information 
Your organization's Texas Payee/Taxpayer ID Number: 
17560005906000 
 
Application Eligibility Certify: 
Created on:1/9/2024 11:07:58 AM By:Ryan Brumley 
 
 
Profile Information 
Applicant Agency Name: Lubbock, City of 
Project Title: Rifle Resistant Body Armor 
Division or Unit to Administer the Project: Lubbock Police Department 
Address Line 1: 1314 Ave. K 
Address Line 2:  
City/State/Zip: Lubbock Texas 79401-2726  
Start Date: 10/1/2024 
End Date: 9/30/2025 
 
Regional Council of Goverments(COG) within the Project's Impact Area: South 
Plains Association of Governments 
Headquarter County: Lubbock 
Counties within Project's Impact Area: Lubbock 
 
Grant Officials: 
Authorized Official 
Name: W. Jarrett Atkinson 
Email: jatkinson@mylubbock.us 
Address 1: P.O. Box 2000 
Address 1:  
City: Lubbock, Texas 79457 
Phone: 806-775-2016 Other Phone:  
Fax: 806-775-3924 
Title: Mr. 
Salutation: Mr. 
Position: City Manager 
 
Financial Official 
Name: Ollie Cortez 
Email: ocortez@mylubbock.us 
Address 1: 1314 ave K 
Address 1:  
City: Lubbock, Texas 79401 
Phone: 806-775-2183 Other Phone: 806-474-3648 
Fax: 806-775-3273 



Title: Mr. 
Salutation: Mr. 
Position: Kronos and Grants Manager  
 
Project Director 
Name: Ryan Brumley 
Email: rbrumley@mylubbock.us 
Address 1: 1205 15th 
Address 1:  
City: Lubbock, Texas 79401 
Phone: 806-775-2877 Other Phone:  
Fax:  
Title: Mr. 
Salutation: Lieutenant 
Position: Administration Lieutenant 
 
Grant Writer 
Name: Ryan Brumley 
Email: rbrumley@mylubbock.us 
Address 1: 1205 15th 
Address 1:  
City: Lubbock, Texas 79401 
Phone: 806-775-2877 Other Phone:  
Fax:  
Title: Mr. 
Salutation: Lieutenant 
Position: Administration Lieutenant 
 
 
Grant Vendor Information 
Organization Type: Unit of Local Government (City, Town, or Village) 
Organization Option: applying to provide services to all others 
Applicant Agency's State Payee Identification Number (e.g., Federal Employer's 
Identification (FEI) Number or Vendor ID): 17560005906000 
Unique Entity Identifier (UEI): LXDNEKWRVKJ6 
 
Narrative Information 
Introduction  
The Rifle-Resistant Body Armor Grant Program supports equipping law enforcement officers 
at risk of shootings with rifle-resistant body armor. 
 
 
Program-Specific Questions  
Applicants must enter the number of officers currently employed by the agency. 
 
 
Peace Officers - all peace officers currently employed by the agency 
 
Current total number of officers: 
 
436  



Reserve Officers - all other reserve officers 
 
Current total number of officers: 
 
0  
Certifications  
In addition to the requirements found in existing statute, regulation, and the funding 
announcement, this program requires applicant organizations to certify compliance with the 
following: 
 
Constitutional Compliance 
Applicant assures that it will not engage in any activity that violates Constitutional law 
including profiling based upon race. 
 
Required Agency Policies 
Applicant assures that it has adopted policies addressing the deployment and allocation of 
vests or plates to its officers; and the usage of vests or plates by its officers. PSO requires 
that the policy on usage of vests or plates include mandatory training on the proper care, 
fitting, inspection, use, storage, and maintenance of the armor. PSO also requires the policy 
specify that body armor may not be left in patrol vehicles when an officer is not on duty in 
order to minimize the heat damage to the armor. 
 
In crafting these policies, applicants should be aware that the inspection, storage, and 
replacement of body armor were identified as potential points of failure in body armor use 
by the Police Executive Research Forum. See “A Practitioner’s Guide To the 2011 National 
Body Armor Survey of Law Enforcement Officers" for more information.  
 
NIJ Body Armor Standards 
Applicant assures that body armor purchased with grant funds will comply with the National 
Institute of Justice (NIJ) standard (Ballistic Resistance of Body Armor NIJ Standard-
0101.06) for type III (rifles) or type IV (armor piercing rifle) body armor, including bullet-
resistant vests, ballistic plates, and plate carriers. 
 
Personally Fitted Vest Requirement 
Applicant assures that all body armor vests purchased with grant funds will be personally 
fitted for individual officers, including vests specifically fitted to individual female law 
enforcement officers. “Personally fitted” does not require armor be individually 
manufactured based on the measurements of a specific wearer, but rather that it provide 
the best possible fit and coverage, through a combination of: 
1. Correctly-sized panels and carrier, determined through appropriate measurement; and 
2. Properly adjusted straps, harnesses, fasteners, flaps, or other adjustable features. 
 
The American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) International has made available the 
Standard Practice for Body Armor Wearer Measurement and Fitting of Armor (Active 
Standard ASTM E3003) available at no cost. The Personal Armor Fit Assessment checklist, is 
excerpted from ASTM E3003. 
 
Cybersecurity Training Requirement 
Local units of governments must comply with the Cybersecurity Training requirements 
described in Section 772.012 and Section 2054.5191 of the Texas Government Code. Local 
governments determined to not be in compliance with the cybersecurity requirements 
required by Section 2054.5191 of the Texas Government Code are ineligible for OOG grant 
funds until the second anniversary of the date the local government is determined ineligible. 



Government entities must annually certify their compliance with the training requirements 
using the Cybersecurity Training Certification for State and Local Government. A copy of the 
Training Certification must be uploaded to your eGrants application. For more information or 
to access available training programs, visit the Texas Department of Information Resources 
Statewide Cybersecurity Awareness Training page. 
 
Criminal History Reporting 
Entities receiving funds from PSO must be located in a county that has an average of 90% 
or above on both adult and juvenile dispositions entered into the computerized criminal 
history database maintained by the Texas Department of Public Safety (DPS) as directed in 
the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, Chapter 66. The disposition completeness percentage 
is defined as the percentage of arrest charges a county reports to DPS for which a 
disposition has been subsequently reported and entered into the computerized criminal 
history system. 
 
Counties applying for grant awards from the Office of the Governor must commit that the 
county will report at least 90 percent of convictions within five business days to the Criminal 
Justice Information System at the Department of Public Safety. 
 
Uniform Crime Reporting (UCR) 
Eligible applicants operating a law enforcement agency must be current on reporting 
complete UCR data and the Texas specific reporting mandated by 411.042 TGC, to the 
Texas Department of Public Safety (DPS) for inclusion in the annual Crime in Texas (CIT) 
publication. To be considered eligible for funding, applicants must have submitted a full 
twelve months of accurate data to DPS for the most recent calendar year by the deadline(s) 
established by DPS. Due to the importance of timely reporting, applicants are required to 
submit complete and accurate UCR data, as well as the Texas-mandated reporting, on a no 
less than monthly basis and respond promptly to requests from DPS related to the data 
submitted. 
 
Entities That Collect Sexual Assault/Sex Offense Evidence or 
Investigate/Prosecute Sexual Assault or Other Sex Offenses 
In accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 420.034, any facility or entity that 
collects evidence for sexual assault or other sex offenses or investigates or prosecutes a 
sexual assault or other sex offense for which evidence has been collected, must participate 
in the statewide electronic tracking system developed and implemented by the Texas 
Department of Public Safety. Visit Sexual Assault Evidence Tracking Program website for 
more information or to set up an account to begin participating. Additionally, per Section 
420.042 "A law enforcement agency that receives evidence of a sexual assault or other sex 
offense...shall submit that evidence to a public accredited crime laboratory for analysis no 
later than the 30th day after the date on which that evidence was received." A law 
enforcement agency in possession of a significant number of Sexual Assault Evidence Kits 
(SAEK) where the 30-day window has passed may be considered noncompliant.  
 
 
Compliance with State and Federal Laws, Programs and Procedures  
Local units of government, including cities, counties and other general purpose political 
subdivisions, as appropriate, and institutions of higher education that operate a law 
enforcement agency, must comply with all aspects of the programs and procedures utilized 
by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security (“DHS”) to: (1) notify DHS of all information 
requested by DHS related to illegal aliens in Agency’s custody; and (2) detain such illegal 
aliens in accordance with requests by DHS. Additionally, counties and municipalities may 
NOT have in effect, purport to have in effect, or make themselves subject to or bound by, 



any law, rule, policy, or practice (written or unwritten) that would: (1) require or authorize 
the public disclosure of federal law enforcement information in order to conceal, harbor, or 
shield from detection fugitives from justice or aliens illegally in the United States; or (2) 
impede federal officers from exercising authority under 8 U.S.C. § 1226(a), § 1226(c), § 
1231(a), § 1357(a), § 1366(1), or § 1366(3). Lastly, eligible applicants must comply with 
all provisions, policies, and penalties found in Chapter 752, Subchapter C of the Texas 
Government Code. 
 
Each local unit of government, and institution of higher education that operates a law 
enforcement agency, must download, complete and then upload into eGrants the CEO/Law 
Enforcement Certifications and Assurances Form certifying compliance with federal and state 
immigration enforcement requirements. This Form is required for each application submitted 
to PSO and is active until August 31, 2025 or the end of the grant period, whichever is later. 
 
 
Overall Certification  
Each applicant agency must certify to the specific requirements detailed above as well as to 
comply with all requirements within the PSO Funding Announcement, the Guide to Grants, 
the Grantee Conditions and Responsibilities, any authorizing or applicable state and federal 
statutes and regulations to be eligible for this program. 
 
X   I certify to all of the application content & requirements. 
 
 
 
 
Project Abstract :  
 
LPD officers regularly respond to violent and potentially violent situations that may include 
active shooters, barricaded armed suspects, shots fired calls, hostage scenarios, or officer 
rescues. Their daily duties necessitate rifle resistant body armor. At present, there are a 
large number of primarily patrol officers that are equipped with soft armor only that is not 
sufficient to address the threats they face. 
 
Problem Statement :  
 
LPD officers conduct person and vehicle stops, detain persons for warrant checks, respond 
to calls for service from the public, patrol high crime areas, and enforce traffic laws. Other 
duties require that they provide security at large public gatherings to keep order and peace. 
Gatherings may include riots, mass protests, parades and festivals. They are actual first 
responders to situations where they could be exposed to gunfire that necessitates rifle 
resistant armor. At present, there are a large number of primarily patrol officers that are 
equipped with soft armor only that is not sufficient to address the threats they face. 
 
Supporting Data :  
 
The violent situations LPD is called to address increasingly involve firearms and in particular, 
assault rifle type weapons. In 2020, LPD responded to 2,714 shots fired calls, 44 of which 
involved rifles. In 2021, LPD responded to 2,573 shots fired calls, 26 of which involved 
rifles. 
 



Project Approach & Activities:  
 
Requested grant funds would be used to equip 50 officers with rifle resistant body armor. 
Not only do regular duties necessitate access to rifle resistant armor, but the LPD assigns a 
take-home vehicle to each individual officer. These vehicles are to be utilized off-duty in 
order to mobilize additional, fully equipped off-duty officers directly to points of need in 
emergencies. Officers are required by policy to respond to felonies in progress when they 
are closer in proximity than on-duty units. This means that off-duty officers may respond to 
and engage in active shooter calls, sniper calls, hostage situations, and other dangerous 
calls for service. In these situations, officers have need for rifle resistant armor.  
 
Capacity & Capabilities:  
The LPD was awarded funds in 2018 to purchase body armor for a number of our officers. 
We had success in the bidding, purchasing, fitting and distribution process. These same 
methods and personnel would be used again should funds be awarded in order to purchase 
everyday wear level three armor. 
 
Performance Management :  
 
Success for this project will be the equipping of 24 of our officers with rifle resistant body 
armor. Policy mandated equipment audits / inspections will help ensure on-going success 
and achievement of goals and safety standards. 
 
Target Group :  
 
The LPD serves the public at large in the City of Lubbock. It also serves surrounding LE 
agencies and county residents as needed in emergencies.  
 
Evidence-Based Practices:  
 
The project approach and methods will be substantially similar to previous methods used for 
this purpose. Past success indicates sound methodology and processes. 
 
Project Activities Information 
Introduction  
This section contains questions about your project. It is very important for applicants to 
review their funding announcement for guidance on how to fill out this section. Unless 
otherwise specified, answers should be about the EXPECTED activities to occur during the 
project period. 
 
 
Selected Project Activities: 
ACTIVITY PERCENTAGE: DESCRIPTION 

Equipment 
and 
Technology 

100.00 

The LPD will plan to use the awarded funds to purchase 
level three, everyday wear body armor for our law 
enforcement personnel. The armor will be used as our 
officers respond to a variety of citizen calls including 
armed suspects, active shooters, domestic disturbances, 
etc. Distribution will begin based on current assignment 



and highest need as determined by department 
leadership. 

 
 
CJD Purpose Areas 

PERCENT DEDICATED PURPOSE AREA PURPOSE AREA DESCRIPTION 

 
 
Measures Information 
 
 
 
 
Objective Output Measures 

OUTPUT MEASURE TARGET 
LEVEL 

Equipment or technology: 
Individuals/Operators equipped 50 

Equipment or technology: 
Organizations directly using 1 

Number of bullet resistant 
plates purchased with grant 
funds 

100 

Number of bullet resistant vests 
purchased with grant funds. 50 

Number of plate carriers 
purchased with grant funds 50 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Objective Outcome Measures 

OUTCOME MEASURE TARGET LEVEL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Custom Output Measures 



CUSTOM OUTPUT 
MEASURE 

TARGET 
LEVEL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Custom Outcome Measures 

CUSTOM OUTCOME 
MEASURE 

TARGET 
LEVEL 

 
 
 

Resolution from Governing Body  
Applications from nonprofit corporations, local units of governments, and other political 
subdivisions must include a resolution that contains the following: 

1. Authorization by your governing body for the submission of the application to the 
Public Safety Office (PSO) that clearly identifies the name of the project for which 
funding is requested; 

2. A commitment to provide all applicable matching funds; 
3. A designation of the name and/or title of an authorized official who is given the 

authority to apply for, accept, reject, alter, or terminate a grant (Note: If a name is 
provided, you must update the PSO should the official change during the grant 
period.); and 

4. A written assurance that, in the event of loss or misuse of grant funds, the governing 
body will return all funds to PSO. 

 
 
 
Upon approval from your agency's governing body, upload the approved resolution to 
eGrants by clicking on the Upload Files sub-tab located in the Summary tab. 
 
 
Contract Compliance  
Will PSO grant funds be used to support any contracts for professional services? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
X No 
 
 
For applicant agencies that selected Yes above, describe how you will monitor the activities 
of the sub-contractor(s) for compliance with the contract provisions (including equipment 



purchases), deliverables, and all applicable statutes, rules, regulations, and guidelines 
governing this project. 
 
Enter a description for monitoring contract compliance: 
 
 
Lobbying  
For applicant agencies requesting grant funds in excess of $100,000, have any federally 
appropriated funds been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with the 
awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal 
loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, 
renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant loan, or cooperative 
agreement? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
X N/A 
 
 
For applicant agencies that selected either No or N/A above, have any non-federal funds 
been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer 
or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress in 
connection with this federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
X No 
_ N/A 
 
 
Fiscal Year  
Provide the begin and end date for the applicant agency's fiscal year (e.g., 09/01/20xx to 
08/31/20xx). 
 
Enter the Begin Date [mm/dd/yyyy]: 
 
10/1/2024  
Enter the End Date [mm/dd/yyyy]: 
 
9/30/2025  
Sources of Financial Support  
Each applicant must provide the amount of grant funds expended during the most recently 
completed fiscal year for the following sources: 
 
 



Enter the amount (in Whole Dollars $) of Federal Grant Funds expended: 
 
52356226  
Enter the amount (in Whole Dollars $) of State Grant Funds expended: 
 
1395750  
Single Audit  
Applicants who expend less than $750,000 in federal grant funding or less than $750,000 in 
state grant funding are exempt from the Single Audit Act and cannot charge audit costs to a 
PSO grant. However, PSO may require a limited scope audit as defined in 2 CFR Part 200, 
Subpart F - Audit Requirements. 
 
Has the applicant agency expended federal grant funding of $750,000 or more, or state 
grant funding of $750,000 or more during the most recently completed fiscal year? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
X Yes 
_ No 
 
 
Applicant agencies that selected Yes above, provide the date of your organization's last 
annual single audit, performed by an independent auditor in accordance with the State of 
Texas Single Audit Circular; or CFR Part 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements. 
 
Enter the date of your last annual single audit: 
 
3/28/2023  
Debarment  
Each applicant agency will certify that it and its principals (as defined in 2 CFR Part 
180.995): 
  Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, 
sentenced to a denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal Court, or voluntarily excluded 
from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency; 
  Have not within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of or had a 
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, or 
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or state 
antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; or 
  Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental 
entity (federal, state, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in the 
above bullet; and have not within a three-year period preceding this application had one or 
more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
X I Certify 
_ Unable to Certify 
 
 



If you selected Unable to Certify above, please provide an explanation as to why the 
applicant agency cannot certify the statements. 
 
 
 
Fiscal Capability Information 
Section 1: Organizational Information  
*** FOR PROFIT CORPORATIONS ONLY *** 
 
Enter the following values in order to submit the application 
Enter the Year in which the Corporation was Founded: 0 
Enter the Date that the IRS Letter Granted 501(c)(3) Tax Exemption Status: 01/01/1900 
Enter the Employer Identification Number Assigned by the IRS: 0 
Enter the Charter Number assigned by the Texas Secretary of State: 0 
 
 
Enter the Year in which the Corporation was Founded: 
 
 
Enter the Date that the IRS Letter Granted 501(c)(3) Tax Exemption Status: 
 
 
Enter the Employer Identification Number Assigned by the IRS: 
 
 
Enter the Charter Number assigned by the Texas Secretary of State: 
 
 
Section 2: Accounting System  
The grantee organization must incorporate an accounting system that will track direct and 
indirect costs for the organization (general ledger) as well as direct and indirect costs by 
project (project ledger). The grantee must establish a time and effort system to track 
personnel costs by project. This should be reported on an hourly basis, or in increments of 
an hour. 
 
 
Is there a list of your organization's accounts identified by a specific number (i.e., a general 
ledger of accounts)? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
 
 
Does the accounting system include a project ledger to record expenditures for each 
Program by required budget cost categories? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 



_ Yes 
_ No 
 
 
Is there a timekeeping system that allows for grant personnel to identify activity and 
requires signatures by the employee and his or her supervisor? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
 
 
If you answered 'No' to any question above in the Accounting System section, in the space 
provided below explain what action will be taken to ensure accountability. 
 
Enter your explanation: 
 
 
Section 3: Financial Capability  
Grant agencies should prepare annual financial statements. At a minimum, current internal 
balance sheet and income statements are required. A balance sheet is a statement of 
financial position for a grant agency disclosing assets, liabilities, and retained earnings at a 
given point in time. An income statement is a summary of revenue and expenses for a grant 
agency during a fiscal year. 
 
 
Has the grant agency undergone an independent audit? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
 
 
Does the organization prepare financial statements at least annually? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
 
 
According to the organization's most recent Audit or Balance Sheet, are the current total 
assets greater than the liabilities? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 



 
 
If you selected 'No' to any question above under the Financial Capability section, in the 
space provided below explain what action will be taken to ensure accountability. 
 
Enter your explanation: 
 
 
Section 4: Budgetary Controls  
Grant agencies should establish a system to track expenditures against budget and / or 
funded amounts. 
 
 
Are there budgetary controls in effect (e.g., comparison of budget with actual expenditures 
on a monthly basis) to include drawing down grant funds in excess of: 
 
a) Total funds authorized on the Statement of Grant Award? 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
 
 
b) Total funds available for any budget category as stipulated on the Statement of Grant 
Award? 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
 
 
If you selected 'No' to any question above under the Budgetary Controls section, in the 
space provided below please explain what action will be taken to ensure accountability. 
 
Enter your explanation: 
 
 
Section 5: Internal Controls  
Grant agencies must safeguard cash receipts, disbursements, and ensure a segregation of 
duties exist. For example, one person should not have authorization to sign checks and 
make deposits. 
 
 
Are accounting entries supported by appropriate documentation (e.g., purchase orders, 
vouchers, receipts, invoices)? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
 
 



Is there separation of responsibility in the receipt, payment, and recording of costs? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
 
 
If you selected 'No' to any question above under the Internal Controls section, in the space 
provided below please explain what action will be taken to ensure accountability. 
 
Enter your explanation: 
 
 
 
Budget Details Information 
Budget Information by Budget Line Item: 

CATEGORY 
SUB 
CATEGORY 

DESCRIPTION OOG 
CASH 

MATCH 

IN-
KIND 

MATCH 
GPI TOTAL UNIT/% 

Supplies and 
Direct 
Operating 
Expenses 

Bulletproof 
Vest ($5,000 
or less per 
unit) 

Rifle Resistant 
Body Armor. 
Angel Armor, 
Model 
Designation: 
Truth 308S ICW 
RISE, Ultra 
Premium, Male, 
Level III ICW 
Armor System. 
NIJ Standard: 
0101.06 
compliant. 
$1867 per unit 
which includes 
soft armor, a 
front IIIA plate, 
and a back IIIA 
plate. $93,307 to 
equip 50 of the 
LPD's officers 
including 
ancillary units 
who actively 
support patrol 
functions and 
responsibilities. 

$93,307.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $93,307.00 0 

 
 
 
Source of Match Information 



 
 
Detail Source of Match/GPI: 

DESCRIPTION MATCH TYPE AMOUNT 

 
 
 
 
Summary Source of Match/GPI: 

Total Report Cash Match In Kind GPI Federal Share GPI State Share 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

 
 
 
Budget Summary Information  
 
Budget Summary Information by Budget Category:  

CATEGORY OOG CASH 
MATCH 

IN-KIND 
MATCH GPI TOTAL 

Supplies and Direct 
Operating Expenses $93,307.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $93,307.00 

 
 
Budget Grand Total Information: 

OOG CASH MATCH IN-KIND MATCH GPI TOTAL 

$93,307.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $93,307.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Condition Of Fundings Information 

Condition of Funding / Project Requirement Date 
Created 

Date 
Met 

Hold 
Funds 

Hold 
Line 
Item 
Funds 

Compliance with State and Federal Laws, Programs 
and Procedures: Local units of government, 

2/27/2024 
9:35:39 AM 

 Yes No 



including cities, counties and other general purpose 
political subdivisions, as appropriate, and 
institutions of higher education that operate a law 
enforcement agency, must comply with all aspects 
of the programs and procedures utilized by the 
U.S. Department of Homeland Security (“DHS”) to: 
(1) notify DHS of all information requested by DHS 
related to illegal aliens in Agency’s custody; and 
(2) detain such illegal aliens in accordance with 
requests by DHS. Additionally, counties and 
municipalities may NOT have in effect, purport to 
have in effect, or make themselves subject to or 
bound by, any law, rule, policy, or practice (written 
or unwritten) that would: (1) require or authorize 
the public disclosure of federal law enforcement 
information in order to conceal, harbor, or shield 
from detection fugitives from justice or aliens 
illegally in the United States; or (2) impede federal 
officers from exercising authority under 8 U.S.C. § 
1226(a), § 1226(c), § 1231(a), § 1357(a), § 
1366(1), or § 1366(3). Lastly, eligible 
grantees/applicants must comply with all 
provisions, policies, and penalties found in Chapter 
752, Subchapter C of the Texas Government Code. 
Each local unit of government and institution of 
higher education that operates a law enforcement 
agency must download, complete and then return 
the 2025 CEO/Law Enforcement Certifications 
and Assurances Form certifying compliance with 
federal and state immigration enforcement 
requirements.  

Resolution: Applications from nonprofit 
corporations, local units of governments, and other 
political subdivisions must submit a resolution 
electronically using the 'Upload' function in the 
eGrants system. The resolution must contain the 
following:  
  Authorization by your governing body for the 
submission of the application to OOG that clearly 
identifies the name of the project for which funding 
is requested;  
  A commitment to provide all applicable matching 
funds;  
  A designation of the name and/or title of an 
authorized official who is given the authority to 
apply for, accept, reject, alter, or terminate a grant 
(Note: If a name is provided, you must update 
OOG should the official change during the grant 
period.); and  

2/27/2024 
9:35:51 AM 

 Yes No 



  A written assurance that, in the event of loss or 
misuse of grant funds, the governing body will 
return all funds to OOG.  

This grant must be administered by the Police 
Department, Sheriff’s Office, Constable Precinct, or 
other Law Enforcement Division/Department within 
the grantee organization as submitted in the 
original application. Deviation from the approved 
budget or project scope requires prior authorization 
from the Public Safety Office. Failure to comply 
with this requirement could result in the 
termination of your grant.  

2/27/2024 
9:36:00 AM 

 No No 

 
 
 
 

You are logged in as User Name: Harley Sturm ; UserName: Sturm_Harley * 
INTERNALUSER 















 AI# 12643 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 21. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution designating the City Manager as the authorized official to
apply for and execute an agreement with the State of Texas Office of the Governor’s Bullet-Resistant
Shield Grant Program FY2025, to fund the purchase of ballistic shields for the Police Department.

Item Summary
The application for the Office of the Governor's Bullet-Resistant Shield Grant Program FY2025 requires
the authorized official to be granted permission to apply, accept, reject, alter, or terminate the grant on
behalf of the applicant agency. This resolution designates the City Manager, W. Jarrett Atkinson, as the
authorized official, to apply for grant funding up to $255,089 from the State of Texas Office of the
Governor. The City of Lubbock Police Department (LPD) has been approved to apply for these funds,
and LPD will manage this grant.

If awarded, the grant funding will allow the department to purchase 40 Paraclete Vanguard Level III
20x30 Ballistic Shields with viewport and light at $6,373.47 per shield. The shields will be dispersed
among the LPD Special Response Group, LPD Special Weapons and Tactics (SWAT) Team, and at
LPD Division Stations.   

This grant will not require a local match.

Fiscal Impact
If the application is approved, the grant funding program could provide LPD up to $255,089 to fund the
purchase of 40 ballistic shields. This grant will not require a local match.

Staff/Board Recommending
Seth Herman, Chief of Police

Attachments
Resolution-Ballistic Shields 
Application - Bullet-Resistant Shield Program 
Narrative-Ballistic Shields 







      
Agency Name: Lubbock, City of   
Grant/App: 4591602  Start Date: 10/1/2024  End Date: 9/30/2025   
Fund Source: SH-Bullet-Resistant Shield Grant Program   
Project Title: Ballistic Shields   
Status: Application - Program Review  Fund Block: 2025 
 
Eligibility Information 
Your organization's Texas Payee/Taxpayer ID Number: 
17560005906000 
 
Application Eligibility Certify: 
Created on:12/19/2023 10:29:58 AM By:Ryan Brumley 
 
 
Profile Information 
Applicant Agency Name: Lubbock, City of 
Project Title: Ballistic Shields 
Division or Unit to Administer the Project: Lubbock Police Department Administration 
Address Line 1: 1205 15th 
Address Line 2:  
City/State/Zip: Lubbock Texas 79401-2726  
Start Date: 10/1/2024 
End Date: 9/30/2025 
 
Regional Council of Goverments(COG) within the Project's Impact Area: South 
Plains Association of Governments 
Headquarter County: Lubbock 
Counties within Project's Impact Area: Lubbock 
 
Grant Officials: 
Authorized Official 
Name: W. Jarrett Atkinson 
Email: jatkinson@mylubbock.us 
Address 1: P.O. Box 2000 
Address 1:  
City: Lubbock, Texas 79457 
Phone: 806-775-2016 Other Phone:  
Fax: 806-775-3924 
Title: Mr. 
Salutation: Mr. 
Position: City Manager 
 
Financial Official 
Name: Ollie Cortez 
Email: ocortez@mylubbock.us 
Address 1: 1314 ave K 
Address 1:  
City: Lubbock, Texas 79401 
Phone: 806-775-2183 Other Phone: 806-474-3648 
Fax: 806-775-3273 



Title: Mr. 
Salutation: Mr. 
Position: Kronos and Grants Manager  
 
Project Director 
Name: Ryan Brumley 
Email: rbrumley@mylubbock.us 
Address 1: 1205 15th 
Address 1:  
City: Lubbock, Texas 79401 
Phone: 806-775-2877 Other Phone:  
Fax:  
Title: Mr. 
Salutation: Lieutenant 
Position: Administration Lieutenant 
 
Grant Writer 
Name: Ryan Brumley 
Email: rbrumley@mylubbock.us 
Address 1: 1205 15th 
Address 1:  
City: Lubbock, Texas 79401 
Phone: 806-775-2877 Other Phone:  
Fax:  
Title: Mr. 
Salutation: Lieutenant 
Position: Administration Lieutenant 
 
 
Grant Vendor Information 
Organization Type: Unit of Local Government (City, Town, or Village) 
Organization Option: applying to provide services to all others 
Applicant Agency's State Payee Identification Number (e.g., Federal Employer's 
Identification (FEI) Number or Vendor ID): 17560005906000 
Unique Entity Identifier (UEI): LXDNEKWRVKJ6 
 
Narrative Information 
Introduction  
The Bullet-Resistant Shield Grant Program equips law enforcement officers at risk of 
shootings with bullet-resistant shields. 
 
 
Certifications  
In addition to the requirements found in existing statute, regulation, and the funding 
announcement, this program requires applicant organizations to certify compliance with the 
following: 
 
Constitutional Compliance 
Applicant assures that it will not engage in any activity that violates Constitutional law 
including profiling based upon race. 
 



Active Shooter Policy 
All eligible organizations that apply for grant funds will ensure its law enforcement agency 
adopts a Critical Incidents In-Progress (Active Shooter) policy implementing, at a minimum, 
protocols for assessing an active threat or violent encounter and immediately responding in 
order to stop the killing, stop the dying, and provide rapid casualty evacuation. The policy 
should include procedures that address: 
• Concepts and Principles 
• Community/First Responder Agency Notifications 
• Mutual Aid Implementation 
• Solo Officer Deployment 
• Officer Team Deployment 
• Follow-On Responders (Rescue Task Force) 
• Incident Command - Unified Command Considerations 
• Incident Debriefing 
• Training 
 
ALERRT Training 
All officers provided with a grant funded ballistic shield must have either attended 16 hours 
of ALERRT (Advanced Law Enforcement Rapid Response Training) within the last 24 months 
or commit to attend within the next 24 months. ALERRT’s upcoming course catalog can be 
found here: https://alerrt.org/Upcoming. 
 
NIJ Ballistic Shield Standards 
Applicant assures that shields purchased with grant funds will comply with the National 
Institute of Justice (NIJ) Level III, III+, or IV. 
 
Cybersecurity Training Requirement 
Local units of governments must comply with the Cybersecurity Training requirements 
described in Section 772.012 and Section 2054.5191 of the Texas Government Code. Local 
governments determined to not be in compliance with the cybersecurity requirements 
required by Section 2054.5191 of the Texas Government Code are ineligible for OOG grant 
funds until the second anniversary of the date the local government is determined ineligible. 
Government entities must annually certify their compliance with the training requirements 
using the Cybersecurity Training Certification for State and Local Government. A copy of the 
Training Certification must be uploaded to your eGrants application. For more information or 
to access available training programs, visit the Texas Department of Information Resources 
Statewide Cybersecurity Awareness Training page. 
 
Criminal History Reporting 
Entities receiving funds from PSO must be located in a county that has an average of 90% 
or above on both adult and juvenile dispositions entered into the computerized criminal 
history database maintained by the Texas Department of Public Safety (DPS) as directed in 
the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, Chapter 66. The disposition completeness percentage 
is defined as the percentage of arrest charges a county reports to DPS for which a 
disposition has been subsequently reported and entered into the computerized criminal 
history system. 
 
Counties applying for grant awards from the Office of the Governor must commit that the 
county will report at least 90% of convictions within five business days to the Criminal 
Justice Information System at the Department of Public Safety. 
 
Uniform Crime Reporting (UCR) 
Eligible applicants operating a law enforcement agency must be current on reporting 

https://alerrt.org/Upcoming
https://dircommunity.force.com/SecurityTrainingVerification/s/CybersecurityTrainingCertification
https://dir.texas.gov/information-security/statewide-cybersecurity-awareness-training
https://dir.texas.gov/information-security/statewide-cybersecurity-awareness-training


complete UCR data and the Texas specific reporting mandated by 411.042 TGC, to the 
Texas Department of Public Safety (DPS) for inclusion in the annual Crime in Texas (CIT) 
publication. To be considered eligible for funding, applicants must have submitted a full 
twelve months of accurate data to DPS for the most recent calendar year by the deadline(s) 
established by DPS. Due to the importance of timely reporting, applicants are required to 
submit complete and accurate UCR data, as well as the Texas-mandated reporting, on a no 
less than monthly basis and respond promptly to requests from DPS related to the data 
submitted. 
 
Entities That Collect Sexual Assault/Sex Offense Evidence or 
Investigate/Prosecute Sexual Assault or Other Sex Offenses 
In accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 420.034, any facility or entity that 
collects evidence for sexual assault or other sex offenses or investigates or prosecutes a 
sexual assault or other sex offense for which evidence has been collected, must participate 
in the statewide electronic tracking system developed and implemented by the Texas 
Department of Public Safety. Visit DPS’s Sexual Assault Evidence Tracking Program website 
for more information or to set up an account to begin participating. Additionally, per Section 
420.042 "A law enforcement agency that receives evidence of a sexual assault or other sex 
offense...shall submit that evidence to a public accredited crime laboratory for analysis no 
later than the 30th day after the date on which that evidence was received." A law 
enforcement agency in possession of a significant number of Sexual Assault Evidence Kits 
(SAEK) where the 30-day window has passed may be considered noncompliant. 
 
 
Compliance with State and Federal Laws, Programs and Procedures  
Local units of government, including cities, counties and other general purpose political 
subdivisions, as appropriate, and institutions of higher education that operate a law 
enforcement agency, must comply with all aspects of the programs and procedures utilized 
by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security (“DHS”) to: (1) notify DHS of all information 
requested by DHS related to illegal aliens in Agency’s custody; and (2) detain such illegal 
aliens in accordance with requests by DHS. Additionally, counties and municipalities may 
NOT have in effect, purport to have in effect, or make themselves subject to or bound by, 
any law, rule, policy, or practice (written or unwritten) that would: (1) require or authorize 
the public disclosure of federal law enforcement information in order to conceal, harbor, or 
shield from detection fugitives from justice or aliens illegally in the United States; or (2) 
impede federal officers from exercising authority under 8 U.S.C. § 1226(a), § 1226(c), § 
1231(a), § 1357(a), § 1366(1), or § 1366(3). Lastly, eligible applicants must comply with 
all provisions, policies, and penalties found in Chapter 752, Subchapter C of the Texas 
Government Code. 
 
Each local unit of government, and institution of higher education that operates a law 
enforcement agency, must download, complete and then upload into eGrants the CEO/Law 
Enforcement Certifications and Assurances Form certifying compliance with federal and state 
immigration enforcement requirements. This Form is required for each application submitted 
to PSO and is active until August 31, 2025 or the end of the grant period, whichever is later. 
 
 
Overall Certification  
Each applicant agency must certify to the specific requirements detailed above as well as to 
comply with all requirements within the PSO Funding Announcement, the Guide to Grants, 
the Grantee Conditions and Responsibilities, any authorizing or applicable state and federal 

https://www.dps.texas.gov/section/crime-laboratory/sexual-assault-evidence-tracking-program


statutes and regulations to be eligible for this program. 
 
X   I certify to all of the application content & requirements. 
 
 
 
 
Project Abstract :  
 
This application, submitted by the Lubbock Police Department, Lubbock, TX, serves as a 
request to equip Lubbock Police Officers with bullet-resistant shields. This application is 
proposed to solicit state funds for this project, as authorized by a Budget Execution Order 
proposed by the Legislative Budget Board and ratified by Governor Abbott on June 28, 
2022, pursuant to Texas Government Code, Section 317.002 and Section 317.005(b). 
 
Problem Statement :  
 
The City of Lubbock Police Department has a department authorized strength of 445 
officers. There are currently 40 (forty) ballistic shields available to frontline peace officers 
that will positively respond to Critical Incidents In-Progress (Active Shooter) emergencies. 
The Lubbock Police Department trains our officers yearly in Active Attack Response, utilizing 
tactics taught and recommended by the Advanced Law Enforcement Rapid Response 
Training (ALERRT) program. The Lubbock Police Department serves as the primary agency 
responsible for Active Shooter response in every school district within our jurisdiction of 135 
square miles. Ballistic Shields will equip our officers with an additional tool necessary to 
effectively gain control of an active attack suspect, and ultimately promote our overall goal 
of saving as many lives as possible within the event.  
 
Supporting Data :  
 
The City of Lubbock has 77 public and 10 private school campuses consisting of grades 
Kindergarten through 12th. This does not include privately owned daycares, early childhood 
centers, nurseries and other adjunct facilities. These campuses house 44,830 students 
among 3 major Independent School Districts. Lubbock, TX is also home to Texas Tech 
University which has a current enrollment of 40,600 students, Lubbock Christian University 
with an enrollment of 1,664 students, South Plains College with an enrollment of 3,936 
students, and Wayland Baptist University with an enrollment of 1,590 students. Of the over 
92,620 students within the City of Lubbock, there are currently only 94 sworn peace officers 
assigned specifically to cover their campuses. These campuses fall in an incorporated city 
limit that consists of 135 square miles, and within Lubbock County that consists of 901 
square miles. The 445 sworn officers of the Lubbock Police Department serve as a force 
multiplier for the understaffed officers specifically serving in an educational venue. Often, it 
is the Lubbock Police Officer who is first on scene in an emergency response to one of these 
campuses. 100% of the time, Lubbock Police Officers will be directly involved in the 
response to an Active Attack event at one of these campuses. To date, there are currently 
no (zero) ballistic shields available to Lubbock Police Officers who will be responding to 
these campuses.  
 
Project Approach & Activities:  
 
The ballistic shields purchased through this grant would be dispersed among the 22 officers 



of the Lubbock Police Department Special Response Group (SRG). SRG officers are evenly 
dispersed among the three shifts that currently exist in the Lubbock Police Department’s 
Field Services Bureau. SRG officers receive extra training in Active Attack Response through 
ALERRT instruction, as well as in other related topics such as Building Clearing, Close 
Quarters Battle, and Officer Down Rescue. 12 ballistic shields purchased through this grant 
would be dispersed among the three Division Stations of the Lubbock Police Department. 
This would allow supervisors or selected officers from each Division Station to take the 
ballistic shields into the field of their respective areas of patrol, making them readily 
available for rapid deployment throughout the city. 6 ballistic shields purchased through this 
grant would be deployed among the Lubbock Police Department’s SWAT Team. The SWAT 
Team does not currently have access to any ballistic shields that do not fall under 
manufacturer expiration.  
 
Capacity & Capabilities:  
The Lubbock Police Department trains all its officers yearly in Active Attack response based 
on ALERRT teachings and methodologies. These tactics include not only ALERRT’s Basic 
response tactics, but also Integrated Response tactics in conjunction with Lubbock’s Fire 
Rescue and Emergency Medical Services. LPD also employs multiple officers among federal 
task force assignments within the FBI, ATF, DEA, USMS and HSI. LPD is among one of the 
founding law enforcement agencies in the region’s Texas Anti-Gang Center (TAG) and 
HIDTA programs. LPD officers spearhead efforts in response to Critical Incidents In-Progress 
(Active Shooter) emergencies among these partnerships. The ballistic shields purchased 
through this grant would only further the success of our officers in bringing active attack 
incidents under control through these partnerships. 
 
Performance Management :  
 
Success for this project will be measured by the continued education and training our 
officers receive while utilizing the ballistic shields awarded them by this grant. This includes 
enhancing the proficiency in tactics our officers display when deployed with the ballistic 
shields. The overriding goal will be the ability to utilize the ballistic shield as a means in 
which our officers are able to maintain an adequate level of intervention in an active attack 
incident so that they might save as many lives as possible.  
 
Target Group :  
 
Lubbock Police Department officers equipped with ballistic shields awarded them by this 
grant will assist the following agencies in response to Critical Incidents In-Progress (Active 
Shooter) emergencies: Frenship ISD Police Department, Lubbock ISD Police Department, 
Cooper ISD Police Department, Texas Tech University Police Department, Lubbock Christian 
University Police Department, South Plains College Police Department, University Medical 
Center Police Department, Slaton ISD Police Department, Lubbock County Sheriff’s Office, 
and the greater City of Lubbock and County of Lubbock school communities at large. 
 
Evidence-Based Practices:  
 
Data gained through the Texas Tactical Police Officers Association (TTPOA), the Texas 
Narcotics Officers Association (TNOA), and the Advanced Law Enforcement Rapid Response 
Training programs (ALERRT) based at the Texas State University System indicates that the 
use of ballistic shields in in response to Critical Incidents In-Progress (Active Shooter) 
emergencies affords responding officers the opportunity to remain engaged with the suspect 



in order to bring the incident under control. These organizations have concluded that 
officers equipped with added levels of ballistic protection, in addition to body-worn armor, 
have an increased advantage of making a positive response to Active Attack incidents and 
are therefore more successful in saving as many lives as possible upon their deployment. 
 
Project Activities Information 
Introduction  
This section contains questions about your project. It is very important for applicants to 
review their funding announcement for guidance on how to fill out this section. Unless 
otherwise specified, answers should be about the EXPECTED activities to occur during the 
project period. 
 
 
Selected Project Activities: 
ACTIVITY PERCENTAGE: DESCRIPTION 

Equipment 
and 
Technology 

100.00 

The LPD will plan to use awarded funds to purchase 40 
ballistic shields for our law enforcement personnel. The 
equipment will be used as our officers respond to a variety 
of critical incidents including armed suspects, hostage 
situations, active shooters, etc. Distribution will begin 
based on current assignments, specialized units, and 
highest needs as determined by department leadership. 

 
 
CJD Purpose Areas 
PERCENT DEDICATED PURPOSE AREA PURPOSE AREA DESCRIPTION 

 
 
Measures Information 
 
 
 
 
Objective Output Measures 

OUTPUT MEASURE TARGET 
LEVEL 

Equipment or technology: 
Individuals/Operators equipped 40 

Equipment or technology: 
Organizations directly using 1 

Number of bullet-resistant 
shields purchased with grant 
funds. 

40 

 
 



 
 
 
 
Objective Outcome Measures 

OUTCOME MEASURE TARGET LEVEL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Custom Output Measures 

CUSTOM OUTPUT 
MEASURE 

TARGET 
LEVEL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Custom Outcome Measures 

CUSTOM OUTCOME 
MEASURE 

TARGET 
LEVEL 

 
 
 

Resolution from Governing Body  
Applications from nonprofit corporations, local units of governments, and other political 
subdivisions must include a resolution that contains the following: 

1. Authorization by your governing body for the submission of the application to the 
Public Safety Office (PSO) that clearly identifies the name of the project for which 
funding is requested; 

2. A commitment to provide all applicable matching funds; 
3. A designation of the name and/or title of an authorized official who is given the 

authority to apply for, accept, reject, alter, or terminate a grant (Note: If a name is 
provided, you must update the PSO should the official change during the grant 
period.); and 

4. A written assurance that, in the event of loss or misuse of grant funds, the governing 
body will return all funds to PSO. 



 
 
 
Upon approval from your agency's governing body, upload the approved resolution to 
eGrants by clicking on the Upload Files sub-tab located in the Summary tab. 
 
 
Contract Compliance  
Will PSO grant funds be used to support any contracts for professional services? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
X No 
 
 
For applicant agencies that selected Yes above, describe how you will monitor the activities 
of the sub-contractor(s) for compliance with the contract provisions (including equipment 
purchases), deliverables, and all applicable statutes, rules, regulations, and guidelines 
governing this project. 
 
Enter a description for monitoring contract compliance: 
 
 
Lobbying  
For applicant agencies requesting grant funds in excess of $100,000, have any federally 
appropriated funds been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with the 
awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal 
loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, 
renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant loan, or cooperative 
agreement? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
X N/A 
 
 
For applicant agencies that selected either No or N/A above, have any non-federal funds 
been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer 
or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress in 
connection with this federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
X N/A 



 
 
Fiscal Year  
Provide the begin and end date for the applicant agency's fiscal year (e.g., 09/01/20xx to 
08/31/20xx). 
 
Enter the Begin Date [mm/dd/yyyy]: 
 
10/1/2024  
Enter the End Date [mm/dd/yyyy]: 
 
9/30/2025  
Sources of Financial Support  
Each applicant must provide the amount of grant funds expended during the most recently 
completed fiscal year for the following sources: 
 
 
Enter the amount (in Whole Dollars $) of Federal Grant Funds expended: 
 
52356226  
Enter the amount (in Whole Dollars $) of State Grant Funds expended: 
 
1395750  
Single Audit  
Applicants who expend less than $750,000 in federal grant funding or less than $750,000 in 
state grant funding are exempt from the Single Audit Act and cannot charge audit costs to a 
PSO grant. However, PSO may require a limited scope audit as defined in 2 CFR Part 200, 
Subpart F - Audit Requirements. 
 
Has the applicant agency expended federal grant funding of $750,000 or more, or state 
grant funding of $750,000 or more during the most recently completed fiscal year? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
X Yes 
_ No 
 
 
Applicant agencies that selected Yes above, provide the date of your organization's last 
annual single audit, performed by an independent auditor in accordance with the State of 
Texas Single Audit Circular; or CFR Part 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements. 
 
Enter the date of your last annual single audit: 
 
3/28/2023  
Debarment  
Each applicant agency will certify that it and its principals (as defined in 2 CFR Part 
180.995): 
•  Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, 
sentenced to a denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal Court, or voluntarily excluded 
from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency; 



•  Have not within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of or had a 
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, or 
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or state 
antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; or 
•  Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental 
entity (federal, state, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in the 
above bullet; and have not within a three-year period preceding this application had one or 
more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
X I Certify 
_ Unable to Certify 
 
 
If you selected Unable to Certify above, please provide an explanation as to why the 
applicant agency cannot certify the statements. 
 
 
 
Fiscal Capability Information 
Section 1: Organizational Information  
*** FOR PROFIT CORPORATIONS ONLY *** 
 
Enter the following values in order to submit the application 
Enter the Year in which the Corporation was Founded: 0 
Enter the Date that the IRS Letter Granted 501(c)(3) Tax Exemption Status: 01/01/1900 
Enter the Employer Identification Number Assigned by the IRS: 0 
Enter the Charter Number assigned by the Texas Secretary of State: 0 
 
 
Enter the Year in which the Corporation was Founded: 
 
 
Enter the Date that the IRS Letter Granted 501(c)(3) Tax Exemption Status: 
 
 
Enter the Employer Identification Number Assigned by the IRS: 
 
 
Enter the Charter Number assigned by the Texas Secretary of State: 
 
 
Section 2: Accounting System  
The grantee organization must incorporate an accounting system that will track direct and 
indirect costs for the organization (general ledger) as well as direct and indirect costs by 
project (project ledger). The grantee must establish a time and effort system to track 
personnel costs by project. This should be reported on an hourly basis, or in increments of 



an hour. 
 
 
Is there a list of your organization's accounts identified by a specific number (i.e., a general 
ledger of accounts)? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
 
 
Does the accounting system include a project ledger to record expenditures for each 
Program by required budget cost categories? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
 
 
Is there a timekeeping system that allows for grant personnel to identify activity and 
requires signatures by the employee and his or her supervisor? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
 
 
If you answered 'No' to any question above in the Accounting System section, in the space 
provided below explain what action will be taken to ensure accountability. 
 
Enter your explanation: 
 
 
Section 3: Financial Capability  
Grant agencies should prepare annual financial statements. At a minimum, current internal 
balance sheet and income statements are required. A balance sheet is a statement of 
financial position for a grant agency disclosing assets, liabilities, and retained earnings at a 
given point in time. An income statement is a summary of revenue and expenses for a grant 
agency during a fiscal year. 
 
 
Has the grant agency undergone an independent audit? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 



 
 
Does the organization prepare financial statements at least annually? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
 
 
According to the organization's most recent Audit or Balance Sheet, are the current total 
assets greater than the liabilities? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
 
 
If you selected 'No' to any question above under the Financial Capability section, in the 
space provided below explain what action will be taken to ensure accountability. 
 
Enter your explanation: 
 
 
Section 4: Budgetary Controls  
Grant agencies should establish a system to track expenditures against budget and / or 
funded amounts. 
 
 
Are there budgetary controls in effect (e.g., comparison of budget with actual expenditures 
on a monthly basis) to include drawing down grant funds in excess of: 
 
a) Total funds authorized on the Statement of Grant Award? 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
 
 
b) Total funds available for any budget category as stipulated on the Statement of Grant 
Award? 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
 
 
If you selected 'No' to any question above under the Budgetary Controls section, in the 
space provided below please explain what action will be taken to ensure accountability. 
 
Enter your explanation: 
 



 
Section 5: Internal Controls  
Grant agencies must safeguard cash receipts, disbursements, and ensure a segregation of 
duties exist. For example, one person should not have authorization to sign checks and 
make deposits. 
 
 
Are accounting entries supported by appropriate documentation (e.g., purchase orders, 
vouchers, receipts, invoices)? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
 
 
Is there separation of responsibility in the receipt, payment, and recording of costs? 
 
Select the appropriate response: 
 
_ Yes 
_ No 
 
 
If you selected 'No' to any question above under the Internal Controls section, in the space 
provided below please explain what action will be taken to ensure accountability. 
 
Enter your explanation: 
 
 
 
Budget Details Information 
Budget Information by Budget Line Item: 

CATEGORY SUB 
CATEGORY DESCRIPTION OOG CASH 

MATCH 

IN-
KIND 

MATCH 
GPI TOTAL UNIT/% 

Equipment 
Bullet-
Resistant 
Shield 

PBE Vanguard 
Level III 20x30 
Ballistic Shield 
w/ Viewport and 
Lights. 
$6,373.47 per 
unit x40 units, 
plus shipping 
$150.20 

$255,089.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $255,089.00 40 

 
 
 
Source of Match Information 



 
 
Detail Source of Match/GPI: 

DESCRIPTION MATCH TYPE AMOUNT 

 
 
 
 
Summary Source of Match/GPI: 

Total Report Cash Match In Kind GPI Federal Share GPI State Share 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

 
 
 
Budget Summary Information  
 
Budget Summary Information by Budget Category:  

CATEGORY OOG CASH MATCH IN-KIND MATCH GPI TOTAL 

Equipment $255,089.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $255,089.00 

 
 
Budget Grand Total Information: 

OOG CASH MATCH IN-KIND MATCH GPI TOTAL 

$255,089.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $255,089.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Condition Of Fundings Information 

Condition of Funding / Project Requirement Date 
Created 

Date 
Met 

Hold 
Funds 

Hold 
Line 
Item 
Funds 

Resolution: Applications from nonprofit 
corporations, local units of governments, and other 
political subdivisions must submit a resolution 
electronically using the 'Upload' function in the 

3/13/2024 
8:19:57 AM 

 Yes No 



eGrants system. The resolution must contain the 
following:  
•  Authorization by your governing body for the 
submission of the application to OOG that clearly 
identifies the name of the project for which funding 
is requested;  
•  A commitment to provide all applicable matching 
funds;  
•  A designation of the name and/or title of an 
authorized official who is given the authority to 
apply for, accept, reject, alter, or terminate a grant 
(Note: If a name is provided, you must update 
OOG should the official change during the grant 
period.); and  
•  A written assurance that, in the event of loss or 
misuse of grant funds, the governing body will 
return all funds to OOG.  

Compliance with State and Federal Laws, Programs 
and Procedures: Local units of government, 
including cities, counties and other general purpose 
political subdivisions, as appropriate, and 
institutions of higher education that operate a law 
enforcement agency, must comply with all aspects 
of the programs and procedures utilized by the 
U.S. Department of Homeland Security (“DHS”) to: 
(1) notify DHS of all information requested by DHS 
related to illegal aliens in Agency’s custody; and 
(2) detain such illegal aliens in accordance with 
requests by DHS. Additionally, counties and 
municipalities may NOT have in effect, purport to 
have in effect, or make themselves subject to or 
bound by, any law, rule, policy, or practice (written 
or unwritten) that would: (1) require or authorize 
the public disclosure of federal law enforcement 
information in order to conceal, harbor, or shield 
from detection fugitives from justice or aliens 
illegally in the United States; or (2) impede federal 
officers from exercising authority under 8 U.S.C. § 
1226(a), § 1226(c), § 1231(a), § 1357(a), § 
1366(1), or § 1366(3). Lastly, eligible 
grantees/applicants must comply with all 
provisions, policies, and penalties found in Chapter 
752, Subchapter C of the Texas Government Code. 
Each local unit of government and institution of 
higher education that operates a law enforcement 
agency must download, complete and then return 
the 2025 CEO/Law Enforcement Certifications 
and Assurances Form certifying compliance with 
federal and state immigration enforcement 
requirements.  

3/13/2024 
8:20:06 AM 

 Yes No 



 
 
 
 

You are logged in as User Name: Harley Sturm ; UserName: Sturm_Harley * 
INTERNALUSER 

















 AI# 12647 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 22. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Memorandum of
Understanding, and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock Police Department, the
Texas Anti-Gang Center-Lubbock, and the South Plains Auto Theft Task Force, to ensure sharing of
Axon camera and image functionality, to enhance cooperative investigative efforts in criminal
investigations.

Item Summary
This agreement stipulates the Texas Anti-Gang Center-Lubbock (TAG Center-Lubbock), and the South
Plains Auto Theft Task Force (SPATTF) as managers for the Flock License Plate Readers (LPRs),
purchased with State of Texas grant funding, and the Lubbock Police Department (LPD) as the manager
for Axon systems and cameras for the City of Lubbock.  LPD will ensure sharing Axon camera and
image functionality with TAG Center-Lubbock and SPATTF Flock systems to enhance cooperative
investigative efforts in criminal investigations.

Each party is solely responsible for the actions and/or omissions of its employees, officers, and agents;
however, such responsibility is only to the extent required by law.  Any liability arising from the actions
of a party will be borne solely by the organization that performed the action, creating the liability in
accordance with the applicable law, subject to all defenses, including governmental immunity.

Fiscal Impact
No financial liability will be incurred by Lubbock Police Department, by virtue of this agreement,
beyond monies available to it for the purpose of fulfilling this agreement.

Staff/Board Recommending
Seth Herman, Chief of Police

Attachments
Resolution-Axon & Flock 
MOU-Axon & Flock 









 AI# 12522 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 23. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0079, for Zone Case
3224-A, a request of Lone Star Suds, LLC for Centric Capital Partners, Inc., for a zone change from
Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) and Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) to Auto-Urban
Commercial District (AC), at 2401 19th Street, located south of 19th Street and west of Avenue X,
Ellwood Place Addition, Block 1, the east 140 feet of Lot 1.

Item Summary
On May 28, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance unanimously.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 2, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote of 7-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3224-A 
Staff Report 3224-A 
Documentation 3224-A 







Page 1 of 3 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3224-A 
City Council Meeting   May 28, 2024 

 
Applicant Lone Star Suds, LLC  
 
Property Owner  Centric Capital Partners, Inc.   
 
Council District   1 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of the request. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• December 17, 1925, Ordinance No. 0328: The subject property was annexed into City limits. 
• March 13, 1941, Ordinance No. 0661: The subject property was zoned General Retail District (C-3). 
• April 6, 1955, Ordinance No. 1695: The subject property was rezoned from C-3 to Heavy Commercial 

District (C-4). 
• March 13, 2014, Zone Case 3224, Ordinance No. 2014-O0021: The northern portion of the subject 

property was rezoned from C-4 to Local Retail District (C-2). 
• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 

from C-2 and C-4 to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) and Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) 
with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

• May 2, 2024, Zone Case 2538-LL: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 
request to rezone the subject properties from NC and AC to AC by a vote of 7-0-0 
 

Notification Summary   
• Notifications Sent: 70 
• Received In Favor: 0 
• Received In Opposition: 2 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was platted on January 5, 1925 as Ellwood Place Addition, Block 1, Lots 1 through 4 and Lots 
33 through 36.  The subject property was replatted as Ellwood Place Addition, Block 1, Lot 1 on November 21, 
1975.  The subject property occupies the east 140 feet of Lot 1 and is currently developed with a restaurant 
(currently vacant). 
 
Adjacent Property Development  
Properties to the north, east and west are zoned NC, and are developed with various commercial businesses. To 
the south, the properties are zoned High Density Residential District (HDR), and are developed with commercial 
uses. 
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 2401 19th Street, located south of 19th Street and west of Avenue X. The 
applicant requests a zone change from Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) and Auto-Urban Commercial 
District (AC) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC).   
 
Current zoning:  Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) and Auto-Urban Commercial District 

(AC) 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Requested zoning:  Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) 
 
Intent Statements 
The purpose of the current Neighborhood Commercial (NC) zoning is “…to provide for small-scale retail and 
moderate density residential uses located away from major intersections (nodes), with building and site design 
standards that are compatible and have adjacent residential uses.” 

The purpose of the current Auto-Urban Commercial (AC) zoning is “… to provide for a broad range of single-use 
and multi-tenant centers that vary in scale, and that provide for retail, service, and office uses typically with 
on-site surface parking. The district may be located along major thoroughfares or at nodes with increased 
intensity.” 

The intent of the proposed Auto-Urban Commercial (AC) zoning is “… to provide for a broad range of single-use 
and multi-tenant centers that vary in scale, and that provide for retail, service, and office uses typically with 
on-site surface parking. The district may be located along major thoroughfares or at nodes with increased 
intensity.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed zone change is along 19th Street and Avenue X. The Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018, designates 
19th Street as a Minor Arterial and Avenue X as a Local Street. Arterial Streets are continuous routes whose 
function is to serve the high-volume needs of local traffic and regional traffic. Local Streets provide access to 
smaller, destination-oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business districts.  
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development.   
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Commercial Uses”. The proposed zone change to AC would be 
in conformance with the Commercial designation. This request would be appropriate next to adjacent lower 
intensity commercial land uses, and fronting along an Arterial Street.    
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The properties are located along an 
arterial, and the requested zoning district is appropriate adjacent to the nearby commercial land uses. 
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed use and will not need any additional public improvements.   
 
Attachments 
A. Case Information      
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  
C. Notification Map 
D. Aerial Map 
E.  Zoning Map 
F.  Future Land Use Map 
G.  Photos 
H.  Application and supporting documentation 
I.  Notification Replies 
 
 
Staff Contacts 
Cassie Bermea     Victor Escamilla 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 



Page 3 of 3 
 

806-775-2096    806-775-3029 
cassiebermea@mylubbock.us    vescamilla@mylubbock.us  

mailto:cassiebermea@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3224-A 

 

Allowable Uses:   Auto-Urban Commercial (AC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 19th Street and Avenue X. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

19th Street, 
Minor Arterial  

R.O.W. 92 feet, five-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

Avenue X, 
Local Street 

R.O.W. 40 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 40 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 1 

 3.2         Zone Case 3224-A: Lone Star Suds, LLC for Centric Capital Partners, Inc., request for a zone change 

from Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) and Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) to Auto-

Urban Commercial District(AC), at:  

 

 2401 19th Street, located south of 19th Street and west of Avenue X, Ellwood Place 

Addition, Block 1, the east 140 feet of Lot 1.   

 

PLANNER CASSIE BERMEA gave a presentation and answered questions from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission.  

APPLICANT LANDON WILLIS gave comments and answered questions from the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

BRENDA BULLARD, appeared to speak in opposition.  

No one appeared to speak in favor. 
 
In the matter of Zone Case 3224-A, a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by TANNER NOBLE 
to approve the zone case as presented. The commission voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the 
motion. The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx?secid=580&keywords=a-c%2Ca-c%27s%2Cac%27s%2Cac#secid-580












3224-A

East View.

North View. South View.

West View.



3/25/24

Landon Willess







 AI# 12579 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 24. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0095, for Zone Case
3310-B, a request of Seventeen Services, LLC for SPGO, LLC, for a zone change from Office District
(OF) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), generally located north of 142nd Street and west of
Quaker Avenue, on 1.00 acre of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 5.

Item Summary
On June 25, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance unanimously.  

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on June 6, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote of 5-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3310-B 
Staff Report 3310-B 
Documentation 3310-B 













Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3310-B 
City Council Meeting June 25, 2024 

 
Applicant   Seventeen Services, LLC 

Property Owner  SPGO, LLC 
 
Council District   4 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of the request. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• April 28, 2016, Ordinance No. 2016-O0054: The subject property was annexed into City limits and zoned 
Transition District (T). 

• April 13, 2017, Zone Case 3310, Ordinance No. 2017-O0041: The property was rezoned from T to Garden 
Office District (GO). 

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 
from GO to Office District (OF) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

• June 6, 2024, Zone Case 3310-B: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 
request to rezone the subject property from OF to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) by a vote of 
5-0-0. 
 

Notification Summary   
• Notifications Sent: 34 
• Received In Favor: 0 
• Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property is approximately 1 acre of vacant unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 5. 
 
Adjacent Property Development  
The properties to the north and south are vacant undeveloped land, zoned OF. The property to the east is 
undeveloped vacant land, zoned Neighborhood Commercial District (NC). The properties to the west are both 
vacant and developed with single-family homes, zoned Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2).  
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is generally located north of 142nd Street and west of Quaker Avenue. The applicant requests 
a zone change from Office District (OF) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC). 

Current zoning:  Office District (OF) 
 
Requested zoning:  Neighborhood Commercial (NC) 
 
Intent Statements 
The intent of the current OF zoning is to “provide for development of centers for professional employment. The 
district can be used as a transition between more intense uses and residential uses with site and building 
compatibility required with adjacent residential uses.” 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

The intent of the proposed NC zoning is to “provide for small-scale retail and moderate density residential uses 
located away from major intersections (nodes), with building and site design standards that are compatible and 
have adjacent residential uses.” 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located north of 142nd Street, which is designated as a Local street, and west of Quaker Avenue, 
which is designated as a Principle Arterial (Modified) by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Principal Arterials 
provide connectivity across the transportation network serving high volume needs of local and regional traffic. 
Local streets typically provide access to smaller, destination-oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions, 
or local business districts. 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development.  
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Low Density Residential land uses. While this request does not 
conform to this designation, it would be appropriate along a major thoroughfare and in close proximity to 
adjacent zoning. Alleys and required bufferyards would provide sufficient barriers from lower intensity uses. 
Therefore, this request is in moderate conformance with the Comprehensive Plan principles. 
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located along a major 
thoroughfare and is appropriate in close proximity to adjacent land uses. 
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed district, as it would not change the characteristics of the existing 
neighborhood. 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 
C. Aerial Map 
D. Zoning Map 
E. Future Land Use Map 
F. Photos 
G. Application and Supporting Documentation 

 
 
Staff Contacts 
Victoria Lewelling   Victor Escamilla 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2021    806-775-3029 
vlewelling@mylubbock.us  vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

mailto:vlewelling@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 

 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3310-B 

 

Allowable Uses:   Neighborhood Commercial District (NC)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Quaker Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 

Development Plan 

Quaker Avenue, 

Principle Arterial, 

Partially Completed 

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-

lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 

undivided, paved.  

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments.  

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes:  

District 4 

4.1     Zone Case 3310-B: Seventeen Services, LLC for SPGO, LLC, request for a zone change   from Office 

District (OF) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), at: 

• Generally located north of 142nd Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 1.00 acres of unplatted 

land out of Block AK, Section 5. 

 

PLANNER VICTORIA LEWELLING gave a presentation and answered questions from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission. 

APPLICANT K’LEIGH HERNANDEZ, 1500 Broadway, Suite 203, with Seventeen Services, LLC gave comments and 

answered questions from the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3110-B, a motion was made by BRANDON HARDAWAY and seconded by SUSAN 

TOMLINSON to approve the zone case as presented. The commission voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to 

approve the motion. The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

 

 











3310-B.  142nd and Quaker Avenue.

View to the west. Subject Property. View to the east. 

View to the south. View to the north. 



SIDE SB

30' - 0"

SIDE SB

27' - 6 1/2"

SIDE SB

32' - 5 1/2"

F
R

O
N

T
 S

B

20
' -

 0
"

101' - 9 1/2" 72' - 6"

SIDE SB

30' - 0"

F
R

O
N

T
 S

B

20
' -

 0
"

C
U

R
B

 S
B

10
' -

 0
"

C
U

R
B

 S
B

10
' -

 0
"

174' - 3 1/2"

174' - 3 1/2"

5' - 0" 27' - 7 1/2"

(OUT TO OUT - VENEER)

127' - 9" 8' - 11" 5' - 0"

32' - 7 1/2" 141' - 8"

25
0'

 -
 0

"

40
' -

 0
"

19
0'

 -
 0

"
20

' -
 0

"

(O
U

T
 T

O
 O

U
T

 -
 V

E
N

E
E

R
)

58
' -

 5
"

6'
 -

 7
"

18
' -

 0
"

24
' -

 0
"

18
' -

 0
"

65
' -

 0
"

35
' -

 0
"

63
' -

 0
"

35
' -

 0
"

61
' -

 0
"

20
' -

 0
"

65
' -

 0
"

18
' -

 0
"

12
' -

 0
"

12
' -

 0
"

18
' -

 0
"

(O
U

T
 T

O
 O

U
T

 -
 V

E
N

E
E

R
)

65
' -

 0
"

40
' -

 0
"

12' - 6" 79' - 0" 16' - 3 1/2" 54' - 0" 12' - 0" 6"

(OUT TO OUT - VENEER)

64' - 3 1/2"

6" 12' - 0" 54' - 0" 22' - 3 1/2" 26' - 0" 20' - 0" 27' - 0" 12' - 0" 6"

6'
 -

 6
"

24
' -

 0
"

24
' -

 0
"

25
0'

 -
 0

"

13
5'

 -
 0

"
11

5'
 -

 0
"

10
' -

 0
"

10
' -

 0
"

10' - 0" 10' - 0"

All designs, plans, images, text, and other content found on this page are protected by U.S. and international copyright law and may not be reproduced, duplicated, modified, or distributed, in whole or in part, without the express written consent of Seventeen Services Inc.  All drawings purchased from Seventeen Services are protected by U.S. and international copyright law. It is illegal to duplicate, reproduce, resell, modify, redistribute, lease, or loan, in whole or in part, from the plans without the expressed written consent of Seventeen Services LLC

Date

Drawn By

Sheet Size

Project Number

E1 30X42

Seventeen Services LLC
Texas Architecture Firm BR 3014

1500 Broadway St. Suite 203
Lubbock, TX 79401

806.787.8533
tyler@17services.com

REVISIONS:

TYLER GENTRY 
REGISTERED TEXAS 
ARCHITECT #27212

PRELIMINARY DRAFT 

NOT FOR REGULATORY 
APPROVAL, PERMITTING, 

OR CONSTRUCTION

Lu
bb

oc
k,

 T
ex

as

S
O

U
T

H
 Q

U
A

K
E

R
 S

H
O

P
P

IN
G

 C
E

N
T

E
R

A1.0

PRELIM SITE
PLAN - OPTION

1

KH

04.25.2024

2985

Q
U

A
K

E
R

 A
V

E

04.25.2024

No. Description Date

ZONING DISTRICT: NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL (NC) (PENDING PZC REZONING)
(PDISTRICT BUFFER YARDS: TYPE B - 10' ADJACENT TO RESIDENTIAL
PARKING BUFFER YARD: YES
MINIMUM LOT AREA: 6,000 SQUARE FEET
MINIMUM LOT WIDTH: 60'
MINIMUM FRONT SETBACK: 40' (WITH PARKING IN FRONT)
MINIMUM SIDE SETBACK: 0'
MINIMUM REAR SETBACK: 20' ADJACENT TO RESIDENTIAL
MINIMUM LANDSCAPE SURFACE RATIO: 10%
MINIMUM LANDSCAPE POINTS: 40 PER TRACT

SITE AREA: 43,572.5 SQUARE FEET (TOTAL)
LANDSCAPE % REQUIRED: 4,357 SQUARE FEET
LANDSCAPE % PROVIDED: XX,XXX SQUARE FEET
REQUIRED NO. PARKING SPACES: 35 (WITH SHARE PARKING AGREEMENT)
NO. PARKING PROVIDED: 36
TRASH PROVIDE IN ALLEY

1" = 10'-0"
1 Architectural Site Plan - Option 1

N



���������	
��������
�������

����������������������������

������� �!"�#$�%#�

&''()*&+),-�.,/�0,-)-1�*2&-13�

�'456789�):;54<=9>5:�

���
���������??��@@ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

���@�!�
��@ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

C����D�E���@��
��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

F���@�
�?�����?@����
�G�?A�����H�@�����������I������� !��
	�����
���J�K�L��@�ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

M��@�����
�?�N@�ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB� M��@����O����ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

K�L��@��?�O����ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

PJ��������D��@�����@��?���?�? �Q�		�
����	����
�D��	
�����@�������?R�� �H�@������������ I�������

����/7S47T7:9=9>U7V&W7:9�):;54<=9>5:�X>;�Y>;;747:9�;45<�5Z:74[�

\����I
��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

I
��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

�??��@@ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB��]��DABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB��C�
��ABBBBBBBBBB�

OP��]�?�ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�!�	��G���ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBM�
�	ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

���	��
��̂@�C��
����ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

�
��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�������?�I
��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

�,Z:74�):;54<=9>5:�

\����I
��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

�Q���ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

�??��@@ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB��]��DABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB��C�
��ABBBBBBBBBB�

OP��]�?�ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�!�	��G���ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBM�
�	ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

�������D��Q���̂@�C��
����ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

�
��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�������?�I
��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

����'47S=474�):;54<=9>5:�

����
���̂@�C��
����ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

�
��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�������?�I
��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

�.54�*>9_�̀T7�,:a_�

O����]
@��I�ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB��	
�����
�?�O�����]����@@�����
��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

K�L��@��J���b������G
���J���ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�!�ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

���@ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB��	���@ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

�??�����ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

PJ�D���G
���
�D�L��@����@�����
���������G��b����������@@ ��	�
@������
����G��]��D��J����������	
��������
�������

�D��G����
��cd�ef�##%�g����d�����D��g�
�	�
�����D�	
����h�D	������i�@i��

jk�lmnomon�pqml�rsstmurpmvow�xsstmurop�rnyzzl�ro{�|ryyropl�pqrp�rok�ro{�rtt�}rpzymrtl�l~�}mppz{�pv�pqz��mpk�mo�l~ssvyp�vy�yz�zyzouz�pv�pqml�rsstmurpmvo�ryz�ovp�

syvpzupz{��k�uvskymnqpl�vyw�mo�urlzl�v��svpzopmrt�uvskymnqpz{�}rpzymrtlw�pqz�xsstmurop�ml�pqz�lvtz�v|ozy�v��rok�uvskymnqpz{�mopzyzlp�ro{�nyropl�pv�pqz��mpk�

szy}mllmvo�ro{�tmuzolz�pv�yzsyv{~uzw�s~�tmlqw�{mlpym�~pz�ro{�~pmtm�z�l~uq�}rpzymrtl�

�����������������������

����������������������������� ¡����¢��

�£¤¤������

¥�¦��§ ��

�̈

��©��§�������©ª¦�«����

�¬���®��§�¬

��¤¤���̄��°�¬��§£������¤� ��±±̄¦� �²

�³�¤� ¤́�µ�́�µ́��� §¬��¶��«��©ª¦�«£¦̄·

¤� �� �¤�� �¬���®��§�¬

�¡®�����

��«§ª���ª�¦̧��¹�º�©ª����±�§§¹���¦̄±���±�§§¹���ª§̧��̧ ·̄»«̄�

���́�����³�¤ ��±±̄¦� �²

�³��� ¤́�µ�́�µ���� ¼�«§ª�¶½ª�¦̧����¾£¦̄·

¤� �� �¤�� ��«§ª���ª�¦̧��

¤� �� �¤�� �¿��ª¾̧�À�������Á

Â

Â

Justin Fincher (Apr 23, 2024 16:45 CDT)
Justin Fincher



����������	�
����������������
����	������������ ����������

�������� ����������

 !� "�
#�		��$	��������%�
#�		�&��'��(�
�')
�%�

*����'� *�����

+���'�
�����,-� � .�/ ��� ��,01�2* -13���%4�0�0 ��%21��56���

7����������	�
����������������7�/�'���!

-�
�%����
�������0!�"�
#�		��$	��������%�
#�		�&��'��(�
�')
�%�

�������������8�������2"�9"+

-�
�%�����%��	������+!	���9����!���!	��&��'��(�
�')
�%��4���'��������

�������������8�����8�2"�9"+

$%��	�(��6���0!�+!	���9����!���!	��&��'��(�
�')
�%�

�������������8�����:�2"�9"+

-�
�%������'������0!�+!	���9����!���!	��&��'��(�
�')
�%�

*���������-������������������8�������2"�9"+���+�%��*���
���'��(��

�����%����
�%�	����)

�������������8�������2"�9"+





 AI# 12580 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 25. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0096, for Zone Case
3310-C, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Quaker/146 Investment Holdings, LP, for a zone
change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC),
generally located north of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 9.23 acres of unplatted land out
of Block AK, Section 5.

Item Summary
On June 25, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance unanimously.  

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on June 6, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote of 5-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3310-C 
Staff Report 3310-C 
Documentation 3310-C 









SA
LI

SB
U

RY
 A

VE
N

U
E

TRACT R

TR M

165 160

172173174175177178179180

182

186

183

156

157

158

159

164 163 162 161

TR N TR O

TR LTR K

TR PTR Q

Q
U

AK
ER

 A
VE

.

166 167 168 169 170 171

176181

185

184

188

187

190

191

192142ND STREET

143RD STREET

142ND STREET

RI
C

H
M

O
N

D
 A

VE
N

U

Q
U

IN
TO

N
 A

VE
N

U

LOTS 168-188 AND TRACTS "K
"-"R

"

STRATFORD POINTE, AN ADDITION

(P&D 2021026911)

143RD STREET

72 273 274 275 276

277278279280281282283284285286

287 288 289 290 291 292 293 294 295

296297298299300301302303304

305306307308309310311312313314315316317

318

319

320

321

322

323

324

325

142ND STREET

Q
U

AK
ER

 A
VE

.

146TH STREET
146TH STREET

U
TI

C
A 

AV
EN

U
E

SA
LE

M
 A

VE
N

U
E

ZO
N

E 
C

H
AN

G
E 

EX
H

IB
IT

O
N

 A
 9

.2
3 

AC
R

E 
TR

AC
T,

 A
N

D
 A

 8
.6

7 
AC

R
E 

TR
AC

T 
O

U
T 

O
F

SE
C

TI
O

N
 5

, B
LO

C
K 

AK
, L

U
BB

O
C

K 
C

O
U

N
TY

, T
EX

AS

Ac
cu

ra
cy

 - 
Ef

fic
ien

cy
 - 

Int
eg

rity

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
LA

N
D

 S
U

R
V

EY
IN

G
AM

D
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 L

LC
65

15
 6

8t
h 

St
re

et
, S

ui
te

 3
00

Lu
bb

oc
k,

 T
X 

 7
94

24

Ph
on

e:
 8

06
-7

71
-5

97
6

Fa
x:

 8
06

-7
71

-7
62

5

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
:

R
O

BE
R

T 
M

YE
R

S
ST

R
AT

FO
R

D
 P

O
IN

TE
, I

N
C

250'0 125' 500'

NOT TO SCALE
VICINITY MAP

SITE
LOCATION

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION EXHIBIT

A 9.23 ACRE AND 8.67 ACRE TRACTS OF
LAND LOCATED IN BLOCK AK, SECTION 5,

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS



 

AMD ENGINEERING, LLC

 
DESCRIPTION FOR A ZONING CHANGE REQUEST IN 

SECTION 5, BLOCK AK, 
LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 

 
AREA A 

 
(Sheet 1 of 2, Sketch of tract attached as Sheet 2) 

 
METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 9.23-acre tract of land located in Section 5, Block 
AK, Lubbock County, Texas, prepared for Zone Change Purposes only and being further 
described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a point that bears S 88° 14’ 23” E an approximate distance of 1402.88 feet to the 
southeast corner of Section 5, Block AK; 
 
THENCE N 88° 14’ 25” W an approximate distance of 1244.83 feet; 
 
THENCE N 01° 45’ 37” E an approximate distance of 323.00 feet; 
 
THENCE S 88° 14’ 25” E an approximate distance of 1244.83 feet; 
 
THENCE S 01° 45’ 37” W an approximate distance of 323.00 feet to the Point of Beginning and 
containing approximately 9.23-acres. 
 
This description was prepared for the purposes of a zoning request and does not represent 
a survey made upon the ground. 
 
Prepared for:   Robert Myers 
  Quaker / 146 Investment Holdings Lp 
  May 2, 2024 



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3310-C 
City Council Meeting June 25, 2024 

 

Applicant AMD Engineering, LLC 

 

Property Owner  Quaker/146 Investment Holdings LP 

 

Council District   4 

 

Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

• April 28, 2016, Ordinance No. 2016-O0054: The subject property was annexed into City limits and zoned 

Transition District (T). 

• January 13, 2017, Zone Case 3310, Ordinance No. 2017-O0041: The subject property was zoned from T 

to Single-Family District (R-1). 

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 

from R-1 to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

• June 6, 2024, Zone Case 3310-C: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

request for a zone change from SF-2 to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) by a vote of 5-0-0. 

 

Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 16 

• Received In Favor: 0 

• Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

This subject property is generally located north of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 9.23 acres of 

unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 5.The subject property is currently vacant. 

 

Adjacent Property Development  

The surrounding properties are all zoned SF-2. Vacant land is located to the east and west of the subject property, 

with homes to the north and a golf course to the south.  

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is generally located north of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 9.23 acres of 

unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 5. The applicant is requesting a zone change from Low Density Single-

Family District (SF-2) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC). 

 

Current zoning:  Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) 

 

Requested overlay:  Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) 

 

 

  



Page 2 of 2 

 

Intent Statements 

 

The intent of the Low Density Single-Family (SF-2) district is to provide two types of residential subdivisions: 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately-sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space 

is located on private lots. 

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with in increased percentage of common 

open space compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended 

character of the district while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent 

neighborhoods, as well as for recreational amenities and resources protection. 

 

The intent of the proposed Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) is “…to provide for small-scale retail and 

moderate density residential uses located away from major intersections (nodes), with building and site design 

standards that are compatible and have adjacent residential uses.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  

The location is along 146th Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 

2018. Arterials provide connectivity across the transportation network and are continuous routes whose function 

is to serve high volume needs to local traffic and regional traffic.  

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.  

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Low Density Residential land uses. While this request does not 

conform to this designation, it would be appropriate along a major thoroughfare and adjacent zoning. Alleys and 

required bufferyards would provide sufficient barriers from lower intensity uses. Therefore, this request is in 

moderate conformance with the Comprehensive Plan principles. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located along a major 

thoroughfare and is appropriate adjacent to nearby land uses. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property may be suitable for the proposed use. 

 

Attachments 

A.  Case Information      

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  

C.  Location Map 

E. Aerial Map 

F.  Zoning Map 

G.  Photos 

H.  Application and supporting documentation 

 

Staff Contacts 

Shane Spencer     Victor Escamilla 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2103    806-775-3029 

sspencer@mylubbock.us  vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

 

 

 



Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 

 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3310-C 

 

Allowable Uses: Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from 146th Street. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 

Development Plan 

146th Street, Principal 

Arterial, Future 

R.O.W. 40 feet, 2 lane, 

undivided, unpaved. 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 5 lane, 

undivided, paved. 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes: 

District 4 

 

4.2 Zone Case 3310-C: AMD Engineering, LLC for Quaker/146 Investment Holdings, LP, request for a 

zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Neighborhood Commercial District 

(NC), at: 

 

• Generally located north of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 9.23 acres of unplatted 

land out of Block AK, Section 5. 

PLANNER SHANE SPENCER gave a presentation and answered questions from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission. 

APPLICANT CORY DULIN, 6510 68th Street, with AMD Engineering, LLC gave comments and answered questions 

from the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3110-C, a motion was made by TANNER NOBLE and seconded by BRANDON 

HARDAWAY to approve the zone case as presented. The commission voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to 

approve the motion. The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 











3310-C 

 

 

View north. Subject property. 

 

  

View east.  

View south.  

 

View west. 





 AI# 12581 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 26. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0097, for Zone Case
3310-D, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC, for Quaker/146 Investment Holdings, LP, for a zone
change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC),
generally located north of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 8.67 acres of unplatted land out
of Block AK, Section 5.

Item Summary
On June 25, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance unanimously. 

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on June 6, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote of 5-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3310-D 
Staff Report 3310-D 
Documentation 3310-D 









SA
LI

SB
U

RY
 A

VE
N

U
E

TRACT R

TR M

165 160

172173174175177178179180

182

186

183

156

157

158

159

164 163 162 161

TR N TR O

TR LTR K

TR PTR Q

Q
U

AK
ER

 A
VE

.

166 167 168 169 170 171

176181

185

184

188

187

190

191

192142ND STREET

143RD STREET

142ND STREET

RI
C

H
M

O
N

D
 A

VE
N

U

Q
U

IN
TO

N
 A

VE
N

U

LOTS 168-188 AND TRACTS "K
"-"R

"

STRATFORD POINTE, AN ADDITION

(P&D 2021026911)

143RD STREET

72 273 274 275 276

277278279280281282283284285286

287 288 289 290 291 292 293 294 295

296297298299300301302303304

305306307308309310311312313314315316317

318

319

320

321

322

323

324

325

142ND STREET

Q
U

AK
ER

 A
VE

.

146TH STREET
146TH STREET

U
TI

C
A 

AV
EN

U
E

SA
LE

M
 A

VE
N

U
E

ZO
N

E 
C

H
AN

G
E 

EX
H

IB
IT

O
N

 A
 9

.2
3 

AC
R

E 
TR

AC
T,

 A
N

D
 A

 8
.6

7 
AC

R
E 

TR
AC

T 
O

U
T 

O
F

SE
C

TI
O

N
 5

, B
LO

C
K 

AK
, L

U
BB

O
C

K 
C

O
U

N
TY

, T
EX

AS

Ac
cu

ra
cy

 - 
Ef

fic
ien

cy
 - 

Int
eg

rity

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
LA

N
D

 S
U

R
V

EY
IN

G
AM

D
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 L

LC
65

15
 6

8t
h 

St
re

et
, S

ui
te

 3
00

Lu
bb

oc
k,

 T
X 

 7
94

24

Ph
on

e:
 8

06
-7

71
-5

97
6

Fa
x:

 8
06

-7
71

-7
62

5

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
:

R
O

BE
R

T 
M

YE
R

S
ST

R
AT

FO
R

D
 P

O
IN

TE
, I

N
C

250'0 125' 500'

NOT TO SCALE
VICINITY MAP

SITE
LOCATION

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION EXHIBIT

A 9.23 ACRE AND 8.67 ACRE TRACTS OF
LAND LOCATED IN BLOCK AK, SECTION 5,

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS



AMD ENGINEERING, LLC

DESCRIPTION FOR A ZONING CHANGE REQUEST IN
SECTION 5, BLOCK AK,

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS

AREA B

(Sheet 1 of 2, Sketch of tract attached as Sheet 2)

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 8.67-acre tract of land located in Section 5, Block 
AK, Lubbock County, Texas, prepared for Zone Change Purposes only and being further 
described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point that bears S 88° 14’ 23” E an approximate distance of 1402.88 feet to the 
southeast corner of Section 5, Block AK;

THENCE N 01° 48’ 12” E an approximate distance of 635.28 feet;

THENCE S 88° 11’ 29” E an approximate distance of 594.44 feet;

THENCE S 01° 48’ 31” W an approximate distance of 634.78 feet;

THENCE N 88° 14’ 23” W an approximate distance of 594.38 feet to the Point of Beginning and 
containing approximately 8.67-acres.

This description was prepared for the purposes of a zoning request and does not represent 
a survey made upon the ground.

Prepared for: Robert Myers
Quaker / 146 Investment Holdings Lp
May 2, 2024



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3310-D 
City Council Meeting June 25, 2024 

 

Applicant AMD Engineering, LLC 

 

Property Owner  Quaker/146 Investment Holdings LP 

 

Council District   4 

 

Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

• April 28, 2016, Ordinance No. 2016-O0054: The subject property was annexed into City limits and zoned 

Transition District (T). 

• January 13, 2017, Zone Case 3310, Ordinance No. 2017-O0041: The subject property was zoned from T 

to Single-Family District (R-1). 

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 

from R-1 to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

• June 6, 2024, Zone Case 3310-D: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

request for a zone change from SF-2 to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) by a vote of 5-0-0. 

 

Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 16 

• Received In Favor: 0 

• Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

This subject property is generally located north of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 8.67 acres of 

unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 5.The subject property is currently vacant. 

 

Adjacent Property Development  

The surrounding properties are zoned Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to the west, north and south, and 

Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) to the east. Vacant land is located to the east and west of the subject 

property, with homes to the north and a golf course to the south.  

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is generally located north of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 8.67 acres of 

unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 5. The applicant is requesting a zone change from Low Density Single-

Family District (SF-2) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC). 

 

Current zoning:  Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) 

 

Requested overlay:  Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) 

 

 

  



Page 2 of 2 

 

Intent Statements 

 

The intent of the Low Density Single-Family (SF-2) district is to provide two types of residential subdivisions: 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately-sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space 

is located on private lots. 

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with in increased percentage of common 

open space compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended 

character of the district while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent 

neighborhoods, as well as for recreational amenities and resources protection. 

 

The intent of the proposed Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) is “…to provide for small-scale retail and 

moderate density residential uses located away from major intersections (nodes), with building and site design 

standards that are compatible and have adjacent residential uses.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  

The location is along 146th Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 

2018. Arterials provide connectivity across the transportation network and are continuous routes whose function 

is to serve high volume needs to local traffic and regional traffic.  

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.  

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Low Density Residential land uses. While this request does not 

conform to this designation, it would be appropriate along a major thoroughfare and adjacent zoning. Alleys and 

required bufferyards would provide sufficient barriers from lower intensity uses. Therefore, this request is in 

moderate conformance with the Comprehensive Plan principles. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located along a major 

thoroughfare and is appropriate adjacent to nearby land uses. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property may be suitable for the proposed use. 

 

Attachments 

A.  Case Information      

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  

D.  Location Map 

E. Aerial Map 

F.  Zoning Map 

G.  Photos 

H.  Application and supporting documentation 

 

Staff Contacts 

Shane Spencer     Victor Escamilla 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2103    806-775-3029 

sspencer@mylubbock.us  vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

 

 

 



Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 

 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3310-D 

 

Allowable Uses: Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from 146th Street. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 

Development Plan 

146th Street, Principal 

Arterial, Future 

R.O.W. 40 feet, 2 lane, 

undivided, unpaved. 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 5 lane, 

undivided, paved. 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes: 

District 4 

4.3 Zone Case 3310-D: AMD Engineering, LLC for Quaker/146 Investment Holdings, LP, request for a 

zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Neighborhood Commercial District 

(NC), at: 

• Generally located north of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 8.67 acres of 

unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 5. 

 

PLANNER SHANE SPENCER gave a presentation and answered questions from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission. 

APPLICANT CORY DULIN, 6510 68th Street, had no comments, but was available for questions from the Planning 

and Zoning Commission, should they have any. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3110-D, a motion was made by SUSAN TOMLINSON and seconded by SCOTT GLOYNA 

to approve the zone case as presented. The commission voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the 

motion. The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 











3310-D 

View north. Subject property. View east. 

View south. View west. 





AMD ENGINEERING, LLC

DESCRIPTION FOR A ZONING CHANGE REQUEST IN 

SECTION 5, BLOCK AK, 

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 

AREA B 

(Sheet 1 of 2, Sketch of tract attached as Sheet 2) 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 8.67-acre tract of land located in Section 5, Block 

AK, Lubbock County, Texas, prepared for Zone Change Purposes only and being further 

described as follows: 

BEGINNING at a point that bears S 88° 14’ 23” E an approximate distance of 1402.88 feet to the 

southeast corner of Section 5, Block AK; 

THENCE N 01° 48’ 12” E an approximate distance of 635.28 feet; 

THENCE S 88° 11’ 29” E an approximate distance of 594.44 feet; 

THENCE S 01° 48’ 31” W an approximate distance of 634.78 feet; 

THENCE N 88° 14’ 23” W an approximate distance of 594.38 feet to the Point of Beginning and 

containing approximately 8.67-acres. 

This description was prepared for the purposes of a zoning request and does not represent 

a survey made upon the ground. 

Prepared for:   Robert Myers 

Quaker / 146 Investment Holdings Lp 

May 2, 2024 



SA
LI

SB
U

RY
 A

VE
N

U
E

TRACT R

TR M

165 160

172173174175177178179180

182

186

183

156

157

158

159

164 163 162 161

TR N TR O

TR LTR K

TR PTR Q

Q
U

AK
ER

 A
VE

.

166 167 168 169 170 171

176181

185

184

189

188

187

190

191

192142ND STREET

143RD STREET

142ND STREET

RI
C

H
M

O
N

D
 A

VE
N

U
E

Q
U

IN
TO

N
 A

VE
N

U
E

LOTS 168-188 AND TRACTS "K
"-"R

"

STRATFORD POINTE, AN ADDITION

(P&D 2021026911)

143RD STREET

STRATFORD POINTE,

LOTS 253 THROUGH 337

(P&D 2023022354)

270 271 272 273 274 275 276

277278279280281282283284285286

287 288 289 290 291 292 293 294 295

296297298299300301302303304

305306307308309310311312313314315316317

318

319

320

321

322

323

324

325

326

142ND STREET

Q
U

AK
ER

 A
VE

.

146TH STREET
146TH STREET

U
TI

C
A 

AV
EN

U
E

SA
LE

M
 A

VE
N

U
E

ZO
N

E 
C

H
AN

G
E 

EX
H

IB
IT

O
N

 A
 9

.2
3 

AC
R

E 
TR

AC
T,

 A
N

D
 A

 8
.6

7 
AC

R
E 

TR
AC

T 
O

U
T 

O
F

SE
C

TI
O

N
 5

, B
LO

C
K 

AK
, L

U
BB

O
C

K 
C

O
U

N
TY

, T
EX

AS

Ac
cu

ra
cy

 - 
Ef

fic
ien

cy
 - 

Int
eg

rity

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
LA

N
D

 S
U

R
V

EY
IN

G
AM

D
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 L

LC
65

15
 6

8t
h 

St
re

et
, S

ui
te

 3
00

Lu
bb

oc
k,

 T
X 

 7
94

24

Ph
on

e:
 8

06
-7

71
-5

97
6

Fa
x:

 8
06

-7
71

-7
62

5

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
:

R
O

BE
R

T 
M

YE
R

S
ST

R
AT

FO
R

D
 P

O
IN

TE
, I

N
C

250'0 125'
SCALE:  1"=250'

500'

NOT TO SCALE
VICINITY MAP

SITE
LOCATION

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION EXHIBIT

A 9.23 ACRE AND 8.67 ACRE TRACTS OF
LAND LOCATED IN BLOCK AK, SECTION 5,

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCFN: 2013048970

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SUBDIVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCFN: 2004007770

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SUBDIVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCFN: 2008029898

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SUBDIVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SUBDIVIDED CCFN: 2013048965

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCFN: 2008029898

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SUBDIVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA A ZONE NC 9.23 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B. FROM THIS POINT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 5, BLOCK AK BEARS S88°14'23"E A DISTANCE OF 1402.88'.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST LINE SECTION 5, BLOCK AK

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA B ZONE NC 8.67 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY: RM CHECKED BY: CD JOB NUMBER: 240303

AutoCAD SHX Text
Slaton        Hwy.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Clovis   Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
Loop       289

AutoCAD SHX Text
Broadway

AutoCAD SHX Text
114th                    Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Interstate Highway 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
Interstate Hwy. 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
Loop 289

AutoCAD SHX Text
4th   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
19th         Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
34th        Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
50th        Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
82nd   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Upland  Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Frankford          Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Slide           Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
   Milwaukee  Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Quaker      Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Indiana           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
University     Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Avenue      Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
Avenue   A

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.L. King Blvd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Clovis Hwy.   US 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
Brownfield Hwy.        US 62-82

AutoCAD SHX Text
98th   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Erskine           Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
University   Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.L. King Blvd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Quaker           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
US 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wood   Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Guava        Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
50th     Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Southeast

AutoCAD SHX Text
82nd   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
98th   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Loop 289

AutoCAD SHX Text
US 62-82

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text
Municipal      Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text
19th   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
4th    Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
   Milwaukee         Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
130th            Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
146th            Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
        - AREA A: ZONING REQUEST TO NC FROM SF-2 - AREA B: ZONING REQUEST TO NC FROM SF-2



 AI# 12583 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 27. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0098, for Zone Case
3303-C, a request of Seventeen Services, LLC, for SE4NS Properties, LLC, for a zone change from
Industrial Park District (IP) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 12001 Frankford Avenue,
located east of Frankford Avenue and south of 119th Street, Stonewood Industrial Park Addition, Tract C.

Item Summary
On June 25, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance unanimously. 

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on June 6, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote of 5-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3303-C 
Staff Report 3303-C 
Documentation 3303-C 









Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report Zone Case 3303-C 
City Council Meeting June 25, 2024 

 

Applicant Seventeen Services LLC 
 

Property Owner SE4NS Properties LLC 
 

Council District 5 

 
Recommendations 

 Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 
Prior Board or Council Action 

 December 18, 2014, Ordinance No. 2014-O0150: The subject properties were annexed into City Limits 
and zoned Transition District (T).  

 February 9, 2017, Zone Case 3303, Ordinance No. 2017-O0019: The properties were rezoned from (T) to 
Industrial Park (IDP). 

 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 
from IDP to Industrial Park (IP) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

 June 6,2024, Zone Case 3303-C: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 
request to rezone the subject property from IP to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) by a vote of 5-0-
0. 

 
Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 46 

 Received In Favor: 2 

 Received In Opposition: 1 

 
Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was platted on August 7, 2019 as Stonewood Industrial Park Addition, Tract C, the property 
is currently vacant.  

 
Adjacent Property Development 

To the west of the subject property is zoned Low Density Single Family (SF-2) and developed with residential 

housing, to the east is zoned Medium Density Residential (MDR) and developed with residential housing, to the 

south is SF-2 and City of Lubbock city limits developed as commercial properties, and to the north is zoned 

Industrial Park (IP) developed with commercial properties.  

 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 12001 Frankford Avenue, located east of Frankford Avenue and south of 

119th Street, Stonewood Industrial Park Addition, Tract C. The applicant is requesting a zone change from 

Industrial Park District (IP) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC). 

 

Current zoning: Industrial Park District (IP)  

 
Requested zoning: Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) 

 
Purpose Statements 
The purpose of the Industrial Park District “is to provide for low-impact manufacturing, wholesaling, 
warehousing, and distribution activities that occur within enclosed buildings, typically within industrial park.”  
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

The purpose of the Auto-Urban Commercial District is to include “is to provide for a broad range of single-use 
and multi-tenant centers that vary in scale, and that provide for retail, service, and office uses typically with 
on-site surface parking. The district may be located along major thoroughfares or at nodes with increased 
intensity.” 

 
   Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The location is along Frankford Avenue, which is designated as a Minor Arterial, by the Master Thoroughfare 
Plan, 2018. Principal Arterials are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs of local traffic 
and regional traffic.  

 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development. The down zoning from IP to AC is an appropriate district to the adjacent MDR land uses to 

the east. The AC district is a suitable buffer between Frankford Avenue and the neighborhood to the east.  

 

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Residential Low Density. Although the proposed zone change 

to AC would not be in conformance with the Future Land Use Plan or the Comprehensive Plan Principles, the 

surrounding properties along Frankford Avenue already being developed as commercial properties makes this 

location appropriate for AC.  

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located along an Arterial 

street and is appropriate adjacent to nearby land uses.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed use, though additional improvements may be necessary.  

 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G. Photos 

H. Application and supporting documentation 

I. Notification Replies 

 
 
 
Staff Contacts 

Gregory Hernandez Victor Escamilla 

Planner Planning and Zoning Manager  

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-3147 806-775-3029 

ghernandez@mylubbock.us vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

  
 

mailto:ghernandez@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 

 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3303-C 

 

Allowable Uses:    Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Frankford Avenue.     

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 

Development Plan 

Frankford Avenue, 

Minor Arterial, 

Incomplete  

R.O.W. 55 feet, two-lane, 

undivided, unpaved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-lane, 

undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes: 

District 5  

 

4.5 Zone Case 3303-C: Seventeen Services, LLC for SE4NS Properties, LLC, request for a zone change 

from Industrial Park District (IP) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at: 

 

• 12001 Frankford Avenue located east of Frankford Avenue and south of 119th Street, 

Stonewood Industrial Park Addition, Tract C. 

 

PLANNER GREG HERNANDEZ gave a presentation and answered questions from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission.  

APPLICANT K’LEIGH HERNANDEZ, 1500 Broadway, Suite 203, with Seventeen Services, LLC gave comments and 

answered questions from the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3303-C, a motion was made by SUSAN TOMLINSON and seconded by TANNER NOBLE 

to approve the zone case as presented. The commission voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the 

motion. The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 













3303-C 
 
 

 

      View of subject property to the east.                       View to the north. 
  
 

 

 

View to the south.    View to the west. 













 AI# 12584 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 6. 28. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0099, for Zone Case
1947-H, a request of Clovis Sign Service for Southwest Convenience Stores, for a zone change from
Medium Density Residential District (MDR) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 5802
34th Street, located west of Frankford Avenue and north of 34th Street, Summer Place Addition, Lot 10.

Item Summary
On June 25, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance unanimously. 

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on June 6, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote of 5-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 1947-H 
Staff Report 1947-H 
Documentation 1947-H 







Page 1 of 3 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 1947-H 
City Council Meeting June 25, 2024 

 
Applicant   Clovis Sign Service 

Property Owner  Southwest Convenience Stores 
 
Council District   6 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of the request. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• September 11, 1958, Ordinance No. 2535: The subject property was annexed into City limits and zoned 
Single-Family District (R-1). 

• March 14, 1974, Zone Case 1947, Ordinance No. 6843: The subject property was rezoned from R-1 to 
Family Apartment District (A-1). 

• September 8, 1977, Zone Case 1947-A, Ordinance No. 6843: The property was allowed to develop in 
accordance with the site plan approved by the City Council on August 25, 1977. 

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 
from A-1 to Medium Density Residential District (MDR) with the adoption of the Unified Development 
Code. 

• June 6, 2024, Zone Case 1947-H: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 
request to rezone the subject property from MDR to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) by a vote of 
5-0-0. 
 

Notification Summary   
• Notifications Sent: 19 
• Received In Favor: 1 
• Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was originally platted as Summer Place Addition, Lot 10 on July 02, 1984. There is an 
existing fuel station, and convenience store, which was constructed on the property in 1984. 
 
Adjacent Property Development  
Properties to the north, west, and south are developed with retail uses, zoned MDR and Heavy Commercial 
District (HC). The property to the east is developed with a disc golf course zoned High Density Residential District 
(HDR).  
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 5802 34th Street, located west of Frankford Avenue and north of 34th Street. 
The applicant requests a zone change from Medium Density Residential (MDR) to Auto-Urban Commercial District 
(AC), to allow for an existing fuel station. 

Current zoning:  Medium Density Residential (MDR) 
 
Requested zoning:  Auto-Urban Commercial (AC) 
 
  



Page 2 of 3 
 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current MDR zoning is to provide for three subdivision types: 

A. Conventional. Single-family detached, cottage, or garden homes on public utilities with open space 
provided on private lots. 

B. Village. Mixed housing types, including townhouses, detached single-family garden homes, and low- 
to mid-rise apartments, located in a planned development or adjacent to a mixed-use district or 
center. Buildings are typically in close proximity to the street edge. The building mass, height, and scale 
transition to the neighboring land uses. 

C. Mixed-Use. Mid- to high-rise apartment development in a mixed-use district or center. The district 
consists of detached single-family garden homes, live-work buildings, and other vertically mixed-use 
buildings.  Urban open space may be used for plazas and squares. 

 
The intent of the proposed AC zoning is “to provide for a broad range of single-use and multi-tenant centers that 
vary in scale, and that provide for retail, service, and office uses typically with on-site surface parking. The 
district may be located along major thoroughfares or at nodes with increased intensity.” 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located north of 34th Street which is designated as a Minor Arterial, and west of Frankford Avenue, 
which is designated as a Collector by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Minor Arterials provide connectivity 
across the transportation network serving high volume needs of local and regional traffic. Collectors provide 
access and movement within residential, commercial, and industrial areas. 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development. An existing fuel station was developed in 1984 on the subject property. The applicant is 
requesting the zone change in order to accommodate an alteration of the existing gas canopy signs.  
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Commercial land uses. The proposed zone change is compatible 
with this designation.  
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 
location. 
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed district, as it would not change the characteristics of the existing 
neighborhood. 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 
C. Notification Map 
D. Aerial Map 
E. Zoning Map 
F. Future Land Use Map 
G. Photos 
H. Application and Supporting Documentation 
I. Notification Responses 

 
 
  

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1243
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=950
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1114
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1680
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=781
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=851
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=770
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=812
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1089


Page 3 of 3 
 

Staff Contacts 
Victoria Lewelling   Victor Escamilla 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2021    806-775-3029 
vlewelling@mylubbock.us  vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

mailto:vlewelling@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 

 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 1947-H 

 

Allowable Uses:   Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 34th Street and Frankford 

Avenue.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 

Development Plan 

34th Street, 

Minor Arterial, 

Completed 

R.O.W. 120 feet, four-

lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, 

undivided, paved.  

Frankford Avenue,  

Collector, Completed 

R.O.W. 84 feet, two-

lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 64 feet, 

undivided, paved. 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments.  

Planning and Zoning Comments: 

District 6 

4.6 Zone Case 1947-H: Clovis Sign Service for Southwest Convenience Stores, request for a zone 

change from Medium Density Residential District (MDR) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), 

at:  

• 5802 34th Street, located west of Frankford Avenue and north of 34th Street, Summer Place 

Addition, Lot 10.  

 

PLANNER VICTORIA LEWELLING gave a presentation and answered questions from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission. 

APPLICANT JORDYN STOWE, 1312 East 1st Street, representing Clovis Sign Service, gave comments and answered 

questions from the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 1947-H, a motion was made by SCOTT GLOYNA and seconded by SUSAN TOMLINSON 

to approve the zone case as presented. The commission voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the 

motion. The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 













1947-H.  5802 34th Street.

View to the north. Subject Property. View to the east. 

View to the south. View to the west. 



DocuS,gn Envelope ID. D33A3914-BF26-42FE-A2B3--2959FEE02F07 

PLANNING 

Project Information 

Lubbock Planning Department 
PO Box 2000 / 1314 Avenue K 

Lubbock, TX 79457 
APPLICATION FOR ZONING CHANGE 

Location or Address: 5802 34th Street

Lots/Tracts: 
-------------------------------------

Survey & Abstract: 
-------------------------------

Metes and Bounds Attached: Yes I No r✓1 Total Acreage of Request: 0. 58 -----------
Existing Land use: Commercial Retail Existing zoning: Medium Density Residential (MOR)

Requested Zoning: 
----------------------------------

1 f property is not subdivided, will a preliminary plat be submitted? 

Representative/ Agent Information (if different from owner) 

Firm Name: Clovis Sign Service

Name: Jordyn Stowe

Address: 1312 E 1st Street City: Clovis

ZIP Code:_8_8_1_0 _1 ____ Telephone: 57 5-763-5623

Yes L No 

State: NM -----
Email: jordyn@css-ngd.com

Applicant's Signature:_�-71'--�"--'-;,f"''fl:'-'----....:::S:::....::.r:o"--=-{A)--(l..=--=----------------------

Date: 3/25/2024 ?J Printed Name: Jordyn Stowe
------------------

Owner Information 

Firm Name: SOUTHWEST CONVENIENCE STORES

owner: SOUTHWEST CONVENIENCE STORES

Address: PO BOX 6821 48 City: FRANKLIN State: TN -----
ZIP Code:_3_7_0_6_8 ____ Telephone: ________ _ Email: ___________ _

r-;;"·'""'""" 
., 

Property Owner's Signature:-+-
C
_8_,.,_...----__ ✓.,...,, __ ,_,._.._, _______________________ _ 

Date: 3/26/2024 • ·- •· • - Brian Veasman 

Printed Name: 

Preparer Information 

Preparer's Signature: cJ&0.;P S"°G{A)--(2.. 
--r-tl,d'----------------------------

Date: 3/25/2024 Printed Name: Jordyn Stowe 
------------------

For City Use Only 

Zone Case No: ___________ _ Planning and Zoning Commission Date: _______ _

Request for zoning change from: _____________ To: ______________ _ 

Lots: ________________ Blocks: ____________________ _ 

Addition: -------------------------------------
By signing this application, Applicant agrees and warrants that any and all materials subnutted ID the City ,n support or ,ercrencc to tlus appl,cat,on are not 
protected by copyrights or. 1 11 cases or potential copy11chted 111ate11als, the <\ppl 1tant ,s the sole owner or any copy11.;hted interest and er ants to the City 

permission and license to reproduce, publish, d1st11bute and ut,liw such m,1tc11al1 

If you have any questions pertaining to the zoning process, please contact the City of Lubbock Planning Department 
by phone at (806) 775 - 2108 or by e-mail at c1typlanning@mylubbock.us. 

Auto Commercial 











 AI# 12653 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 7. 1. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the I-27 Advisory Committee of the
Ports-to-Plains Trade Corridor Coalition.

Item Summary
The I-27 Advisory Committee was established to provide the Texas Department of Transportation with
information on concerns and interests along the Ports-to-Plains Corridor; and advise the Texas
Department of Transportation on transportation improvements impacting the Ports-to-Plains Corridor.

According to Transportation Code Sec. 201.623 (c), the Advisory Committee is composed of:

(1) ten members, one of whom represents each of the following counties and is the County Judge of the
county or an elected county official or the administrator of the county road department designated by the
County Judge of the county:
Dallam County; Howard County; Lubbock County; Midland County; Moore County; Potter County;
Sherman County; Tom Green County; Val Verde County; and Webb County;

(2) seven members, one of whom represents each of the following municipalities and is the Mayor of the
municipality or the City Manager or an Assistant City Manager designated by the Mayor of the
municipality:
Amarillo; Big Spring; Del Rio; Laredo; Lubbock; Midland; and San Angelo;

(3) three members who are economic development professionals, to be selected based on geographic
segments that were established for the feasibility study;

(4) one member who is a business representative from the agriculture industry;

(5) one member who is a business representative from the international trade industry; and

(6) one member who is a business representative from the energy industry.

The position for the City of Lubbock was held by Tray Payne, former Mayor.  Traditionally, this
position is filled with the appointment of the current sitting Mayor.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary



Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 12654 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 7. 2. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments of City Council members to the South
Plains Association of Governments (SPAG) Board.

Item Summary
The South Plains Association of Governments (SPAG) was created to maintain and improve the quality
of life for all people in the region by promoting the orderly development of the total regional
environment: economic, social, and physical.

The City of Lubbock is entitled to five positions on the SPAG Board, and these positions must be
occupied by elected officials. This is based on one representative for each 50,000 persons total
population. One vacated position was created with the departure of Mayor Pro Tem/Council Member
Shelia Patterson Harris. Council members Christy Martinez-Garcia, David Glasheen, Brayden Rose, and
Tim Collins currently serve in the other four positions.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 12655 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 7. 3. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Transportation Policy Committee
of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization.

Item Summary
The Transportation Policy Committee (TPC)is the decision-making body of the Lubbock Metropolitan
Planning Organization (LMPO). The City of Lubbock has two open positions on the TPC, to replace
former Mayor Tray Payne and former Council Member Steve Massengale.  LMPO is a federally
mandated organization developed to coordinate the highway, transit, and land use planning process in
order to receive federal funds for highway and transit improvements. LMPO is comprised of a
Transportation Policy Committee (TPC), Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC), Transportation
Planning Director, LMPO Staff, and a Fiscal Agent. LMPO is the organization that brings together the
following agencies, through the TPC, to make continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive
transportation decisions:

• City of Lubbock - (three representatives of the City of Lubbock, including at least two elected
officials, appointed by the Lubbock City Council.) (Represented by Council Member Dr. Jennifer
Wilson; plus two open positions to replace former Mayor Tray Payne and former Council Member Steve
Massengale).
• City of Lubbock City Manager - Jarrett Atkinson
• General Manager - Citibus
• Mayor - City of Wolfforth
• Lubbock County - (One elected County official - Lubbock County appointed by the County
Commissioners Court, plus the County Judge)
• District Engineer - Texas Department of Transportation, Lubbock District

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 12640 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 7. 4. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Hold a public hearing in accordance with Section 43.0694(a) of the Texas
Local Government Code, regarding the City of Lubbock's intent to annex an area of land generally
described as 374.74 acres south of 146th Street and east of Frankford Avenue, into Lubbock's corporate
limits, and to execute a Municipal Services Agreement with the Highland Oaks Homeowner's
Association, for the requested annexation.

Item Summary
On June 11, 2024, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2024-R0291, indicating their intent to
annex an area of land generally described as 374.74 acres south of 146th Street and east of Frankford
Avenue, into Lubbock's corporate limits, and to execute a Municipal Services Agreement with the
Highland Oaks Homeowner's Association, for the requested annexation.

In accordance with Section 43.0693 of the Texas Local Government Code, a notice was sent to all
property owners within the proposed annexation area on June 17, 2024. The notice contained
information regarding two public hearings on July 9, 2024 and July 23, 2024, an election on the question
of annexing the area on November 5, 2024, and a copy of the Municipal Services Agreement. A metes
and bounds description of the area and a map were included with the notice.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
Highland Oaks - Resolution of Intent to Annex 
Highland Oaks - Municipal Services Agreement 
Highland Oaks - Annexation Map 
Highland Oaks - Metes and Bounds Description 



Resolution No. 2024- R0291

Item No. 6. 2

June 11, 2024

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the City of Lubbock, Texas ( the " City") is a home- rule municipality with
authority under state law and its charter to annex real property into its corporate limits; and

WHER AS, representatives of the owners ofcertain developed real property (hereinafter
defined and referenced as the " Subject Area") outside the corporate limits of the City ( the
Highland Oaks Homeowner' s Association" or " Highland Oaks HOA"), with widespread and

persistent water shortages, have expressed a desire to have the Subject Area annexed by the City; 
and

WI IEItEAS, pursuant to Chapter 43 of Texas Local Government Code, Subchapter C- 5, 
the Highland Oaks IIOA has further petitioned the City to hold an election on the question of
annexation of the Subject Area; and

WHCREAS, pursuant to Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code, the City is
required to establish a municipal services plan outlining the municipal services to be provided to
the Subject Area in the event the question of annexation of the Subject Area is answered in the
affirmative; and

WHEREAS, one critical component relating the provision of municipal services to be
provided to the Subject Area would be the provision of water utility services and the party
responsible for providing the necessary financial support for the water utility services; and

WHEREAS, in anticipation of a finally approved annexation of the Subject nrea, but as
a precondition thereto, the Highland Oaks HOA has proposed that the City of Lubbock create a
Public Improvement District (" PID"), with identical boundaries as the Subject Area, for thc

purposes of levying an assessment on all the properiies located therein, in amounts suffcient to
scrvice and retire all bonded indebtedness incurred by the PID to finance the construction of
infrastructure necessary to provide water service tu any property annexed; and

WH IZEAS, the City Council finds that the City presently has no existing legal obligation
to providc water or other governmental services to the Subject Area, nor would any of the
activitics undertaken by thc City in anticipation of the rcqucstcd annexation create such legal
obligation for thc purposcs of Tcxas Local Govcrnmcnt Codc, Section 43. 0699; 

WI IEIZI; AS, the City Council believes it to be in the best interest of the City of Lubbock
to approve the municipal services plan attached hereto including the preconditions relating to the
tinancing of the construction and development of the water utility system to the Subject Area. 

NOW TIILIZ FORL BE IT RESOLVED BY TIIE CITY COUNCIL Ol THC CITY OP

LUBBOCK: 

THAT the City Council of the City of Lubbock, pursuant to Texas Local Government
Code, Section 43. 0692, hereby expresses an intent to annex into Lubbock' s corporate limits





















As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Annexation of Highland Oaks Subdivision
and a Portion of Frankford Ave

Located within Section 7, Block AK

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

Proposed Annexation
374.74 Acres

KELSEY

PARK

INSIDE CITY LIMITS

146TH ST  CR 7500

WOODROW RD

VIN
TAGE

TOWNSHIP

FRANKFORD

FARMS

130TH ST  FM 1585

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000500
Feet

CR 7570

WIN
DSOR

PARK

Q
U

A
K

ER
 A

V
E

A
V

E 
P

FM
 1

73
0

TUMBLEWEED

PASS ESTATES
FR

A
N

K
FO

RD
 A

V
E

WOODROW RD

HIG
HLAND OAKS

FM
 1

73
0

FR
A

N
K

FO
RD

 A
V

E

146TH ST

SOUTHWEST

GARDENS

CR 7540

C
R 

18
40

C
R 

18
70

C
R 

18
30

BELLA

MIA ESTATES

OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

IN
SID

E C
ITY

 LIM
ITS

O
U

TSID
E C

ITY
 LIM

ITS



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

EXHIBIT "A" 

 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 374.74-acre tract located in Sections 7 and 10, Block AK, Lubbock County, 
Texas, being further described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a point for the most Easterly Southeast corner of Lot 7, Highland Oaks, a subdivision located in Section 
7, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, according to the instrument recorded in Volume 6743, Page 85, Official Real 
Property Records of Lubbock County, Texas, and the most Easterly Southeast corner of this tract, said point also being 
in the West right-of-way line of Slide Road (F.M. Road 1730), as dedicated by said Highland Oaks, which bears  
N. 01°43'10" E. a distance of 922.63 feet and N. 88°16'50" W. a distance of 55.00 feet from the Southeast corner of said 
Section 7, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas; 
 
THENCE N. 88°16'50" W., along the West right-of-way line of said Slide Road (F.M. Road 1730) and the Eastern boundary 
of said Lot 7, a distance of 5.00 feet to a point of intersection; 
 
THENCE Southwesterly, along said West right-of-way line and the Eastern boundary of said Lot 7, along a curve to the 
right, said curve having a radius of 2231.83 feet, a central angle of 00°28'41", a chord bearing of S. 01°57'31" W., a chord 
distance of 18.62 feet to a point for the most Southerly Southeast corner of said Lot 7, said point also being in the Southern 
boundary of the plat limits of said Highland Oaks; 
 
THENCE N. 86°15'43" W., continuing along the Southern boundary of said Lot 7 and along a Southern boundary of said 
plat limits, a distance of 498.91 feet to a point for the Southwest corner of said Lot 7; 
 
THENCE S. 16°53'17" W., along an Eastern boundary of said plat limits, at 51.35 feet pass the Northeast corner of the 
plat limits of Lots 193-255, Highland Oaks, a subdivision located in Section 7, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, 
continuing along the Eastern boundary of said plat limits a total distance of 355.37 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE S. 01°53'17" W., continuing along the Eastern boundary of said plat limits, a distance of 508.26 feet to a point 
70 feet North of the South line of said Section 7 for the most Southerly Southeast corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE N. 88°15'04" W., along a line 70 feet North of and parallel to the South line of said Section 7, crossing various 
lots and street and alley rights-of-way dedicated by said Highland Oaks, a distance of 4086.01 feet to a point in the 
Western boundary of said plat limits, for the most Southerly Southwest corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE N. 01°53'17" E. a distance of 879.99 feet to a point for the Northwest corner of said plat limits, said point also 
being in the Southern boundary of the plat limits of Lots 81-138, Highland Oaks, a subdivision in Section 7, Block AK, 
Lubbock County, Texas, according to the instrument recorded in Volume 7699, Page 311, Official Public Records of 
Lubbock County, Texas (OPRLCT); 
 
THENCE N. 88°00'43" W., along the Southern boundary of said plat limits, at 564.12 feet pass the West line of said 
Section 7, the East line of said Section 10 and the Southwest corner of said plat limits, continuing for a total distance of 
614.12 feet to a point in the West right-of-way line of County Road 1800, as granted by easement recorded in Volume 
1277, Page 683, Deed Records of Lubbock County, Texas, for the most Westerly Southwest corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE. N. 01°52'42" E., along a line 50 feet West of and parallel to the West line of said Section 7 and the East line of 
said Section 10, and along the West right-of-way line of said County Road 1800, a distance of 1372.57 feet to a point for 
the most Westerly Northwest corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE S. 88°20'51" E., at 50.00 feet pass the West line of said Section 7, the East line of said Section 10, and the 
Northwest corner of the plat limits of said Lots 81-138, Highland Oaks, continuing along the Northern boundary of said 
plat limits for a total distance of 1338.39 feet to a point; 
 



This document was prepared under 22 TAC §138.95, does not reflect the results of an on the ground survey, and is not to 
be used to convey or establish interests in real property except those rights and interests implied or established by the 
creation or reconfiguration of the boundary of the political subdivision for which it was prepared. 

 
Page 2 of 2  

THENCE N. 01°52'42" E., at 135.94 feet pass an "ell" corner of said plat limits of Lots 81-138, Highland Oaks, and the 
Southwest corner of Lots 139-192, Highland Oaks, an addition located in Section 7, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, 
according to the instrument recorded in Volume 10199, Page 204, OPRLCT, continuing along the Western boundary of 
said plat limits, for a total distance of 1641.93 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE S. 88°07'18" E. a distance of 10.00 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE N. 01°52'42" E., along a line 10 feet East of and parallel to the Western boundary of the plat limits of said Lots 
139-192, Highland Oaks, crossing various lots and alley rights-of-way dedicated by said Highland Oaks, a distance of 
1222.68 feet to a point in the present city limits as established by City of Lubbock Ordinance Number 2016-O0054 and 
the South right-of-way line of 146th Street, dedicated by said Highland Oaks, for the most Northerly Northwest corner of 
Lot 168, said Highland Oaks, and the most Northerly Northwest corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE S. 88°46'30" E., along said present city limits and the South right-of-way line of said 146th Street, a distance of 
1346.16 feet to a point in the Eastern boundary of the plat limits of said Lots 139-192, Highland Oaks, for the most 
Northerly Northeast corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE S. 01°47'37" W., along the Eastern boundary of said plat limits, a distance of 2300.78 feet to a point for the 
Southeast corner of said plat limits, said point also being in the Northern boundary of the plat limits of Lots 1-80 and Tracts 
A & B, said Highland Oaks, for an "ell" corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE S. 88°36'30" E., along the Northern boundary of said plat limits, a distance of 2592.46 feet to a point in the West 
right-of-way line of said Slide Road (F.M. Road 1730), for the most Easterly Northeast corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE S. 01°43'10" W., along the West right-of-way line of said Slide Road (F.M. Road 1730), a distance of 1997.04 
feet to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Contains: 374.74 acres 
 
Bearings relative to Grid North, Texas Coordinate System of 1983, North-Central Zone, 2011 (epoch 2010.0). 
 
Prepared: June 4, 2024 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Robert A. Christopher 

Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5167 
Licensed State Land Surveyor 

State of Texas  



 AI# 12670 

 

Special City Council Meeting, July 9, 2024 7. 5. 
07/09/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Wastewater: Consider a resolution receiving the report and
recommendation of the Private Sewer Lateral Ad-Hoc Committee. 

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock amended various sections of Chapter 22 “Utilities” of the City of Lubbock Code of
Ordinances on October 10, 2023, as Ordinance No. 2023-O0119. As part of said amendments,
regulations regarding the repair of sanitary sewer lateral lines in the public right-of-way were changed to
require the property owner to make such repairs. Due to the effect of this specific change on the
citizenry, the City Council reconsidered the ordinance on April 9, 2024, and adopted an amendment,
Ordinance No. 2024-O0053, effectively reverting the repair responsibility of sanitary sewer lateral lines
in the public right-of-way, back to the City.
 
As part of the consideration, the City Council determined there should be a committee to study the repair
issue, and determine whether, and to what extent, the owner of the property or the City should perform
repairs or replacement of faulty sanitary sewer lateral lines.
 
On April 9, 2024, the City Council created the Private Sewer Lateral Ad-Hoc Committee through
Resolution No. 2024-R0203, to consider issues regarding the repair of sanitary sewer lateral lines in the
public right-of-way in the City. Eleven (11) Committee members were named to this committee and
appointed on April 23, 2024, by the City Council.  The Committee convened within two weeks of
appointment to study, deliberate, and report back to the City Council on their recommendation, no later
than the first regular meeting of the City Council in July 2024. The Committee did convene beginning
on May 2, 2024, and met regularly through July 3, 2024.

Attached is a final report and recommendations from the Private Sewer Lateral Ad-Hoc Committee for
City Council consideration. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works
Private Sewer Lateral Ad-Hoc Committee 

Attachments
Resolution - Private Sewer Lteral Ad-Hoc Committee 
Ad-Hoc Committee Adopted Recommendations 












	Agenda
	5.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_5.21.2024 S EUB
	       ATT_6.11.2024
	6.01.__Budget Amendment 35
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 35
	6.02.__Budget Amendment 36
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 36
	6.03.__Budget Amendment 37
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 37
	6.04.__Budget Amendment 38
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 38
	6.05.__Budget Amendment 39
	       ATT_Budget Amendment _39
	6.05.1.__DSHS Amendment No. 4 Contract No. HHS000812700012
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	6.06.__Budget Amendment 40
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 40
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	6.07.__Budget Amendment 41
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 41
	6.08.__Budget Amendment 42
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 42
	       ATT_BA 42 - Exhibit A
	6.09.__GRIP Filing
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.10.__COL v Trumble Steel Erectors, Inc
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement
	Confidential Settlement_ Release and Indemnity Agreement - REVISED (15121020.1).pdf
	Signature.pdf

	6.11.__Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 17790 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Amendment No. 1
	       ATT_Contract 17790
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	6.12.__Kimley Horn and Associates Safe Streets for All Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	       ATT_Project Summary
	6.13.__Lydick-Hooks Contract 18045 - Pump Station No.14 Roof Replacement
	       ATT_Resolution - Contract 18045
	       ATT_Contract 18045
	       ATT_Project Cost Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary
	6.14.__Emergency Purchase for Consolidated Rental Car Facility Repairs
	       ATT_Resolution WR Construction, Inc.
	       ATT_Contract Emergency Purchase - WR Construction, Inc.
	       ATT_Capital Project 92838 Cost Detail
	       ATT_CIP 92838 Project Detail
	6.15.__North Overton PID Maintenance Contract 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	       ATT_Project Summary 
	6.16.__Contract 17764 Amendment 1
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Amendment 1 to 17764 - West Texas Services (002)
	       ATT_Original Contract_17764__With_West_Texas_Services_Inc_Dba_Toms_Tree_Place_ (3)
	       ATT_Budget Detail 
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	6.17.__Amendment to Payment Gateway
	       ATT_Resolution - OpenEdge Payments
	       ATT_Amendment 1 to OpenEdge Payment Agmt
	6.18.__Amendment No. 1 to Contract 15862
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Amendment
	       ATT_Original Contract
	6.19.__World Wide Technology, LLC - City-wide Telephone System Upgrade
	       ATT_Resolution - Contract 18156
	       ATT_Contract 18156
	6.20.__Grant Application - Rifle Resistant Body Armor Program 2025
	       ATT_Resolution-Rifle Resistant Body Armor
	       ATT_Application - Rifle Resistant Body Armor
	       ATT_Narrative-Rifle Resistant Body Armor
	6.21.__Office of the Governor Grant Application-Ballistic Shields
	       ATT_Resolution-Ballistic Shields
	       ATT_Application - Bullet-Resistant Shield Program
	       ATT_Narrative-Ballistic Shields
	6.22.__MOU-Lubbock Police Department -Axon Camera & Lubbock County Flock Camera
	       ATT_Resolution-Axon and Flock
	       ATT_MOU-Axon and Flock
	6.23.__ZC 3224-A
	       ATT_Ordinance 3224-A
	       ATT_Staff Report 3224-A
	       ATT_Documentation 3224-A
	Slide Pics.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2


	6.24.__ZC 3310-B
	       ATT_Ordinance 3310-B
	       ATT_Staff Report 3310-B
	       ATT_Documentation 3310-B
	6.25.__ZC 3310-C
	       ATT_Ordinance 3310-C
	       ATT_Staff Report 3310-C
	       ATT_Documentation 3310-C
	3310-C Staff Report Shane_VE Edit
	3310-C Case Info
	3310C_1locator
	3310C_2imag
	3310C_3zoning
	3310C_4flup
	3310-C App
	3310-C App and supporting docs

	6.26.__ZC 3310-D
	       ATT_Ordinance 3310-D
	       ATT_Staff Report 3310-D
	       ATT_Documentation 3310-D
	3310-D Staff Report Shane_VE Edit
	3310-D Case Info
	3310D_1locator
	3310D_2imag
	3310D_3zoning
	3310D_4flup
	3310-d Photos
	3310-D App and supporting docs

	6.27.__ZC 3303-C
	       ATT_Ordinance 3303-C
	       ATT_Staff Report 3303-C
	       ATT_Documentation 3303-C
	6.28.__ZC 1947-H
	       ATT_Ordinance 1947-H
	       ATT_Staff Report 1947-H
	       ATT_Documentation 1947-H
	Slide Pics.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	7.01.__Board Appointments - Ports to Plains
	7.02.__Board Appointments - SPAG
	7.03.__Board Appointments - LMPO
	7.04.__HOA - 1st PH
	       ATT_Highland Oaks - Resolution of Intent to Annex
	       ATT_Highland Oaks - Municipal Services Agreement
	       ATT_Highland Oaks - Annexation Map
	       ATT_Highland Oaks - Metes and Bounds Description
	7.05.__Recommendation - Private Sewer Lateral Line Ad-Hoc Committee
	       ATT_Resolution - Private Sewer Lteral Ad-Hoc Committee
	       ATT_Ad-Hoc Committee Adopted Recommendations

